1

1

2
3
4

5
6
7
8
9

10

MIN UTE S

11

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

12

Council of the County of Maui

13

Council Chamber

14

April 17,

2006

15

16
17
18
19
20

21

APPROVED:

_

~

22
23

24
25

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808)

524-2090

INC.

BF 4/17/06

2

1

CONVENE:

9:06 a.m.

2

PRESENT:

Councilmember Dain P. Kane, Chair
Councilmember G. Riki Hokama, Vice-Chair
Councilmember Michelle Anderson, Member
Councilmember Robert Carroll, Member
Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson, Member
(In 11:45 a.m.; Out 8:00 p.m.)
Councilmember Danny A. Mateo, Member
Councilmember Michael J. Molina, Member
Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla, Member
Councilmember Charmaine Tavares, Member

STAFF:

Lance T. Taguchi, Legislative Analyst
(Out 4:33 p.m.)
David M. Raatz, Legislative Attorney
(Budget Session)
Gayle H. Revels, Legislative Analyst
(In Training) (Out 4:33 p.m.)
Camille Sakamoto, Committee Secretary

ADMIN. :

Lloyd Ginoza, Budget Director,
Office of the Mayor (Out 4:33 p.m.)
Alice L. Lee, Director, Department of Housing
and Human Concerns
Roy T. Hiraga, County Clerk, Office of the
County Clerk
Carl M. Kaupalolo, Chief, Department of Fire
and Public Safety
Neal A. Bal, Deputy Chief, Department of Fire
and Public Safety
Alan Cordeiro, Assistant Chief,
Department of Fire and Public Safety
Greg Jenkins, Fire Fighter,
Department of Fire and Public Safety
Alan Pascua, Assistant Chief
(Support Services), Department of Fire
and Public Safety
Alan M. Arakawa, Mayor
(In 6:30 p.m.; Out 9:31 p.m.)
George Tengan, Director, Department of Water
Supply (In 6:30 p.m.; Out 9:31 p.m.)
Traci Fujita Villarosa, First Deputy
Corporation Counsel, Department of the
Corporation Counsel (Out 4:33 p.m.)
Brian T. Moto, Corporation Counsel,
Department of the Corporation Counsel
(In 6:30 p.m.)

3
4

5
6
7
8
9

10
11

12
13

14
15
16
l7

18
19
20
21
22

23
24
25

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 4/17/06

3

Edward S. Kushi, Jr., Deputy Corporation
Counsel, Department of the Corporation
Counsel (In 6:30 p.m.)
Jane Lovell, Chief, Litigation Section,
Department of the Corporation Counsel
(In 6:30 p.m.)

1

2
3

4

John Bickley, IV
Fred Ruge

OTHERS:
5

Jeanne Skog
Terryl Vencl
Tom Blackburn Rodrigues
One (1) additional unidentified attendee

6
7

8

Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
Don Gronning, Manao Radio (91.5 FM)

PRESS:
9

10
11

ITEM NO.1:

12
13

FY 2007 BUDGET (C.C. 06-31, 06-49,

06-91,

06-92, 06-93, and 06-95)
CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel) .

I'd like to call to order the

14

Council's Budget and Finance Committee meeting

15

for -- what is this, Members -- Monday, April 17th,

16

2006.

17

Vice-Chair of the Committee, Member Hokama, as well

18

as Members Carroll, Anderson, Mateo, Molina,

19

Pontanilla, Tavares, Kane present this morning.

20

For the record, we have Members -- the

Members, we continue.

We have with us this

21

morning our Director from the Housing and Human

22

Concerns Department, Ms. Alice Lee, to discuss the

23

operations of her Department.

24

within the Department as far as programs to bring to

25

light, Members, if -- without objections, we'll go

We have several areas
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1

ahead and walk through the programs, your -- located

2

on 7-1 of your Details, and I'll inform you of your

3

Budget page momentarily.
At this time I don't believe we have anyone

4

5

signed up to testify, Members.

6

ahead and leave it open just a little while more to

7

see if anybody who may be trying to get into the

8

building to testify.
Members, anything before we start?

9

10

Okay, so we'll go

Hearing

none.
Give it to Mr. Ginoza for any opening

11

12

remarks, as our Budget Director, then we can open up

13

with Ms. Lee.

14

MR. GINOZA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Members.

15

I don't really have any opening remarks, so I'd like

16

to refer this to Ms. Lee.

17

the Program starts on 7-1.

18
19

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, so in the Details, 7-1, Members.

Program Budget is 9-1.

Thank you.

Good morning, Ms. Lee.

20
21

As the Chair mentioned,

MS. LEE:

Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members of the

22

Committee.

We really don't have that many changes

23

in our budget.

24

in Housing.

25

counseling program with Hale Mahaolu, $100,000, in

We just have a few, one of which is

We added -- we added a home ownership
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1

this year's budget.

2

don't have many new expansion areas to discuss,

3

other than those associated with the expansion

4

positions.

5

CHAIR KANE:

But other than that, we really

Okay, Members, we'll start first in the Admin

6

Program.

Any questions in that area, Members, in

7

Admin?

8

yeah, but, Members.

Moving into Housing, and we can go back,
Member Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I have one under Admin.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

CHAIR KANE:

9

Oh, okay.

I found my paper.

And, again, Members, if you can help us when

13

you open your remarks with going to certain places

14

in the book, if you can help the other members by

15

citing the reference point so that all members can

16

follow along with your question.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares.

Just sort of a general question,

18

and I guess it's under Administration, who in the

19

Department puts together the budget and is

20

responsible for the implementation of it?

21

you disseminate those responsibilities as far as

22

budget preparation and budget implementation?

23

MS. LEE:

How do

It used to be assigned to the Assistant

24

Administrator, Mel Dadez, and we found in the last

25

couple of years that it was difficult for him to
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1

handle that plus personnel issues, as well as other

2

concerns of the Department.

3

year, and hopefully it will continue on, a committee

4

composed of the Deputy and the financial staff from

5

each Division, and this committee will meet at a

6

minimum of once a month.

So we've created, this

And the other issue that we discovered over

7
8

time was when Mel was out, we had a hard time

9

meeting deadlines and, you know, getting information

10

in a timely way.

11

and more people knowing the entire process, if one

12

goes on vacation, one gets sick, something happens,

13

the rest of the committee can proceed.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

MS. LEE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

MS. LEE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

20

So now with more people involved

Do you have a fiscal officer --

No.
-- department?

Not for the Administration, no.
So you have some in a division?

In the Housing Division you have a fiscal officer?
MS. LEE:

People double as maybe a specialist and a fiscal

21

officer, and we don't have, you know, somebody

22

dedicated to that role, except for let's say Office

23

on Aging has an accountant.

24

bookkeeper.

25

We don't really have anybody, Administration.

Kaunoa has a

Grants Management doesn't have anybody.
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1

Housing really doesn't have anybody.

2

Center doesn't have anybody.

3

doesn't have anybody.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

8
9
10

Immigrant Services

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

5

6

Uh-huh.

Volunteer

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Any more questions in the Admin

side, A accounts or B accounts?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pontanilla.

It's not a question for Housing

and Human Services, but question for the Budget
Director.

11

CHAIR KANE:

Uh huh.

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

In regards to budget itself,

13

for the County of Maui, do we have -- or do you

14

folks have like, say, review periods in regards to

15

the budget itself to make sure that, you know, we're

16

on target as far as our spending as well as if there

17

is shortfalls, overruns, that it could be corrected

18

during those meetings?

19

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Pontanilla, in my short term, actually

20

I've been just concentrating on the preparation of

21

the '07 Budget, but I think the reliance is on the

22

departments to make sure that their compliance with

23

appropriations are done.

24

through the process.

25

at this time.

But I haven't really gone

I cannot answer that question
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Do you see it being done in the

future?
MR. GINOZA:

I would like to see it, because it is a

4

concern of the Administration to make sure that, you

5

know, the departments are complying with the budget

6

appropriations.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

10

Thank you.

area, Members?

Thank you.

Any further questions in this

The account's flat, A account,

adjustments to salary.
Into Housing, Members.

11

12

B account questions?

13

Mr. Mateo.

14

Thank you, Chair.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

A account questions?

Mr. Molina, followed by

Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Director Lee.

15
16

MS. LEE:

Good morning.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

On the Hale Mahaolu program, can

18

you give us a little bit more details on that, and

19

will that be catered towards seniors or is this open

20

to any, you know, income groups and is this going to

21

have any tie-ins to the proposed first-time home

22

buyer's program.

23

MS. LEE:

Yes, it's open to everyone and it's housed at a

24

senior facility, but it's not really for seniors.

25

They have been -- that is Roy Katsuda and his staff
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1

have had a home ownership program, counseling

2

program for some time, but they lost their State

3

funding.

4

need -- with all the new programs coming up, we need

5

home ownership counseling for -- to support the

6

first-time home buyers program and any -- any

7

first-time home buyer who is looking and preparing

8

to buy a home.

9

And so the -- we actually need -- we

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Any individuals who will

10

participate in this program, are they going to be

11

required to pay a fee as well?

12

MS. LEE:

As far as I know, there's no fee involved,

13

unless there are booklets or, you know -- books that

14

they may have to pay for, but there's no charge for

15

the time of the counselor.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

17

18

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

20

morning.

Mr. Mateo.

Chairman, thank you very much.

Good

And, Ms. Lee, good morning to you.

21
22

MS. LEE:

Good morning.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I wanted to just touch bases with

24

you, and perhaps get your comments, regarding as you

25

are well aware of, your Department will be
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inheriting additional responsibilities that this

2

Council has taken action on, thereby providing

3

additional obligations for you in helping us -- in

4

helping your Department comply with follow-up

5

procedures, things like following up with the

6

various contracts and agreements that are ongoing,

7

things like reviewing various projects and the like.

8

And we've heard from you in various meetings that in

9

terms of availability, bodies available to help do

10

processes, you're very limited.
My question to you would be whether or not

11

12

you had in fact considered adding an additional

13

housing position -- and I don't know what the title

14

may be, housing specialist, housing technician -- to

15

help your Department with facilitating the new

16

programs and directives that this Council has given

17

your Department.

18

MS. LEE:

Could you comment on that?

Yes, Council Member, we will be needing

19

additional staff, at least one in the beginning,

20

when the ordinance is passed.

21

some -- an extra person to implement -- begin

22

implementing the ordinance, and we would probably

23

need someone along the lines of a specialist --

24

Housing Specialist I, SR-22.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

We're going to need

In the initial request for E/Ps,
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1

your initial submission was just those -- you

2

requested initially for a Clerk Typist III,

3

part-time Nutrition Aids, and one Leisure Program

4

Clerk.

5

position eliminated from your submissions?

Was this your actual submission or was any

6

MS. LEE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

8

9
10
11

We did have a few more.
And was one of those positions a

housing-related position?
MS. LEE:

No, it wasn't.

Because we weren't sure on the

timing of the passage of the ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, thank you very much.

12

And, Mr. Chair, if I may?

13

Okay, Ms. Lee, to continue on with the

14

question that Mr. Molina asked you regarding the

15

contract

16

right below that there is another -- this is on page

17

7-6, Contractual Services.

18

program.

19

$10,000 request; and FY '07, a $120,000 request.

20

Can you -- can you help me understand the $110,000

21

increase in this specific contractual service

22

request?

23

MS. LEE:

Yes.

regarding Hale Mahaolu, in that line,

This is for the Housing

FY '05 it was a zero request; FY '06, a

Another area that we believe there's a

24

tremendous need is supportive living, and this type

25

of housing is whether for our children or adults,
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it's for those clients who need to live separately

2

in a residential-type treatment facility.

3

something along the lines of either Gayle Gnzaao's

4

family -- Maui Youth and Family Services or Aloha

5

House's supportive living program.

6

CHAIR KANE:

It's

Excuse me, Ms. Lee.

7

And I'm sorry, Mr. Mateo.

8

Because you used the word supportive living,

9

that seems to be the next item, which would be the

10

$225,000 that carries to the next page.

11

comments now just related to the services --

12

contractual services for $110,000?

13

think only because I heard you say supportive living

14

in your remarks.

15

MS. LEE:

Yes.

Your

And I'm sorry, I

Mr. Chair, this -- this was a last-minute

16

item.

The supportive living area is -- there's a

17

tremendous need for those children and adults to

18

move into separate facilities other than, you know,

19

the clinical facility,

20

this initial 225 was actually for the Hana

21

affordable housing project, which we realized did

22

not need to be used -- appropriated again.

23

affordable project was a one-time appropriation.

24

at the very last minute we changed that -- this

25

account from the Hana affordable housing project to

into separate facilities, and
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1

supportive living.

2

like a duplication.

3

CHAIR KANE:

And,

So that's why there's sort of

I'm sorry, Mr. Mateo, I'm just trying to

4

get a distinction between the 120,000 under 6112,

5

Contractual Services on page 7-6, and the 225,000,

6

which you just explained.

7

the distinction.

8

on the previous the 120,000 figure, and I thought I

9

heard you relate your remarks to that amount to the

I'm trying to understand

I think Mr. Mateo's question was

10

supportive living.

Your response was about

11

supportive living.

I'm just trying to get the

12

distinction between the two, and I -- so I'm sorry

13

if I added confusion, Members.
So I'm just trying to get from you, Ms. Lee,

14
15

the 120,000 is not for supportive living?

16

different program?

17

MS. LEE:

Oh, no.

I'm sorry.

It's for

I thought I explained it.

18

No, it is for supportive living, and then this

19

additional supportive living, 225, was added on last

20

minute because we realized that -- we actually

21

needed more than 120, but it was added on because

22

we -- this initial 225 was earmarked for the Hana

23

affordable housing project, which didn't need

24

that -- those kinds of funds.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Your intent is to have a total of 345,000 is
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14

one area, then?

2

MS. LEE:

Yes.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, and, I'm sorry, Mr. Mateo.

I didn't

4

mean to -- I'm just trying to get the distinction.

5

You are have the floor Mr. Mateo.

6
7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you very much, Chairman.

done in this particular area.

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I'm

Thank you very much.

Okay, Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you, Chair.

In regards

10

to supportive living, when you look at -- I'm going

11

to go ahead.

12

$282,000, grant for supportive living.

13

something different from the rest of the so-called

14

supportive living funding?

Is this

No.

We, again, came upon that 225 at the last

16

minute.

The 282 was placed in there for -- it was

17

like a catch all.

18

year we have a number of agencies coming in, like

19

Lokahi Pacific, for example, they're -- they seem to

20

be running short on that Wailuku project, so

21

then there's Aloha House that was running short on

22

their project, and then there's Gayle Gnzaao who's

23

running short on their project.

24

than try to choose one, we created that category so

25

that all of them can apply for funding.

15

MS. LEE:

Page 7-16, there's a line item for

You know, we -- throughout the

So we -- rather
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1

we've done in that particular case, the 282, we --

2

we may do this for all.

3

have to come up with at least 30 percent funding of

4

their own.

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

We were adding that they

So the other two that we were

6

discussing, the $225,000 that came from the Hana

7

affordable housing and the $120,000 that is being

8

requested for this year, does the non-profit

9

agencies need to compete for these dollars also?

10

MS. LEE:

Yes.

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

It's not earmarked for anyone.
So what's the possibility of

12

combining all the affordable supported living areas

13

into one fund?

14
15
16

MS. LEE:

Yes, that's a good idea.

We wish you -- we had

an opportunity to do that from the beginning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

And this way, I

17

think for us to ensure that, you know, there's one

18

category for supported living only, I think that

19

would be a good mechanism if we would create one

20

fund involving all of the funding that is being

21

requested so that at least we can keep track of it.

22

MS. LEE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Yes.
Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
Mr. Molina, before I recognize you, Members,
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1

if you don't mind, the Chair will send a question in

2

writing just to get a written response, and I know

3

we're running short on time, so Ms. Lee will -- we

4

hope you can get back to us as soon as you can on

5

this.

6

you've talked about the supportive living component,

7

if you can, please, take the three funds and then

8

provide us with written explanation to what the

9

intent was for the three and then we'll,

Because there's three different areas that

I guess,

10

have to work with the numbers that we have there to

11

see where we go with it, Members.

12

Mr. Molina, followed by -- I'm sorry, Ms. Tavares.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

referring to are

Okay?

Clarification.

Yes.

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR KANE:

The three funds that you're

Let me identify them.

I'll

Yes, please.

Ms. Tavares, thank you.

On page 7-6, under

20

the main object code HHC, Housing Program Services,

21

6112, Contractual Services, there's a total of

22

$120,000 there at the bottom of the page.

23

right after that you have 914458, Affordable Housing

24

Supportive Living and Other Costs, that goes on to

25

page 7-7, 6317, County grant subsidy of about
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1

$225,000.

And then the final number that

2

Mr. Pontanilla has identified on your Details, page

3

7-16, under 914299, Grant Supportive Living and

4

Other Costs, 6317, County grant subsidy of $282,000.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Those would be the three funds that we'll

7

have a discussion on how we apply it for this

8

supportive living request.

Staff, thank you.

Mr. Molina, thanks for your patience.

9

10

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

No, no problem.

Thank you, Chair,

11

for

12

Lee on that 120,000, did that have ties to the

13

that's a retrofitting type of housing program, yeah?

could I ask for more specifics from Director

14

MS. LEE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

I hope not.

I thought that was a separate item.
Where are you?

Mr. Molina, I'm sorry -6112, 7-6, I'm sorry.

7-6?
Yeah.

6112?
Yeah.
120.

Okay, at the bottom of 7-6, the 120,000?
That's it.

If not, Director Lee, I can get maybe a

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 4/17/06

1

2
3

4

18

written response at a later time.
CHAIR KANE:

Can you restate your question?

I don't know

if they caught your question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, basically the question was

5

I was wondering, I guess basically wanted more

6

details on it in terms of is it part of a

7

retrofitting program.

8

I just wanted to get more details, and the

9

guidelines to qualify for that.

10

MS. LEE:

Yes.

That was my understanding, so

I'm glad you brought that up, because I

11

thought I was seeing things myself.

12

supportive living is really for the next page.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Exactly.

Apparently that

That was my original question,

14

Ms. Lee.

15

when Mr. Mateo asked you about the 120,000, which

16

caused my confusion, because that seemed to be

17

related to the 225, which you then responded later.

18

So that's why we're asking the question overall for

19

the three dollar amounts.

20

MS. LEE:

Because you talked about supportive living

My mistake.

I know we added the Hana one last

21

minute, but when I looked at this page, I thought,

22

well, I guess we added it three times.

23

you're right, the 120,000 -- actually it's 110,

24

because the $10,000 that we -- 10 to $20,000 that we

25

need in Housing is really for when people call and
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1

have old County housing projects, and let's say we

2

own property on the perimeter and the brush is

3

overgrown into people's yards and so forth, we have

4

to go out and contract people to clean up the areas.

5

So we try to have at least 10 to 20,000, because we

6

have no money -- we don't have people to go out and

7

go clean up these areas, like at the stadium by

8

Kanaloa, every year they call us.
So the 100 -- actually 100,000 of the 120 is

9

10

really for the Aging in Place program.

11

retrofit program for seniors.

12

And I misread it.

13

leaving.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

That's the

That's what it's for.

I thought it was supportive

Okay, and then meshed with the

15

other funding request, the 225, that's sufficient

16

enough to meet the demands,

17

I can only assume that there's a continuing demand,

18

yeah, for this retrofitting type of programs?

19

MS. LEE:

Oh, yes,

I guess, for -- I mean,

I mean the senior population is really

20

growing, and our overall philosophy is to delay

21

institutionalization and to try and help people stay

22

home -- at home as long as possible and be

23

independent.

24

that.

25

So this program will assist them to do

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you,
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Chairman.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

3

MS. LEE:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thanks.
Ms. Tavares, thank you.
Yeah, thank you.

Still in this

6

area, but skipping now over to the revenue -- grant

7

revenues, it's listed on 7-27 of the Details, 7-27.

8

7-27.

9
10

MS. LEE:

I don't have that.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

$16.7 million in grant revenue

11

anticipated for the Housing program.

12

that one now?

13

MS. LEE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15
16
17
18
19

Yes.
Can you kind of go through the

increases and decreases in these various categories?
CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Tavares, you wanted to jump into grant

revenues right now?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Oh, do you want to wait till

later?

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

Do you have

Yeah, let's -Okay.

I f we can wrap up just the General Fund

areas.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, fine.

And then we'll go -- and then I'll recognize
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21

you first when we get into grant revenues.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

And, Mr. Hokama, I'm sorry, did you have a

question in this other area, in the Housing area?

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

MS. LEE:

S

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

CHAIR KANE:

14
15

Section S.

That will be under grants.

Okay, we'll get there.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Why did they not need the 225,000?
MS. LEE:

It was a one-time request, and it's in this

year's budget.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

MS. LEE:

19

Thank you.

Ms. Lee, what happened to the Hana program?

16

lS

That's -- and, I'm sorry.

Ms. Anderson, in General Fund?

12
l3

Section S.

That's grant revenue.

10
11

Okay, thanks.

Where?

You're looking at next year's budget.

This

year's budget.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I'm looking on page 7 6.

You

20

just said that you reallocated the 225,000 that was

21

appropriated last year to Hana to the supportive

22

living program.

23

never encumbered for Hana?

24
25

MS. LEE:

So my question is, was that money

We're hoping that it will be.

But up until

right now it hasn't been.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so they have -- I mean this

2

isn't CIP, is it?

How long do they have till this

3

money lapses?

4

MS. LEE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

7

June 30th.
And so what's the problem with

that?
MS. LEE:

Well, there is a proviso that was attached to

8

that appropriation that required that the Ranch,

9

Hana Ranch, to come up with a proposal, and I think

10

Mr. Carroll has been in the thick of things working

11

with the Ranch, and he could probably answer that

12

better than I, but they were -- from last I heard,

13

they were on the verge of making -- reaching an

14

agreement.

15

the funding.

16
17

CHAIR KANE:

And as soon as they do, we will release

Ms. Anderson, is it okay if Mr. Carroll

provides some additional comments in this?

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Sure.

19

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Carroll.

20

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Thank you.

Thank you.

That funding is for

21

the surveying and engineering for the affordable

22

housing project, and originally we had someone else

23

the Ranch was working with to bring this project

24

about.

25

they have -- the Ranch is actually going to be doing

Well, that changed.

And so now reorganizing
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1

this more themselves, along with a contractor, and

2

hopefully in the next several weeks they will have

3

the final paperwork an everything done and they can

4

begin by the end of this month or early next month.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Ms. Anderson, as far as the follow up

6

for this funding, the question would maybe become if

7

it doesn't happen by June 30th, then how do we make

8

sure that that gets completed with the funding, and

9

do we have a source sitting somewhere that can be

10

recognized in the event that it doesn't occur?

11

Ms. Anderson, kind of going in that direction, to

12

make sure that this job gets done.

13
14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, if that's where you want to

go, that's fine.

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

mean,

17

is there -- and that money lapses, where do you go

18

to assist this project or does it die if they don't

19

make it by the June 30th deadline?

20

MS. LEE:

Ms. Lee, are you prepared to respond?

I

just in case it doesn't happen by June 30th,

The funding would lapse if it doesn't

if

21

we're not able to encumber the funds by June 30th.

22

I just want to remind the Committee that this was a

23

Council-initiated appropriation.

24

Department-initiated appropriation.

25

much standing by waiting for everything to come

It wasn't a
We're pretty
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1

together so that we can move forward, but it's

2

really in the hands of the Ranch, and until we get

3

finalized details, we can't really do anything.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Anderson, you have the floor.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So nobody's been in contact with

6

you or nobody from your Department has been in

7

contact with them?

8

lose this amount of money.

9
10

11

MS. LEE:

I mean, it would be a shame to

We've been working through Councilmember

Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, if we could get some kind

12

of report of what's going on with this, that would

13

be good.
Then the other question I have is all of this

14
15

supportive living, and we just took out the 120

16

grand, so it's no longer 345, and --

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19
20

Ms. Anderson, just for clarity on that -Yeah, I'm looking for the grant

amount, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Yeah, the grant amount is on page 7-16, as

21

was cited by Mr. Pontanilla, for 282,000, so we will

22

get a written response on the 225 request on 7-7 and

23

the 7-16, 282,000 and get written response from the

24

Director on how that money's going to be utilized.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay, that's what I wanted,
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because that's half a million dollars.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Exactly.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I think we ought to have a little

4

clearer idea on how that's going to be utilized and

5

distributed.
And then I had a question on 7-7.

6

We had one

7

program in '05 that was $100,000 for renters.

8

fact that that's in brackets, Mr. Ginoza, does that

9

mean the money lapsed or what?

The

10

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza, care to respond on 7-7 Details?

11

MR. GINOZA:

I'm not really sure, but it seems like it

12

lapsed, but I need to check on that.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

MS. LEE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Would Ms. Lee know?

Ms. Lee.

No.

I'd rather answer in writing.
Well, I sure hope it didn't

17

lapse, $100,000 to help renters, because I see now

18

you have another program which is a grant subsidy

19

for affordable rental housing.

20

anything to do with the program the Council

21

initiated?

22

MS. LEE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24
25

Does this have

Yes.
And can you explain to us how you

intend to disburse that money?
MS. LEE:

Through an RFP process, request for proposals.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

MS. LEE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

MS. LEE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

MS. LEE:

Right.

We've already
You mean to non-profits?

Yes.
Okay.

Well, actually to anyone.

We're doing an RFP --

7

open RFP.

8

published in the paper in anticipation that this

9

item will pass second and final reading, because

10
11

We just drafted the notice which will be

we're running out of time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And then what's the intention,

12

Ms. Lee, that whoever accepts this funding will be

13

responsible for disbursing it?

14

MS. LEE:

No, we're hoping that we'll have at least three
It will be -- the

15

or four or more proposals.

16

proposals will be reviewed by a committee.

17

committee will rank them, and we will do -- make the

18

disbursements accordingly.

19

may get 150,000, some may get 100,000, some -- you

20

know, portions, not the whole amount.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

22

the money?

23

MS. LEE:

The

My guess is that some

And then what will they do with

They will implement a renter's program.

24

several non-profits already that have rental

25

programs.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So this would be used to

supplement the programs they already have?

3

MS. LEE:

Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

All right.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla.

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Chair.

Regarding

7

the Hana Ranch $225,000 that was budgeted for this

8

year, I know last year we had indicated that the

9

money will be used for affordable housing through a

10

non-profit organization.

11

Claudia O'shay that was going to handle this thing

12

here.

13

will be administering these dollars or -- understand

14

that Mr. Carroll had already given some information

15

regarding the Hana Ranch as well as the contractor

16

will be doing this work and are negotiating.

17

question is who's going to handle the money?

18
19
20
21

22

CHAIR KANE:

Is it still going to be a non-profit that

So my

Ms. Lee, are you prepared to respond or is

Mr. Carroll?
MS. LEE:

Mr. Carroll would be the appropriate one to

respond.
CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Carroll, are you prepared to respond at

23

this time?

24

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

25

I think the person was

Thank you, Chair.

At the last

community meeting we had in Hana all these questions
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1

came up too.

Since Ms. O'shay has withdrawn from

2

the project, Hana Ranch is taking the lead on that.

3

They would be the one encumbering the money for the

4

survey and contracting out the services.

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

9

Mr. Pontanilla.

Okay.

Thank you.

That's an existing year request, so --

yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, I'd like to follow up on

10

that, because it's disturbing that a successful

11

non-profit organization has withdrawn from this

12

project, and, you know, while Hana Ranch has donated

13

land, which is commendable, I find it strange that

14

they're now the lead.

15

explanation of why Ms. O'shay withdrew from the

16

project, I think that would give some clarity to

17

what's going on.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

If Mr. Carroll can give us an

Well, we'll try to wrap this up,

19

because this is an existing year budget item, not a

20

proposed budget item.

21

you can do your best, please.

22

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

So go ahead, Mr. Carroll, if

Thank you, Chair.

The Ranch has

23

reluctantly taken this -- they made it very clear

24

from the outset that they did not want to be

25

involved in housing.

However, because Ms. O'shay
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1

did withdraw -- and of course we have another small

2

affordable project that is going through, that 14

3

homes down by Kawaipapa Bridge, but she has

4

withdrawn from that, and if the Ranch didn't step

5

forward,

6

have State monies, 1.5 million, which expires if

7

it's not encumbered on December 31st.

8

was the only entity that could put it together fast

9

enough that we can actually bring this affordable

10

that means it wouldn't happen.

We also

So the Ranch

housing project to fruition.
And, again, this is probably the only 100

11

12

percent affordable housing project you're ever going

13

to see that is what I think all the members would

14

call truly affordable.

15

in for under $150,000 for these homes, but there was

16

not many options out there.

17

had made it clear that they didn't want to -- they

18

are going to do this, not making a profit off it,

19

just coordinating it so we can get the homes for our

20

people.
CHAIR KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24
25

Ms. Anderson.
I'll contact Ms. O'shay and find

out with she withdrew.
CHAIR KANE:

And again, the Ranch

And that's where we're at right now.

21

23

We're hoping to bring this

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Ginoza, do you know if this

225,000 that was appropriated for this project was
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1

included in your proposed carryover savings dollar

2

amount?

3
4

5
6
7

MR. GINOZA:

I'm not sure, but I'm pretty sure it was not,

but I can confirm that.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay, if you can please confirm, we'd

appreciate that as well.
Members, we do have a few people signed up to

8

testify.

9

them forward, Members.

10

I'd like to take that opportunity to bring
Thank you.

Those of you signed up to testify, we'll

11

provide you with a total of four minutes.

12

minutes we'll notify you of that time.

13

provide you an additional minute to conclude your

14

remarks, and again at four minutes we'll let you

15

know, and at that point we'd like to have you to

16

conclude your remarks.

17

interrupt you to have you end your remarks.

18

please remain at the podium.

19

questions on your testimony, allow the members to

20

ask those questions.

21
22

23

At three

That will

If you do continue, we will
And

If there's any

We have two people signed up to testify.
First to testify is John Bickley, IV.
Mr. Bickley, if you can please come forward.

24

If you can state your name for the record,

25

gentlemen, and if you do represent an organization,
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we'd like to know that, and, Mr. Bickley.

2

3

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

MR. BICKLEY:

Thank you.

My name's John Bickley, and I'm

4

here to basically share my opinion regarding the

5

proposal to make this house next to Baldwin, which

6

is in the budget being considered by this Council,

7

the Maui County Environmental Resource Center.

8

this paper, which at the bottom says no trespassing,

9

was copied numerous times and plastered allover

And

10

these dwellings.

11

it's shared by many, is that it's

12

be right for environmental groups to sue the County

l3

or anyone else and ask them to tear -- you know,

14

tear this beach front property down.

15

not right, it shouldn't be here in one hand, and

16

then in the next hand they're going to -- you know,

17

they want to use it as an HQ to do it again, you

18

know, somewhere else.

19

okay for them to use it, but now that it's there and

20

they're gone, maybe we should use it.

21

should get it.

22

And my basic feeling here, and

Let's

it just may not

You know, it's

you know, it wasn't

Maybe we

And what I've seen, and to the dismay of

23

many, is that these folks are being very possessive

24

about it.

25

trespassing is clearly depicted on the sign.

It's ours.

Get out.

Get away.
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1

yet many of us say, well, shoot, if it's not going

2

to be right for them, maybe they ought to just tear

3

it down and restore it to the beach front it was and

4

give it access -- you know, give access to the

5

people of the County of Maui.
And so to that effect, I've also heard that,

6
7

you know, shoot, instead of the environmentalists,

8

why not a vocational resource center for the people

9

that need to become, you know, homeowners here.

You

10

know, you have to make a million dollars -- have to

11

be a millionaire to buy a home on the island of

12

Maui.

13

Harmony, she's going to have to be a

14

multi-millionaire to become a homeowner on the

15

island of Maui, and I just don't see any help with

16

respect to learning how to become a millionaire and

17

pay your taxes.

18

many homeless and the many, you know, poorly

19

educated here, you know, if it's going to be used,

20

maybe that ought to be considered instead of an

21

environmental resource center.

22

And my two-and-a-half-year-old little girl,

And so to address the issues of the

And to that end, there's a great deal of land

23

between that space and the Baldwin -- and the youth

24

center, you know, that has been also considered for

25

this kind of activity, and there are a lot of
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homeless there already.

2

MS. REVELS:

3

MR. BICKLEY:

Three minutes.
So we ask that it be made available for

4

campers, made available for people under certain

5

rules, no drugs and alcohol, no violence, to be

6

used -- you know, permitted in some legal way.

7

Thank you.

8

CHAIR KANE:

Members, any questions?

9

Mr. Bickley, we have some questions for you.

10
11

12

Thank you, Mr. Bickley.

Mr. Molina, followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

Good morning, sir.

13

Thank you for your

14

testimony on this.

15

expressed concerns about the usage of the house, I

16

mean other than being, as you put it, an

17

environmentalist headquarters.

18

these other residents or other particular groups?

19

MR. BICKLEY:

You mentioned others had

Can you cite are

Residents, patrons of the beach, members of

20

the youth center, who I'm sure have emailed this

21

Council, the Director, I mean a few people have

22

said, oh, I'm going to have to email the Council and

23

tell them my thoughts about this, that it should

24

just come down.

25

said, hey, if we had to go through this, you know,

You know, if we -- they basically
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1

intensive permitting process to get a skate park or

2

to get this, by golly, this should -- isn't right.

3

You know, numerous people just keep saying,

4

wow, what's next?

They're going to target my house

5

and then want to use it for a south shore HQ or some

6

other thing.

7

that the same people who said it can't -- it's not

8

right to have this here want to use it.

9

would say anybody else, except -- you know, except

It's just -- it's just unbelievable

You know, I

10

don't reward that kind of thing with that -- you

11

know, it's just not -- I just don't think it's

12

right.

13

And so people are like, well, you know, it

14

would be such a shame to tear it down, you know.

15

You only get 10 percent on the money because you got

16

this door that's worth money and this piece of wood

17

that's worth money, and it's a shame that the County

18

permitted it and that it was built, but if it's not

19

going to be accessible to the general public, you

20

know, if you and I and my children and yours aren't

21

going to be accessible

22

the private office of a person that's seeking

23

political gain, you know, if it's going to be

24

somebody's private office, then how right is that?

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

if it's going to become

Okay, thank you.
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1

MR. BICKLEY:

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

B

9

10
11
12
13

Thank you, Chairman.

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson, questions?
Yeah, I was going to ask who the

we was, but I think you described that.
Would it be -- would you be able to share

6
7

Thank you.

that notice with us?
CHAIR KANE:

I'd like to see it.

Ms. Anderson, maybe so everybody can see it

we'll have Staff take a Xerox copy of it and then
we'll have it distributed to everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, that would be fine.

Thank

you very much for coming.
CHAIR KANE:

And we'll get that back to you.

If you can

14

hang on, while just have Staff make a copy so we can

15

get the original back and we'll make copies for the

16

members.

17

MR. BICKLEY:

IB

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Thank you very much.

Next to testify is --

19

and I'm sorry if I mispronounce your last name --

20

Fred rouge.

21

MR. RUGE:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. RUGE:

Yeah, my name is Fred Ruge.
Ruge.

Thank you.

And I'd like to thank you for giving the

24

privilege to testify on the budget here this

25

morning.
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I would like the County Council to declare a

1

2

State of emergency, take 5 percent of the entire

3

budget from every Department, set up a special fund

4

to build a new sewer disposal plant out of the

5

tsunami zone.

6

Federal government an the State government both to

7

fast track everything, eliminate all these long

8

studies, and get this emergency taken care of.

9

Because look at Honolulu, probably eventual lawsuits

Now, I think you would get the

10

will cost more than it would have cost to fix the

11

sewer system in Honolulu, and I don't think that

12

should happen here.
I think that you should act immediately.

13

Set

14

up a special fund.

15

even go find communities the same size as ours that

16

maybe already have a sewer plant, use their

17

engineering, and get the thing done super fast, and

18

that's my suggestion.

19

CHAIR KANE:

20
21

Mr. Ruger -- Mr. Ruge, thank you very much.
Members, any questions for our testifier?

Hearing none.
Thank you for your testimony today.

22

23

MR. RUGE:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Get the location and you could

Thank you.
Is there anybody else here in the chamber

that has not testified that would like to, now is
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your chance?

2

Members, seeing nobody approach, without

3

objections, we'll close testimony for today's

4

meeting.

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you very much.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

7

8
9

No objections.

We'll continue, Members, with our discussion
with the Housing and Human Concerns Department.

Are

10

there any additional questions on the -- under the

11

Housing program area, Members, under housing --

12

housing program?

13

program, salary, wages, operations, and equipment

14

requests.
Members, any questions in that area?

15
16
17
18

We also have the human concerns

Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, thank you.

7-8 Details,

please.

19

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Director Lee, how is your Division

21

going to address immigration services for Lanai,

22

please.

23

MS. LEE:

I don't know.

We have someone there.

24

have something in mind specifically?

25

half-time worker.

Did you

We have a
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1

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

MS. LEE:

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is that the Clerk Typist III?

I'd have to double check.
Okay.

I don't think so.

That would be appreciated.

And

4

just -- maybe, Mr. Chairman, in a request to the

5

Director, I'm just trying to find out if there's any

6

adjustments to the current Lanai program as the

7

community understands it currently, please, and if

8

there's some adjustments that the Director will be

9

making.

10
11

CHAIR KANE:

to be forwarded to the Director for response.
Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

12

13
14

Okay, Staff, if you can, please, a question

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

My other question in this area for the

Director, please, Chairman.
We've supported the Enlace Hispano through

15
16

MEO.

17

not provide the Hispanic community services also, or

18

you are currently providing some type of services,

19

Director?

20

MS. LEE:

Is there a reason why this program area could

The services we provide are mainly information

21

and referral, helping people fill out their

22

applications for a citizenship, bringing their

23

families over from whatever country, and those type

24

of services, assisting them with visas and so forth.

25

The Enlace Program that's headed by MEO is
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1

quite different.

2

community with really basic types of services, such

3

as getting a driver's license, employee --

4

employment training, referrals to substance abuse

5

treatment programs, all those other -- a lot of

6

social types and -

7

types of information and referral services.

economic development and social

Ours, on the other hand, has mainly to do

8
9

It helps specifically the Hispanic

with helping people with the naturalization process

10

or citizenship process or those kinds of matters,

11

although we do have a youth program for social

12

acculturation and assimilation, but that's, again,

13

different from the Enlace Program.

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

In your experience, we still

15

have the same or greater need from the immigrant

16

sector in the community than before in your

17

estimation?

18
19
20

MS. LEE:

Yes.

We see at least 100 people a week, so 400

people a month, and that number is not declining.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And this is in regards to all

21

immigrants, whether they're Hispanics, Asians, and

22

Asians we're looking the whole gamut, from Koreans

23

to Vietnamese, to Chinese, it doesn't matter,

24

Filipinos?

25

MS. LEE:

All races.

Actually, the number one race -- or
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the number one area is Micronesia.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Do we have any other programs,

3

specifically like Enlace, that your Department is

4

doing for a specific group or type of language

5

speaking people?

6

MS. LEE:

No.

No .

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Is there a segment of our community we

8

need to be more aware of?

You mentioned the

9

Micronesian sector, is that an area we need to look

10

at resource -- additional resources or you feel

11

we're above water?

12

MS. LEE:

Our small group in immigrant services could not

13

handle an additional program without -- without

14

additional personnel or without contracting it out

15

to someone who could

16

program.

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

could handle a brand-new

Without the staffing being a, you

18

know, major consideration, which is not like me, but

19

I'm just asking, is there a need, though, that we

20

should be looking at, Director Lee?

21

MS. LEE:

There's a definite need, yes.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

This is more in, what, language,

23

communication skills or actual social skills with

24

the rest of the community makeup?

25

MS. LEE:

It -- the whole gamut, from assisting them with
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1

applying for jobs or entering school, learning

2

English as a second language, child care, housing,

3

everything.

4
5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

to assist your program area, do we?

6

MS. LEE:

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

9
10
11

We don't get additional Federal funds

No, and I've tried many times.
Thank you very much, Director Lee.

Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Any more questions in this area?

Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, have you very much. My

12

question would be taken out of page 7-23, the

13

Homeless Program, 6112.
Ms. Lee, in Fiscal Year '05 this program ran

14
15

its programs with 515,500, and in the subsequent

16

year, in the years that follows, that amount had

17

increased only by $4,500 from last fiscal year and

18

then the same amount carries over to the '07 Fiscal

19

Year.

20

publicity that homelessness has generated, your

21

budget is flat.

22

money actually provide an impact in dealing with

23

today's issues and today's needs with the homeless

24

issues?

25

MS. LEE:

I think with today's impacts and all of the

How does -- how does this amount of

Thank you, Council Member.

Indeed we do need
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1

more monies and more resources, and we're very

2

appreciative that you included $400,000 in this

3

year's budget and also next year's budget.

4

included it in next year's budget with the rental

5

assistance program, and that additional funding will

6

make a big difference in augmenting and supporting

7

the homeless program.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Well, we

The total amount, this is also

inclusive of bodies, personnel to provide services

10

for the homeless, or this is strictly program

11

monies?

12

MS. LEE:

Program monies.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And are there new or additions to

14

existing programs to help expedite services for the

15

homeless?

16

MS. LEE:

Yes.

We have

in addition to the general

17

homeless alliance that exists in Maui County, we

18

have what is called a coordinated homeless response

19

team, and that includes all the major department

20

people that would be responding to a homeless

21

situation, Police, Fire, Parks, Public Works, Corp.

22

Counsel, and Prosecutors.

23

one or two departments.

24

committee, and we're always looking for additional

25

resources.

I'm probably leaving out
Anyway, I chair that
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1

And we were -- in addition to the regulars,

2

like Ka Hale A Ke Ola, Charlie Ridings, MEO, we've

3

come across a new one, Family Life Center, and they

4

actually

5

from the State, three-year funding, but of course

6

it's not enough.

7

renovation of their facility, and they're another

8

program that can really make a difference with the

9

homeless.

they're faith based.

They have funding

We're assisting them with the

They have a facility that's right across

10
11

Foodland in Kahului.

12

Marocco -- or Pastor Marocco, what is his name?

13

What church is -- First Assembly, the old First

14

Assembly church.

15

Center, and they're a tremendous resource because

16

and they helped us a lot at the Breakwater.

17

took -- they took, oh, several -- at least 24

18

people.

19

we -- whenever we can identify new resources, you

20

know, we're quick to partner with them.

21

additional monies that you've appropriated in the

22

rental program will probably -- a portion will

23

probably go to them, provided, of course, they

24

apply.

25

It used to be the old Father

That's now occupied by Family Life

They

So they're making a big difference, so

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So the

Does the Department go after
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1

additional like Federal funds in addition to what

2

the County provides?

3

MS. LEE:

Yes, for several years now, a couple of years

4

now we've tried to -- we have applied for TANF

5

funds,

6

see that last year and this year we added another

7

million and a half, $2 million to grant revenue.

8

course we didn't get any, but we still apply.

9

There's a -- there's a chance that the legislature

and in the grant revenue side you're going to

Of

10

will raise the cap, raise the ceiling for TANF funds

11

to be spent on things like rental assistance.

12

if

13

tremendous significant help to all of us, all the

14

Counties, but thus far they haven't made any changes

15

to the TANF fund programs so that we're not able to

16

access those monies.

17

And

and if that occurs, then that's going to be a

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

So with the current

18

issues at the Breakwater, and with all of the

19

information that has been gathered, you know, based

20

on the homeless population and the movement now, is

21

your Department providing a plan or a long-range

22

vision of what the Department or what this County

23

needs to do in actually addressing the more serious

24

and urgent needs of the homeless?

25

MS. LEE:

Yes.

As far as we're concerned, the long-range

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 4/17/06

45

1

solutions would include providing more housing, low

2

cost housing.

3

West Maui Resource Center and now are attempting to

4

create that same type of facility in South Maui.

5

And we're also attempting to create a facility at

6

the old Maui High School in H'Poko to house the

7

mentally ill.

8

mentally ill clients, as well as substance abuse

9

clients.

10

You know that we have finished the

A lot of the homeless population are

So those people need specialized treatment

as well as housing.
But then for the general population, we

11
12

believe programs, such as Charlie Ridings' program,

13

which takes you in at a transitional level and helps

14

you to move into permanent affordable housing as

15

well as provides you with child care and employment

16

training and so forth is really the type of

17

program -- comprehensive program that's really

18

needed for the low -- you know, the low income

19

residents of Maui County.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Ms. Lee.

Thank you, Chairman.

21

22

Thank you.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Any more questions in this area,

23

Members, under Human Concerns and the program?

24

Mr. Molina.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE:

Followed by Ms. Tavares.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

One question on the Human Concerns,

3

7-16 on the Kaunoa Human Concerns Program.

4

could I get more clarification on the need for

5

increase in the mileage?

6

prices, but is there any other reasons for the

7

increase?

8
9

MS. LEE:

No, Council Member.

the vehicles.

Just

I can guess probably gas

It's our cost in operating

We have a transportation -- assistant

10

transportation program.

11

Wheels.

We have the Meals on

The cars are running all the time.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Thank you.

Ms. Tavares.
Yeah, thank you.

Just one little

15

minor thing, I guess, in the Program Budget, on

16

9-12, under Immigrant Services.

17

column for Fiscal Year '07, it looks more like a

18

first quarter number than an annual number.

19

just a typo?

20

MS. LEE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

MS. LEE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

MS. LEE:

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I think that last

Is that

I'm sorry?
Under your performance measures.

The first one?

The first one?
9

No, I mean -Oh.

Performance measures.
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1

MS. LEE:

Right.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

All of those.

Well, not all of

3

them, but most of them, when you have your actual

4

and you have '05,

5

and your '07 projection like went down, so, you

6

know, and that occurs in certain places, so I'm

7

thinking maybe that's a first quarter projection or

8

something.

9

10

MS. LEE:

'06 projection,

'07 projection,

I'd have to double check.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Because I think you can check all

11

those bullets where -- you know, total hours spent

12

in recruiting, et cetera, the numbers just seem to

13

be low for what your programs are.

14

MS. LEE:

Oh, in the third column?

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

MS. LEE:

The two -- yes, yeah, right.

17

whole year.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

MS. LEE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

It's not for the

Yeah.

Yes, right.
So you're going to send a

correction page for that one?

22

MS. LEE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Yeah.

Yes, we could.
Okay.

Thank you.

Staff, if you can follow up on Program Budget

page 9-12, under performance measures, the FY '07
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1

projection numbers.

2

will be sending a revised projection number for

3

those measures because those numbers do not reflect

4

a full fiscal year amount.
Is that correct, Ms. Tavares, that's what

5

6

we're looking for?

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9
10

Okay.

Yes.

Thank you very much.

Any additional questions?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11
12

Ms. Lee has indicated that she

Mr. Pontanilla.

Thank you, Chair.

Director Lee, do we have any vacancies in the
grant management program right now?

13

MS. LEE:

Yes, we do.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

MS. LEE:

How many?

Actually -- well, it's sort of two, but actually

16

one.

17

actual vacancy.

18

back in September, and we recently got one and we're

19

in the process of scheduling interviews for that

20

one.

21

We had someone who retired, so that's an
We have -- we applied for a list

And then the second one, which is more vague,

22

the second one, there's an employee in the process

23

of transferring from that position to another

24

existing position.

25

until he does it's not exactly vacant.

So he hasn't done that yet, so
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I see.

Okay.

So that one

2

position is going to be filled by the end of this

3

fiscal year?

4

MS. LEE:

Yes.

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

In regards to your vehicle

6

purchase, everybody's buying new vehicles and you're

7

going for government surplus vehicles.

8
9

10
11

12

MS. LEE:

Why?

We apply for what we think we can get.

that simple.

It's

I mean, if -- of course we need better

cars, but something is better than what we have.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

That's true.

So you get it at

a real discounted rate, then?

13

MS. LEE:

Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

And as far as the

15

performance of those vehicles, I don't know if you

16

have them in your fleet right now, but do they

17

require a lot of maintenance because they're, I

18

guess, used vehicles?

19

MS. LEE:

Yes, actually, and we recently were informed by

20

Public Works that they can't take any more of our

21

vehicles for now for a while.

22

have to go outside to get our vehicles fixed.

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So we're going for

Yeah, I would be interested in

24

getting your repair maintenance costs compared to --

25

well, I want to compare it to the new vehicles that
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1

we purchase for, you know, all of the other

2

department except yours.

3

MS. LEE:

Yes.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

The other question that I had,

5

I know there is an increase in your lunch program,

6

is that because of the increase in participants or

7

just an increase of the food themselves?

8
9

10
11

MS. LEE:

We will be opening a new site at Kaunoa in the

cafeteria.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And then do we have

any Federal subsidy regarding the meals program?

12

MS. LEE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

Finally.

Yes, we do, through the Office on Aging.

Thank you.

Okay.

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Molina.
Thank you, Chairman.

Director Lee, just a question on the funding

17

for the old Maui High School campus, that 200,000,

18

that's for a study to look at -- I guess to look at

19

other options as well as the -- I guess you

20

mentioned the intent at this point is I guess a

21

shelter or housing for the mentally ill.

22

up because I was at a recent meeting of the Friends

23

of Old Maui High School, so people were asking me is

24

the Administration -- is it a done deal already

25

that, you know, they want to go in particularly this

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

I bring it

BF 4/17/06

51

1

direction or is the Administration open to

2

considering other options?

3

MS. LEE:

The Administration is open to considering all

4

options.

We've -- that's a 22-acre campus, and a

5

lot of different types of activities could co-reside

6

there.

7

who resides there, we have to have a complete

8

environmental review of the whole area because of

9

the issues of the old plumbing, the old chemicals,

As far as the monies appropriated, no matter

10

the old sewer system, the old water system, and

11

whatever else was used on that property.

12

that has to be reviewed and analyzed, so we will

13

need -- and not only an environmental review, but

14

we're going to need engineering services for that

15

process.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

17

Chairman.

18

CHAIR KANE:

All right, thank you.

All of

Thank you,

So, Ms. Lee, just for clarification, before I

19

recognize any other member, this $200,000 is going

20

to be used for an EA or an EIS?

21

specific in that area, along with the engineering

22

component that you concluded your remarks on, just

23

to be specific about the $200,000 request and where

24

it's going to be used or what it's going to be used

25

for.

Can you be more
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MS. LEE:

The process is more similar to an Environmental

2

Assessment, rather than an EIS.

3

we can call it officially an EA.

4

environmental review that was done earlier, so the

5

review will be updated by the Clayton Group, which

6

we are working with -- through Barbara Long's

7

non-profit Friends of Old Maui High School.

8

been instrumental in putting that part of the

9

process together, and that's the amount that she

I don't know that
There was an

She has

10

requested for the review, analysis, and for the

11

engineering to be done on the site.

12
13

14

CHAIR KANE:

This 200,000 is a request by Barbara Long's

group as far as indicating what the needs are?
MS. LEE:

She actually requested a million dollars, but

15

we're -- we feel that the 200,000 will have to

16

suffice for the beginning parts of this process.

17

CHAIR KANE:

18
19
20

Okay, thank you for that clarification.
Mr. Pontanilla, additional questions on that?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, I think you asked one of

the questions that I was going to ask.

21

In regards to the campus itself, do we have

22

any idea as far as like a master plan for the whole

23

area or are -- is this studies -- this monies going

24

to provide that for us?

25

MS. LEE:

Council Member, we meet every month, another
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1

committee I chair, the Old Maui High School

2

Committee.

3

subcommittee any time now, as soon as I have a

4

chance to put together one, to work towards creating

5

a master plan, and in which case we're going to then

6

need to hire a consultant to help us draw up that

7

plan, but that's why I'm -- if -- in fact I should

8

invite anyone that any of you would recommend to be

9

on the committee.

We're going to be creating a

We -- we're going to be starting

10

let's say in the next month or two to start meeting

11

on a regular basis, probably once a month, to begin

12

to create a master plan for the 22 acres.

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Members, any questions in Human

15

Concerns program area, A, B, C account?

16

Ms. Anderson.

17
18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

Ms. Lee, I notice that I'm having a hard time

19

finding all your fuel costs for these various

20

programs, and the one I did find under the Senior

21

Center Leisure, 7-18, Item 6022, you only have $150

22

increase from 500 to 650.

23

along the right way.

24

30 percent increase in fuel that's been applied

25

across the board to the County for use of vehicles.

I may not be hitting

We've been told that there's a
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1

There's another one on 7-19, under Assisted

2

Transportation, for gas, it went from 200 to 260.

3

Have you folks put a 30 percent increase for all

4

your fuel costs in?

5

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza.

6

MR. GINOZA:

Yes, if you look at the 500, that's -- the 30

7

8
9

10

percent is 150.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And that's all the gas they use

in a year for these programs, I guess?
MR. GINOZA:

Well, you know, part of the gas purchase is

11

through the County, what's it called, garage

12

services, and for the General Fund there'S really no

13

allocation of gas to the specific departments.

14

allocations are basically to the Special Revenue

15

Funds and through the Enterprise Funds.

16

the Department, within the General Fund there's no

17

allocation on that gas.

So within

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I see.

19

CHAIR KANE:

Any further questions in --

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

Okay.

Thank you.

Yes.

Oh, I'm sorry.

Ms. Anderson.

On page 7-22, under the Maui

23

Farm, could you explain why their funding was

24

140,000 last year and nothing this year?

25

MS. LEE:

Council Member, I would defer that to
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1

Councilmember Tavares.

2

one-time request for the $140,000.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

MS. LEE:

Page 7-22.

I believe this was a

Where is this?
Let me explain why I'm deferring to

5

certain Council members when you ask a question,

6

because it would have been initiated by that Council

7

member, so that's why I'm deferring to that person.

8

In this case it's Maui Farms, the $140,000, yeah.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
I can provide some information

for Member Anderson.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Anderson, any problem with that?

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

This was a one-time grant to Maui

15

Farm and it was for some repair and maintenance

16

issues that did not qualify under the CDBG grant

17

application that they had made that year, so it is a

18

one time.

19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay, I see.

So Maui Farm, then,

is getting 93,875 this year based on your CPG list?
MS. LEE:

Yes.

I don't have it in front of me, but they

22

apply every year to the Community Partnership Grant

23

Fund, yes.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

Okay.

And then on 7-22 also, for

Cultural and Arts Grant, what is that for?
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from 80,000 to 150,000.
MS. LEE:

It used to be 150,000.

and we're asking for restoring that amount.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

MS. LEE:

6

And what's it for?

For various agencies to apply for funding for

cultural and arts programs.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

The Council cut it back

Okay.
Similar to the youth centers Okay, thank you, Chair.
category.

Okay, further questions in the Human Concerns

program area, Members?

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR KANE:

All areas now?

And then one final program, Members.

I

15

wanted to make a note under the Animal Management

16

program.

17

trying to figure out how to deal with the proviso

18

that we put in regarding the timing for the

19

training, and that's a communication that all of you

20

should have received regarding their inability to

21

comply with the proviso based on -- and they

22

provided the information, lack of available classes

23

to have all the officers complete the requested

24

hours, lack of relevant courses to complete the

25

total 250 hours, and because that's a current year

Although the budget is flat, we're still
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1

request, we're keeping in mind that they have

2

already stated that due to those factors and others,

3

they are not going to be able to comply with the

4

proviso that this -- this Committee put onto them.
So we're still trying to figure out how we

5
6

can get that -- if there's an adjustment that's

7

needed or members are informed of why they're not

8

going to be able to comply with that proviso.

9

just wanted to bring that forward so you folks are

So I

10

aware that that's the area that we're going to be

11

dealing with that.

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares.
Yeah, Mr. Chair, that's in your

Committee right now, the -- to adjust the proviso?

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

MR. TAGUCHI:

No, I believe it's not.

Mr. Taguchi.

The matter is not currently in Committee.

16

We're still waiting for a budget amendment to be

17

supplied from the Department.

18

CHAIR KANE:

We did not receive something from

19

Administration technically.

All they did was

20

provide us with a letter informing us, from Mr. Mel

21

Dadez, as Administrative Assistant to the Department

22

of Human Concerns, notifying us of the issue, but

23

there was no actual amendment request process

24

initiated.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

May I ask Ms. Lee if --
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

-- she has any knowledge of

3

this -- is there an amendment coming for that

4

proviso?

5

MS. LEE:

I'd have to check.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay, if you could, please,

7

because I think that means that money will be

8

withheld from this current fiscal year if they

9

cannot meet that proviso requirement, and I believe

10

each of us received a letter or an explanation or

11

packet of what their members or their staff members

12

have been through as far as training and why they

13

are having difficulty meeting the hours requirement,

14

as you stated, Mr. Chair.

15

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So if that's something that we

17

could act on so that they are not jeopardized in

18

their funding up through June 30th.

19

to take a look at that during our sessions here.

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR KANE:

I think we need

Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
Thank you.

Yeah, we continue to figure out how we can

23

make sure that the program doesn't get compromised

24

because of the situation.

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE:

Yeah, thank you.

Before we move on, Members,

2

again, I just wanted to cover that final program

3

under general -- General Fund for the Department, as

4

Animal Management falls in that area.

5

additional questions in this area?

Any

Hearing none.

Members, we have an option, you want to take

6
7

your break now and then come back and get into grant

8

revenue, since it's 10:25?

9

and take our 15-minute morning recess and we'll

Why don't we go ahead

10

reconvene this meeting at 10:40.

11

(Gavel) .

We're in recess.

10:24 a.m.

12

RECESS:

13

RECONVENE:

14

CHAIR KANE:

10:48 a.m.

(Gavel).

Members, we are reconvened.

Thank

15

you very much for that morning break.

We are moving

16

into

17

area, are there any other questions under the

18

General Fund Department program areas for Housing

19

and Human Concerns?

20

let's move into the grant revenue portion.

- well, before we move into the grant revenue

Okay, seeing none.

Members,

Ms. Lee, you want to provide any additional

21
22

remarks in this area, or highlighting any type of

23

fluctuations that you think would need some comment?

24

MS. LEE:

No, thank you, Mr. Chair.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

With that, Ms. Tavares, you have the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 4/17/06

1

2
3

60

floor.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

earlier, is if you could go through the --

4

MS. LEE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

Well, that was my question

Okay.
-- through the list and highlight

the increases and decreases for us.

7

MS. LEE:

All right.

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

CHAIR KANE:

Starting with I guess 7-27, 7-27.

Okay, Members, we're starting on 7-27, and

10

we'll move through the grant revenue areas.

11

several programs.

12
13

MS. LEE:

We have

Okay, the HOME program, starting with the HOME

program.

All right.

Why is there a

14

CHAIR KANE:

Double digit decrease.

15

MS. LEE:

reduction in

16

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

17

MS. LEE:

in 1234.

Okay.

I'm not really sure.

I'd

18

rather not guess.

19

whatever -- whichever one I can't answer we'll send

20

you an answer in writing.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR KANE:

Can we move to the next one and

Okay.

Ms. Tavares, you want her to go each one

23

individually and describe and highlight each

24

program?

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I guess we've never done this
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1

really before, and this might be a good time to look

2

at it.

3

program, right?

4

MS. LEE:

I mean the HOME program is a Federal

Yes.

The HOME program is a Federal program

5

which is administered by HCDCH on Oahu, and

6

generally we receive about a million dollars a year.

7

The HOME funds are primarily for rental housing, and

8

for actually low income for-purchase housing.

9

reason why you see $963,000 there is because the

The

10

difference between that and the 1,086,400 is we are

11

required to set aside monies for certain kinds of

12

non-profits, which we call CHDOs, community housing

13

development organizations, and the only CHDO on Maui

14

is Lokahi Pacific.

15

same amount for

16

same amount for Lokahi Pacific.

17

So every year we set aside that
we are required to set aside that

And so we end up with $963,000.

And usually

18

$63,000 is set aside for our administrative costs.

19

So then we end up with $900,000 to provide grants to

20

the non-profits who request funding.

21

HOME program.

22

So that's the

At some point in time we would like to move

23

that out of our Department, the HOME program.

24

know, we

25

possibly moving that program to the CDBG.

You

we've had preliminary discussions about
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1

very difficult program.

2

and it's almost not worth having.

3

is different.

4

be able to do better with it.

5

It's riddled with red tape,
Then -- but Agnes

She loves red tape, and so she might

The housing contributions, that probably is

6

the EDI monies, Economic Development Initiatives,

7

which we get from the Senator Inouye or from the

8

Federal government.

9

type of situation.

10
11

That's generally a hit-and-miss
Sometimes we get money,

sometimes we don't.
Then Komohana Hale is the apartment building

12

that we have on the west side in Lahaina.

13

you can see, it's fairly flat.

14

that for us, and it's -- we don't lose money, but we

15

don't make much profit on that project.

16

And as

Hale Mahaolu manages

The Section 8 Housing program, this is the

17

program that is pretty much our bread and butter

18

with regard to our Housing Department.

19

about 23 employees, out of like 29, in the Section 8

20

program all paid for by the Federal program.

21

the reason why we are -- you see a deduction of

22

$600,000 there is because of a -- the -- every year

23

the Federal government reevaluates all of its --

24

what we call PHAs, public housing authorities,

25

throughout the nation.

We have

And many, many of the
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1

Section 8 program -- housing programs throughout the

2

country received substantial deductions.

3

were fortunate to have what we consider,

4

comparatively speaking, a minor deduction.

5

we're still holding up at $15 million.

6

way, when I was on the Council, the take on the

7

Section 8 program was more like $9 million, so we,

8

over time, have increased that substantially.

And we

And so

And by the

And what we do is every year we -- or every

9

10

opportunity we write for more vouchers.

11

been very fortunate to be successful in adding to

12

our count because we've taken over many of the

13

vouchers the State had before.

14

the ability to obtain new vouchers, either from the

15

State or from other counties, is our success in a

16

high utilization rate.

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Lee, why don't we stop there just for a

19

moment.

20

Section 8 area.

I know Mr. Hokama had questions in the

Ms. Tavares, if you can yield the floor at

21
22

this point.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

And a lot of this

Moving on to

17

18

And we've

Thank you.

No problem.
Mr. Hokama, would you like to

have further questions in this area?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just one question, Chairman.

Thank

you.
Ms. Lee, I'm looking at 9-S in the narrative.

3
4

Maybe if you could just give comment on the amount

5

expended was over the program budget authority, and

6

how that works with the Section S.

7
8
9

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Hokama, on the narrative on 9-S of the

Program?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, Housing Program.

It's the first

10

bullet under accomplishments, where they're expended

11

14,776,000.

12

MS. LEE:

I'm sorry, Council Member, I'm not sure what

13

your question is.

14

what is your question?

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm reading the paragraph, but

Yeah, how is it able that your

16

section -- your Section 8 program can go over the

17

budget amount?

18

MS. LEE:

All right.

The -- we're not actually spending

19

more than what is allocated to us.

We are -- now

20

we're in a position where we can -- how shall I put

21

this?

22

fashion than in previous years.

23

like, for instance, if Mr. Pontanilla and

24

Ms. Tavares were clients, and previously each one

25

received -- they both have a voucher and previously

We can disburse the monies in a different
One of the ways is
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1

we -- each one received a subsidy of $900 a month.

2

Now we can, in certain circumstances, add Mr. Molina

3

to that -- the use of those funds and spread that

4

money, whereas before we were obligated to payout

5

the full amount of 900 to Mr. Pontanilla and 900 to

6

Ms. Tavares.

7

it out amongst more people.

8

that's why you'll see 101.4 percent of the program's

9

budget authority, that's the reason for that.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Now we can take the $1,800 and spread

Okay.

So you will see that --

I'm just having -- trying to

11

understand this the best I can.

12

no extra money, is that another way of saying it?

13

I'm just trying to understand how you get over 100

14

percent.

15

MS. LEE:

Yes, there's no extra money.

So there's actually

We're -- we have a

16

wait list that's very long.

It's over a thousand

17

people on the wait list.

18

we could, you know, assist more families, but we

19

pretty much use up every voucher that we have.

20

Although -- although there might be anywhere from 25

21

to 50 that may become available a year because some

22

families go off the program or move

23

whatever reason, no longer qualify, maybe they're

24

making too much money, maybe they've committed some

25

kind of violation, so there will be anywhere from 25

So if we had more money,

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808)

524-2090

INC.

you know, for

BF 4/17/06

1
2

66

to 50 a year available for the next people.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

That 14 million in your

3

highlight, accomplishments, that is the whole

4

program amount, Ms. Lee?

5

MS. LEE:

Yes.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, I'm done.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

Any more questions in this area,

8

the Housing program, and there's four programs

9

listed?

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Chair.

Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Mr. Mateo.
Thank you.

On your Section 8

13

program, is there like a minimum/maximum amount that

14

can be given to a family?

15

MS. LEE:

Not a specific amount.

The parameters that we

16

work in are the amount that a family or household

17

makes.

18

for instance, we follow comparative rent -

19

So comparable rents.

20

and everybody in your neighborhood rents, you all

21

have ohanas -- rents out your units for a thousand

22

dollars, and Mr. Molina comes in and he wants to

23

rent one of those units, and one of the people in

24

your neighborhood wants to charge $1,500, well,

25

because of our comparable rent restriction, the most

That's one.

And there -- another one is,

So in other words if
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1

we can assist him is up to a thousand dollars.

2

that we're going to give him the thousand, but as

3

far as the rent ceiling, it would be a thousand

4

dollars.

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

6

the rest, whatever?

7

MS. LEE:

No.

Not

And the client comes up with

Okay, let's say Mr. Molina makes -- we

8

cannot charge him more than 30 percent, yeah?

So in

9

other words, Mr. Molina makes a thousand dollars a

10

month and we can assist him with let's say 600 --

11

$600 towards the rent.

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

13

MS. LEE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

MS. LEE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

And he has to pay the rest.
Thank you.

900.

19

Thank you.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Mateo.

Chairman, thank you very much.

Ms. Lee, the HOME monies, you mentioned that

20

those monies were available for rental and for

21

purchase.

22

home purchases through this program for the low

23

income?

24
25

MS. LEE:

Has the Department participated in any

We have given grants to Lokahi Pacific.

given grants to Hale Mahaolu.

We've

We've given grants to
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1

Ridings, Charlie Ridings.

2

$900,000 to -- that's available for grants,

3

have non-profits with multi-million dollar projects,

4

it's

5

help to maybe put up one or two units, but there

6

that's not enough money to really make a big

7

difference or a big dent in anyone of project.

8
9

it's just

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

When you have, let's say,

it helps, you know.

and you

The monies

So at this particular point, then

so apparently we haven't really been involved in a

10

direct -- say a voucher home ownership program using

11

either HOME monies or Section 8 monies?

12
13

14
15

MS. LEE:

Oh, we are in the process of creating a voucher

home ownership program with the Section 8 program.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Would that also be able to utilize

HOME monies as well?

16

MS. LEE:

No.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

18

MS. LEE:

No.

No.

The voucher program is like if you're on

19

our program receiving, let's say, $900 a month rent

20

subsidy, that could be converted to a mortgage

21

payment.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

That's the home ownership program.
Okay.

And that's something that

23

your Department apparently is looking at in the near

24

future?

25

MS. LEE:

As soon as we can get our Administrative Rules
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reviewed and finalized with Corp. Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

implement this program?

4

MS. LEE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

8

And you would have the manpower to

Yes.
Thank you.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

More questions in this area,

Members, under the Housing program?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Ms. Anderson.

Thank you, Chair.

Ms. Lee, the HOME program, is it strictly for

9

10

funding the building of rental or for-purchase

11

units?

12

MS. LEE:

No, not just the building.

We've used monies

13

for like a home ownership program, home ownership

14

counseling program, we've used those funds from

15

there before.

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Is there any rental assistance

available through this program?

18

MS. LEE:

Yes, but it's not an easy one to administer.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

8?

21

MS. LEE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

MS. LEE:

It's more difficult than Section

Yes.
And because?

Well, we would have to create Administrative

24

Rules.

We would have to get all kinds of approvals

25

from HCDCH.

They're a very, very difficult
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1

organization to work with.

2

change, you know, like the tides, and it's hard

3

to -- it's really hard to satisfy their

4

requirements.

5

before, but right now we're having so much

6

difficulty with them that it's pretty hard to keep

7

working with them.

8
9

10
11
12
13

Their rules seem to

We've looked at a rental program

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, that's very sad to hear,

since they're the conduit for all the Federal money
that we get.
MS. LEE:

Not all the Federal money, only the HOME

program.

CDBG is different.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, I'm talking about what the

14

State gets from HUD as far as overall programs.

15

They administer quite a few of them.

16
17
18

MS. LEE:

Luckily not the Section 8 either, so we're

talking about $900,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right.

19

budgeted in 'OS?

20

there nothing available?

21
22

23
24
25

MS. LEE:

I don't know.

And so why was there none

Did we not apply for them or was
What happened with 'OS?

I think that's an oversight.

We

receive HOME monies every year.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Could you check on that and let

us know what happened with 'OS?
MS. LEE:

Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And then on the Section 8, even

2

though the operations have been reduced in their

3

funding by $600,000, the wages and salaries have

4

gone up by 60,000.

5

6

MS. LEE:

I can't give you any specifics.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

CHAIR KANE:

10

I'd have to --

I'd have to get back to you in writing.

7

9

Would you explain that?

Okay, thank you.

Any more questions in this area, Members,

under the Housing program?

Moving on to the Human

Concerns program.

11

Ms. Lee, to continue with Ms. Tavares'

12

request just to provide us with some comment,

13

Juvenile Accountability Block Grant Program, a new

14

request, as well as the Kupuna Care Program, new

15

request according to the zeros previous to this

16

year's proposal.

17

MS. LEE:

Comments in that area?

Yes, the Juvenile Accountability Block Grant

18

Program is another program that we applied for, and

19

hopefully -- you know, hopefully we will receive

20

funding in that area.

21

probably the Police Department -- more the Police

22

Department than a non-profit to implement that

23

program.

24
25

We would be working with

Kupuna Care comes under Office on Aging.
Every year we ask for more funding because --
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1

because of other costs going up, such as salaries

2

and operational costs.

3

the actual service to clients.

4

for -- well, I'll try to receive -- try to apply for

5

more monies.

6

at Kaunoa and, you know, that's really not that much

7

money that we're talking about.

8

that's just the normal adjustment.

9

operations and equipment.

10

That leaves less monies for
So every year we ask

The leisure program is, as you know,

Salaries and wages,
No change in

Then on the nutrition side, nutrition would

11

be the Congregate and Meals on Wheels Programs, and

12

we are asking for $217,000.

13

Incentive, I'd have to get back to you on that.

14

sorry, I just don't have that information with me.

15

Retired --

16

CHAIR KANE:

The Nutrition Services

We'll stop there just for a moment.

I'm

And,

17

Members, I'm aware that 728 got passed by, but we'll

18

get back to that page.

19

we had some zeroed up to this year, and then new

20

program add.

21

amount changes are pretty much -- are very small, if

22

anything, so we'll touch base on that in just a

23

moment, but just for the new program additions, I

24

know there's three that Ms. Lee touched on, Members,

25

Juvenile Accountability, Kupuna Care, as well as the

The reason I ask was because

The previous page you'll see we have
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1

Nutrition Service Incentive Programs.

2

in this area?

3

us on the nutrition services with the additional

4

detail on that.

respond.
Mr. Mateo, questions, and then Ms. Tavares.

7

8

And I know Ms. Lee will get back to

Staff, if you can, please, so Ms. Lee can

5
6

Any questions

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you very much.

Ms. Lee, just for clarification, I could have

9

10

misunderstood.

11

Nutrition Service Incentive Program, you reference

12

this as part of the Meals on Wheels?

13
14

MS. LEE:

No, I said the nutrition program includes our

Congregate Program and Meals on Wheels.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

16

MS. LEE:

17
18

Your comments regarding the

And how --

But I don't have information on this NSIP,

$217,000 addition.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

So how does that differ,

19

then, from the page prior, 7-28, home-delivered

20

meals program, because that's your Meals on Wheels,

21

right?

22

MS. LEE:

Yeah, home deliveries is Meals on Wheels.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So this particular one, then,

24

nutrition services, would be an addition to that

25

Meals on Wheels program?
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1

MS. LEE:

Yes.

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And we'll follow up with the written, yeah.
Okay, thank you.

Ms. Tavares.
Yes, thank you.

On your Kupuna

6

Care Program, the 695-plus thousand, you said that

7

you requested more?

8

first time for this program.

9

MS. LEE:

This looks like this is the

I think I was trying to explain that because of

10

operational costs going up all the time and salaries

11

and so forth, it cuts into our -- the monies

12

available for client services.

13

reason why we're asking for more monies.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

MS. LEE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

CHAIR KANE:

So this is the

Oh, this is the more monies?

Yeah.

Thank you.

Okay.

All right, thank you.

Members, any questions on 7-28?

18

Again, those are programs that I think reflect the

19

'06 Budget current and then going into the request,

20

except for some minor adjustments under your A

21

account on Assisted Transportation Program, as well

22

as your Congregate Meals Program, A account

23

adjustments.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

Yes, Ms. Anderson.
I have a question back on the

Kupuna Care Program.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Sure, go ahead.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So, Ms. Lee, this is

if I understand what you said, is to cover

3

695,000,

4

overruns of other programs or

5

MS. LEE:

this

Not overruns, but our operational side, expenses

6

keep going up.

And what happens with that is when

7

we have let's say the monies for the entire program,

8

which would mean for clients -- for clients,

9

operations, salaries, then as the salaries and the

10

operational costs go up, that leaves less money for

11

the clients.

12

amount that we provide for our clients.

13

So we need to increase

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

increase the

And so why couldn't you put this

14

increase with the respective programs that need this

15

help, rather than just lump it into one big sum here

16

so we can see, you know, which programs need, you

17

know, assistance because of salary and operational

18

cost increases?

19

MS. LEE:

The Kupuna Care is a program by itself.

It's

20

only for kupunas.

It's only for those that meet the

21

age requirements, the financial requirements, and

22

the evaluation requirements.

23

you know, you have something wrong with you in some

24

way.

25

years old can access this program.

In other words, you

It's not like a perfectly healthy person at 60
You have to meet
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1

the eligibility requirements for the Kupuna Care

2

Program.

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So where is that program in the

budget?
MS. LEE:

It's under Office on Aging.

It should be under

Office on Aging.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so why couldn't we put this

funding with that program there?
MS. LEE:

Well, this is not County funds.

It's grant

revenue.

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

MS. LEE:

From?

Well, it's looking like the State, but I'm not

13

absolutely sure.

14

Federal under the grant revenue program.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

It's either going to be State or

So you're applying for these

grants?

17

MS. LEE:

Yes.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

All right, thank you, Chair.

19

CHAIR KANE:

Any further questions on these,

Thank you.

20

Members, 7-28, 7-29?

21

continuing into the Retired Senior Program.

22

that area is level request from '06 into this

23

current proposal of '07, with the adjustment -- very

24

minor adjustment in your A account.

25

Healthy is a flat request across the State program,

I know I stopped Ms. Lee from
Again,

Start Living
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1

the Start Living Healthy Program, coming from the

2

Health Department.
Title III program, Ms. Lee, I know we have a

3
4

huge reduction in the operational account, if you

5

can assist us in that area, please.

6

page 7-29, Members.

7

MS. LEE:

Again, Mr. Chair, I'm going to have to get back

8

to you.

9

say.

10

Title IlIon

It's probably tied to -- well, I better not

I'm going to have to get back to you.

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So, Staff, if you can follow up on

11

that one, a little over 600,000 less monies for the

12

operations under the Title III.
Ms. Lee, on page 7-30, Title V incentive is a

13

14
15

new request.
MS. LEE:

Comments there?

Another program that we're working with the

16

Prosecutor's Office and the Police Department

17

applying for this grant, $90,000.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

And then, Members,

just the specifics

19

on the A accounts for the various housing as well as

20

Human Concerns programs, just breaking down the A

21

accounts for you by salary and wage.

22

in this final area, Members?

Any questions

Just for clarity.

Ms. Tavares, any additional question?

23
24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

No, thank you.

Members?

Hearing none.
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1

thank you very much.

2

you, and given our timing,

3

to us as soon as you can.

4

MS. LEE:

5

CHAIR KANE:

We'll have questions sent to
I hope you can get back

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Thank you very much.
Members, the Chair's intent is to bring

6

7

forward our County Clerk.

I know Mr. Hokama has to

8

step away in a few minutes, and so reiterating,

9

Mr. Chair, if you don't mind, that your comments

10

regarding the Clerk's Office from Office of Council

11

Services comments that you had taken a look at the

12

proposals and that you had no objections to what was

13

proposed.

14

again, so thank you for that.

15

take care of another appointment, so we'll go ahead

16

and invite up the County Clerk at this time, Mr. Roy

17

Hiraga.

18

So I just wanted to acknowledge that
And I know you had to

Members, if you can, please, direct your

19

attention to the request -- requested proposal for

20

the County Clerk's Office on your Details, page 4 1.

21

And your -

22

And we have with us, again, Mr. Roy Hiraga, our

23

County Clerk.

24
25

and also on your Program Budget, 6-1.

Good morning, Mr. Hiraga, any opening remarks
for your proposed budget?
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MR. HlRAGA:

Good morning, Chair and Members.

Real

2

briefly, at the macro level, just to let you know,

3

we are looking at opening an absentee walk site on

4

the west side, and we're also planning to conduct

5

some community outreach activities to -- in

6

conjunction with voter registration programs.

7

we're also planning to conduct some drive-through

8

voter registration programs with community groups.

9

And that concludes my preliminary comments.

10
11

12

CHAIR KANE:

Members, the Chair will open it up for

questions.

Ms. Anderson.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

And

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Hiraga, I didn't hear your first comment,

14

something about opening something on the west side.

15

What was that?

16

MR. HIRAGA:

Yeah, we're looking at opening up an absentee

17

walk site, an early voting site on the west side,

18

most likely at the Lahaina Civic Center facility.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And could you explain a little

20

bit more about the efforts you're going to take for

21

voter registration, because I'm so happy to hear

22

you're going to do something proactive in that

23

regard, because we have such a terrible turnout in

24

voters in Maui County.

25

MR. HIRAGA:

Well, first off, I don't personally think
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1

that these programs will affect the turn out, per

2

se.

3

groups to operate these community-based voter

4

registration programs.

5

Deputy Voter Registrar programs that we already run

6

every election year.

7

six.

8

pre-scheduled.

9

conduct a class if we receive sufficient requests.

10
11

But we are planning to work with community

That's in addition to the

This year we already conducted

We have a total of six more already
We also accept requests or will

Basically that's ten per class.
In addition to that the State is -- through

12

that Help America Vote Act, which I'll be referring

13

to as HAVA, if further questions arise, but

14

basically because of that Federal program, we

15

State is going to apportion monies -- a pot of

16

monies for the counties to use to conduct what they

17

call these drive-through voter registration

18

programs.

19

will work with community groups and we'll enter into

20

contracts with these groups.

21

non-profit status.

22

groups conduct these registration drives in areas

23

that they feel is most advantageous to their

24

community.

25

Basically what it is is we

- our office

They have to have

But basically we'll have the

And we've also -- although it hasn't been
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1

very successful, every election year we work with

2

the State and DOE to visit all the high schools,

3

private schools.

4

dismal than normal.

5

of 12,000 voter registration packets.

6

week, we received -- the State received less than

7

300 responses.

8

We've told the DOE that we think these voter

9

registration programs have to start at a lower grade

This year the response was more
Statewide we sent out in excess
As of last

And that just gives you an idea.

10

level, similar to these anti-smoking campaigns, but

11

so far they've basically left the program to target

12

seniors.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So when you say they sent out

14

these voter registration packets, you mean they're

15

sending them to high schools and junior colleges

16

where you might find somebody close to 18?

17

MR. HIRAGA:

Yes.

That's correct.

In the past we've

18

actually sent staff out to the high schools that

19

wanted to be involved.

20

the DOE worked out an arrangement whereby these

21

packets were actually sent to the students' personal

22

mailing addresses, as opposed to conducting a

23

session in specific high schools.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

This past year the State and

And that resulted in a 300

turnout?
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MR. HIRAGA:

Less than 300 responses relative to a mail

out in excess of 12,000.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, that's not working.

A quarter of a percent.
Then on the drive-bys, you

6

mean -- do you mean that -- a place where someone

7

can just, say, on the way home from work drive up

8

and get the form, be assisted in filling it out, and

9

turn it in right there and then drive on?

10

MR. HIRAGA:

Actually, that program has evolved a little

11

bit.

Initially when we conducted this program, my

12

recollection was in '94 for the first time, it was a
true drive-through program where in '94 we worked

14

with the Boy Scouts organization.

15

stand in the parking lot of the War Memorial

16

Athletic Complex, but the program has evolved to the

17

point now where we basically empower these community

18

groups to format the program as they see fit, and

19

it's kind of evolved into more of like the standard

20

type of voter registration where you park, you go to

21

a table, you talk to people.

22

the program that we're envisioning moving forward.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Okay.

They set up a

So that's basically

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
Mr. Molina, followed by Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

Good morning, Mr. Hiraga.

2

You know, you

3

mentioned the registration is to be done by groups

4

who feel that, you know, whatever community they

5

represent can benefit the most from.

6

are you going to be targeting groups that are more

7

broad based, rather than groups that may have, say,

8

certain agendas?

9

I'm concerned about, you may have certain groups

10

that are very biased towards certain issues, and

11

there may be the potential for possible influence on

12

the registration of voters that certain groups may

13

tell these people, oh, by the way, vote, and by the

14

way, these are the people that represent our

15

interests, these are people you should consider.

16

You know, how are we going to monitor that?

17

MR. HIRAGA:

My question is

Because the thing is that -- what

That's a good question, Councilmember Molina.

18

And in fact the way we've decided to approach

19

this -- and we've basically all agreed, the four

20

counties and the State of Hawaii, has basically

21

agreed conceptually as to the parameters of the

22

program.

23

apolitical or non-profit groups that do not have

24

political ties.

25

registration activities is basically -- when they

But basically the offer will be open to

Also, any group conducting voter

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/17/06

84

1

come through our class, they're basically instructed

2

not to conduct lobbying when they're doing this

3

voter registration activity.

4

hear about people being encouraged to take a certain

5

position, we will contact that DVR and basically

6

remind him as to -- him or her as to his or her's

7

responsibilities.

8
9

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So basically if we

And do they get, what, one warning

and if the action continues then immediately -- what
type of penalties or actions -MR. HIRAGA:

We'll decertify that DVR and prohibit him or

12

her from taking in any further voter registration

13

affidavits.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

And I bring it up because I heard

15

about occasions -- or incidents like this happening

16

in the last election, so there was some folks who

17

were trying to register people and then they were

18

throwing in their influence, I guess, upon potential

19

voters.

20

matter open to the public to hear about.

21

MR. HIRAGA:

Well, anyway, I just thought I'd make that

Basically, I guess, if the public is

22

watching, if you hear or if you witness any of that

23

type of activity, please call our office.

24

have

25

previously, so we will follow up.

And we

we have decertified voter registrars
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Molina.

Thank you, Chairman.
Ms. Tavares.

In light of that, there is really

4

nothing to stop anybody from handing out the

5

application forms, as long as they don't fill them

6

out.

7

on their own.

The individual can fill it out and mail it in

8

MR. HI RAGA :

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10

MR. HIRAGA:

That's correct.
That's correct.

Deputy Voter Registrars, after they're

11

certified, are authorized to collect these

12

affidavits, which nobody else is supposed to do.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Oh, okay.

The other question I

14

have is what are we doing as a County to reach our

15

County employees, and in particular those County

16

employees that are on, you know, 24/7 shifts, as far

17

as encouraging them to apply for absentee ballots,

18

such as the Fire Department, the Police Department,

19

water safety officers, or anyone else in the County

20

employ?

21

outreach for that?

22

MR. HIRAGA:

Are we doing any particular reach -- or

Besides our normal media type of activities

23

where we use Pacific Radio Group, Akaku, Maui News,

24

we even use -- and I don't think it's to tell them

25

about absentee voting, but we even use the County
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1

checks to pass messages on to our employees.

2

basically I believe all the departments are aware of

3

our conduct of this early voting activity, and it's

4

very evident from the number and the people that

5

vote in our --

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

But

I know the people in this

7

building, because we have the walk-in voting on the

8

7th floor,

9

in the outlying districts, or like Police

that's availed to them, but those who are

10

Department, for example, the Fire Department, where

11

they have stations allover the place, you know,

12

they don't have that convenience, perhaps, of just

13

coming down to the 7th floor -- coming up to the 7th

14

floor to vote.

15

And I recall back when I tried to get some

16

absentee ballot applications to the Police

17

Department, and it caused rather a furor because I

18

was the one who was dropping them off.

19

collecting them.

20

I think the Police Department ended up writing to

21

you and getting their own stack of -- I don't think

22

you were the County Clerk then too, excuse me, but,

23

I think there should be some sort of program --

24

anywhere that we see that there are workers that

25

have other than a normal -- not normal, but a work

I was just dropping them off.
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1

shift that's 8:00 to 4:30 or 8:00 to 5:00, that we

2

make this available.

3

The hospital, for example, do we do any

4

outreach at the hospital regarding voter

5

registration and absentee voting?

6

workers, these are other groups of people that I

7

think we should perhaps do a little more outreach

8

and make it easier for them to participate in our

9

process.

The hotel

I mean, we have the lowest voting turn out

10

in the nation.

11

and that's a little bit, you know, sad.

12

the list has been purged and all that, so I'm

13

anxiously awaiting what happens, but I think if we

14

can help people by, you know,

15

making those forms available to them to request an

16

absentee ballot, you no longer have to be out State,

17

off island, or sick to get a vote by absentee.

18

Anybody can vote absentee now.

19

see us go more in that direction, and in fact think

20

that if we had more vote by mail, we might be able

21

to save some money with operating some of the polls

22

that we have.

23

You know, we're under 30 percent,
And I know

informing them or

So I would like to

And I know that I've heard from the State

24

that it's more expensive to mail than it is to

25

operate a poll, but I really don't believe that.
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1

And I understand also that there's legislation going

2

through right now to raise the per diem

3

stipend for the workers, and the number of workers

4

is getting

5

coming out to the polls.

6

diehards every year -- I mean, some of them have

7

been working at the polls for 50 years or 60 years,

8

and there's not new people coming in to take their

9

place at the rate I think that all of us are

10

you know,

or the

fewer and fewer workers are
You know, the regular

comfortable with.
So I just thought, you know, we could do a

11

12

little bit more to get the word out by either just

13

taking batches of voter registration forms and the

14

absentee application forms -- I don't know how many

15

you have in your office that are available.

16

have by the thousands in there pretty much?

17

MR. HIRAGA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19
20

Do you

Yes.
Do you have any plans to do stuff

like at the hospital or the hotels?
MR. HIRAGA:

Actually, we've already been working with the

21

county Administration, so since 2001 we have

22

distributed not only voter registration affidavits,

23

but also those absentee voting affidavit requests.

24

We also have them in all the public libraries, the

25

post office, the State agency -- any State agency
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1

that deals with the public is supposed to be

2

offering those brochures also, or those applications

3

also, and -

4

allow us to use $10,000 to conduct media campaigns,

5

we basically conduct -- we, if my memory is -- my

6

memory serves me right, I think in conjunction with

7

the last election, working with Pacific Radio Group,

8

we had almost 3,000 separate advertisements go out

9

over Pacific Radio Group.

and basically through your proposal to

And as far as the hospital is concerned, we

10
11

work with basically the administrators.

12

administrators are aware that even on election day,

13

if they run into a situation where somebody was

14

planning to go to the precinct to vote and had an

15

accident and ended up in the hospital, that we have

16

delivered ballots to the hospital on election day.

So the

So basically I think -- I think we're pretty

17
18

well covered, you know.

19

percent, yeah, I think our turnout has been low

20

Statewide, but in the '04 general Maui did hit 61.6

21

percent.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

MR. HIRAGA:

And in response to that 30

In the general.

And as far as

as far as absentee voting is

24

concerned, you know, we anticipate quite an

25

increase.

We've got basically from -- we've gone
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1

basically from about 11,000 in 2000 to 19, to now

2

22,000 in this past election either walk-in or by

3

mail.

4

increase by another 17 percent in this -- in this

5

coming election.

And we're projecting that we're going to

So we think we're getting the word out there.

6
7

Can't force people to vote, but affidavits are

8

available.

9

almost anywhere you go you can pick up a voter

I mean, they're basically ubiquitous,

10

registration affidavit.

11

license, you can register to vote.

12

staff has done a good job, actually.

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

You go to renew your
Yeah, I think my

Mr. Chair.

Please.
You know that State effort to get

16

the high school kids, my understanding was that they

17

sent them out to 16-year olds.

18

MR. HIRAGA:

Yes.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

MR. HIRAGA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

MR. HIRAGA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And not the seniors.

It's the junior and senior class, basically.
Juniors and seniors?

Yeah, but people can register from age 16.
Right, from age 16, but I just

24

wondering what their target audience, because 16

25

year olds, the farthest thing from their mind is
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voting.
MR. HIRAGA:

Yeah, I mean.
And it doesn't really seem to be on the mind

of the 18 year old either.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, only a few of them.

Only a

few of them, that's right.
MR. HIRAGA:

Basically we aren't giving up the fight.

We

7

think -- the election community thinks that, you

8

know, there's probably a better strategy, but we

9

defer to the DOE at this point and we'll basically

10

11

do what we can to increase the
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So if someone requests -- if

12

someone or a company or establishment requests forms

13

for both the registration and the absentee ballot,

14

do we tell them to get in touch with the Clerk's

15

Office and you'll make arrangements to bring those

16

forms to their -- to their place of employ?

17

saying, for example, Maui Medical Group, because

18

that's where I go, they already asked, and I don't

19

know if I can pick up the 400 that they need, or

20

they think they need for that particular building.

21

So what would be the proper way to get their needs

22

fulfilled?

23

MR. HIRAGA:

I'm

Yeah, we -- usually on those bulk

24

distributions we work with our Deputized Voter

25

Registrars and we do hand out I believe it's in
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1

packets of a hundred, and they can come weekly, but

2

if they have a bigger group, basically what we do is

3

we try to keep track of those voter registration

4

affidavits so we know where they're coming from.

5

The ones in the libraries have a certain code, ones

6

in the post office have a certain code.

7

registrars have a unique code.

8

guys are aware of people needing the forms, give us

9

the names and we'll make the contact.

All our

But basically if you

What we want -- what we want to avoid, as

10
11

we've seen in the past, are people that come in and

12

say they need thousands because of, you know, and we

13

have a hard time verifying that these groups are

14

actually out there.

15

review, we find that maybe we got 20 back from this

16

person that said they need 2,000.

17

to basically throw our money away.

18

sure those forms are used.

19

there's a legitimate reason, we'll have no

20

objections to distributing forms by the hundreds.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And in the post-election

So we don't want
We want to make

But if we know that

Okay, thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you, Chair.

My concern

24

deals with the seniors here on Maui.

You know,

25

we -- once in a while I think all of us go out to

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/17/06

93

1

the senior programs, and one of the things that they

2

ask, especially in election year, is how do I get

3

registered.

4

to the precinct, what do I do, so we call your

5

office and we say, absentee ballot would be the

6

thing to go.

7

understand, but there's a whole lot that don't

8

understand the absentee ballot process.

9

I

I

don't have any transportation to get

And most of them pretty well

don't know if you have any outreach program

10

or education in regards to notifying our seniors

11

that this is one way that, you know, you can vote.

12

Because we don't have transportation for seniors

13

from the senior housing areas, some of them just

14

don't go out and vote.

15

that, you know, you probably need to have some

16

concentration on in regards to getting your voting

17

percentage up

18

up.

19

MR. HIRAGA:

So I think that's one area

or getting our voting percentage

Point taken.

I don't believe we actively

20

conduct sessions for senior citizens.

21

the reasons, at least one of the reasons that I feel

22

we don't direct a lot of resources into this area is

23

because the senior citizen group is always the group

24

that has the highest turn out regardless of what the

25

election is about.

So I think that that group,
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1

because -- and maybe I can't speak for the ones that

2

don't participate in these senior programs, but it

3

appears that the seniors that participate in these

4

programs, they share whatever information or

5

experiences that they had about elections.

6

can look at -- you can pick any election year, and I

7

can almost guarantee you that the senior citizen

8

group had the highest and best turn out of any other

9

group bar none.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

But you

And the reason why

11

I bring it up, because of, you know, when we do

12

close down the precinct, like I told you, that was

13

really convenient for the seniors, now they have to,

14

you know, traverse by feet for about a mile, and

15

some of them just can't walk, yeah.

16

solution would be how about a precinct in a housing

17

area, a huge housing area.

18

MR. HIRAGA:

And maybe a

Yeah, if I may, in the off election years

19

basically one of the activities that we conduct is

20

to scour the County to find new polling places.

21

you guys are aware, you know, certain areas like

22

Wailea, Kapalua, they're not really -- I don't know

23

whether encouraging is the right word, but they're

24

not really building public or quasi-public

25

facilities.

As

And the other component, the staffing
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1

of these polling places, which Councilmember Tavares

2

alluded to, is also becoming a problem.

3

And on the mainland, specifically Laramount

4

County Colorado, they've tried a new approach to

5

voting, and a lot of other counties are considering

6

moving toward that approach because of the

7

difficulty with staffing the precincts.

8

Laramount County used

9

super voting centers.

But

established super centers,
But basically what happened

10

was they replaced -- and I don't recall the exact

11

numbers, but it was something like they replaced 60

12

or 80 regular polling places with five super

13

centers.

14

these super centers, some of which were located in

15

big malls, all ballot types were available.

16

regardless of where you live, you could go to the

17

super center to vote.

18

The difference is if you go to anyone of

So

Of course that also affects a lot of people

19

that desire to go to the polling place in their

20

neighborhood, which now might be 20 miles away.

21

basically because attracting poll workers

22

difficulty in attracting poll workers is not

23

exclusive to Maui County.

24

resorting to trying to bring -- brainstorm and come

25

up with different types of arrangements.

So

the

So a lot of locales are
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Just one

2

comment.

3

I -- when they offered like $40 for 13, 14 hours of

4

work, so, you know, those people really work for

5

their money.

I used to work in the polling area when

Thank you, Chair.

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Ms. Anderson, you have the floor.
Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Hiraga, do you know if there is a State

8
9

Thank you.

or Federal law that requires employers to let

10

employees leave on a voting day to register -- I

11

mean to register their vote?

12

MR. HIRAGA:

Councilmember Anderson, yeah, there's a State

13

law that requires an employer to allow their

14

employee a minimum of two consecutive hours to vote

15

between

16

a.m. to 6:00 p.m., but the normal eight hour person,

17

the normal worker on an eight-hour shift wouldn't be

18

affected, I guess, basically.

19

work -- you'd almost have to work an eleven-hour or

20

ten-hour shift, I guess.

21

between the hours of 7:00 and 6:00, 7:00

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

You'd almost have to

And that's leave without pay?

I

22

mean, if they're a salaried employee, they're not

23

going to deduct two hours off their pay to do that?

24

The reason I'm bringing it up, Roy, is because, you

25

know, I love the fact that we have an engaged older
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1

community, but my concern is the younger generation,

2

because they are not engaged.
And I spoke with three different young people

3
4

during the -- after the last election, and, you

5

know, it was just people I came across in my -- one

6

person worked in a car agency, a large car agency,

7

another person worked in a convenience store, and

8

another person worked at a fast food place.

9

asked all of them, they were young people, if they

10

voted, and they said they wanted to vote, but they

11

couldn't get to the polls to vote.

12

not?

13

of the County and in different types of jobs, but

14

they were all hourly wage employees and they all

15

said

16

work week.

17

work to come and vote, that they would be docked

18

that from their pay.

19

And I

And I said, why

And their explanation, all in different places

and most of them part-time, not a 40-hour
And they all said if they took time off

And I'm not making this up.

Every single one

20

of them told me they could not afford to take two

21

hours off their weekly pay because they live so

22

tight, you know, to their paycheck that they

23

couldn't afford that.

24

just wondering what we can do to address that.

25

MR. HIRAGA:

So that's very sad.

And I'm

For clarification, are you saying that -
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1

they're saying between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and

2

6:00 p.m. they don't have two consecutive hours to

3

vote?

4

issue of pay.

And I don't believe State law addresses the

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

MR. HIRAGA:

No, what I'm saying

It basically just says the employer shall

7

allow the employee two consecutive hours to vote on

8

election day --

9

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Anderson

10

MR. HIRAGA:

-- between the hours of 7:00 a.m. an 6:00

11

p.m.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

MR. HIRAGA:

Yeah.

No, what I'm --

So basically unless you're working a ten-hour

14

shift or unless you're working a nine-hour shift

15

from eight to five,

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I don't believe -It's not the hour -- it's not the

17

hours.

18

time they left the job to --

19

MR. HIRAGA:

It's that they would be docked the amount of

Yeah, but if they have two hours to vote, I

20

mean, yeah, you cannot take two hours in the middle

21

of the day.

22

5:00, you cannot take two hours from that workday,

23

because you already have the 7:00 to 9:00 two-hour

24

block.

25

the 3:00 to 6:00 p.m. block.

If -- let's say you work from 9:00 to

Or if you work from 7:00 till 3:00, you have
So as long as you have

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/17/06

99

1

two consecutive hours, then the way I interpret that

2

statute is then the employer is not responsible.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But my point, and I think maybe

4

the absentee ballot is where we need to get this

5

absentee ballot out to all of these kind of places

6

that employ part-time people, because if you're part

7

time, chances are highly likely that you're going to

8

be working two or three part-time jobs.

9

what this guy told me that worked at one of the

And that's

10

major auto dealers.

11

after this job, and he said because I've got 45

12

minutes to get to my next job.

13

know, an envelope of time available.

14

really wanted to vote, so -- and you're telling me

15

there's no -- you know, nothing in the statute that

16

says they have to let people vote and still pay

17

their salary while they're gone?

18

MR. HIRAGA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

CHAIR KANE:

I said, well, why can't you go

So there is not, you
And he said he

That's my recollection.
Okay.

Thank you very much.

Members, any questions in the proposed

21

request from the County Clerk?

As you'll note,

22

every other year you'll see an increase because of

23

elections for election requirements.

24

you'll see a smaller budget because of that no

25

election cycle, or in the middle of the election

Off years
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1

cycle.

2

Mr. Hiraga go?

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

6

Any questions in this area before we let

Chair.

Yes, Mr. Mateo.
Chairman.

Thank you very much, and

if I'm out of line, you can just let me know.
Mr. Clerk, this is in regards to your

7

8

expansion.

That one position for Elections Clerk

9

and Warehouse Specialist, there is no word temporary

10

before it.

11

are requesting or is this indicative of just

12

election time?

13

MR. HlRAGA:

Is this a full-time position that you

I'm glad you asked that question, Mr. Mateo.

14

In discussing our office's proposal with the

15

Chairman -- well, let me back up.

16

justification for the position.

17

of you know, we have been very fortunate to have

18

Mr. Ken Kawaguchi serve as our Temporary Election

19

Clerk.

20

much more difficult because of this help America

21

Vote Act, and basically all of these extra services

22

that were mandated by the Federal government to

23

provide.

24
25

First, the
Basically.

As most

The work of the warehouse person has become

With that said, Mr. Kawaguchi, who has been
our Temporary Election Warehouse Clerk since the
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1996 election, and we basically bring him on only in

2

the election period, has decided that he is now

3

ready to retire permanently.

4

services.

5

Mr. Kawaguchi extensively to take care of all the

6

warehouse activities, we now feel it's prudent for

7

us to bring on a full-time permanent employee that

8

can learn from Mr. Kawaguchi in this coming

9

election, and hopefully subsequent to this election,

So we won't have his

And because we have come to rely on

10

that person will be ready to take on the task by him

11

or herself.
If I could add one more thing.

12

The Chairman

13

did want you to consider changing that Civil Service

14

position into an appointed position in the event

15

election warehouse activities are changed

16

drastically because of our approach to conducting

17

elections.

18

eliminate that position if that situation arose in

19

the future.

He wanted the ability to be able to

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Any final questions before we take our lunch,

22

Members?

23

Hearing none.

24
25

Thank you, Chairman.

Any final questions for the Clerk?

Mr. Hiraga, thank you very much for your
presence this morning.

We appreciate it.
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1

MR. HIRAGA:

Thank you, Chair and Members.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Members, we're going to take our mid-day

3

recess.

4

recess until 1:30, okay, 1:30.

5

recess.

Members, we're going to
Committee stands in

(Gavel)

11: 54 a.m.

6

RECESS:

7

RECONVENE:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

Time now is 11:55.

1: 37 p.m.

All right, Members.

you for that lunch break.

We're reconvened.

Hope all of you got your

10

necessary nourishment requirements.

11

after 1:30.

12

Department of Fire to go over their operational

13

proposal for the Fiscal Year '07.

14

this afternoon's Committee meeting we have all

15

members in attendance.

16
17
18

Thank

It's a little

This afternoon we have with us the

In attendance for

Thank you very much.

Mr. Ginoza, any opening remarks from you
prior to us starting with our afternoon session?
MR. GINOZA:

Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members.

19

Before we start on the operation discussion, I'd

20

just like to mention that we did have a supplemental

21

appropriation for fire equipment before this

22

Committee, I believe, that has not been heard yet,

23

and this item, which is about 1.2 million, is not

24

included in the carryover savings.

25

let the members know.

So I thought I'd

And these are for fire
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1

equipment that the Fire Department can discuss if

2

requested during their operations session.
In addition to that, Mr. Chairman, if I may,

3

4

there's one item in the operations which I believe I

5

need to explain, or did you want to just wait until

6

we've reached that item for me to explain?

7
8

CHAIR KANE:

The item that you're referencing in your

opening remarks, Mr. Ginoza?

9

MR. GINOZA:

No, it's a separate item.

10

CHAIR KANE:

And that item, I'm sorry, is related to what?

11

MR. GINOZA:

Operations.

12

CHAIR KANE:

Why don't we wait until we get to that area.

13

MR. GINOZA:

Okay.

14

CHAIR KANE:

And if you just grab the attention of the

15

Chair, then we'll highlight that at the beginning of

16

that program area.

17

MR. GINOZA:

Okay, thank you.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Members, also with respects to

19

the opening remarks of our Budget Director, in

20

the -- in your Budget and Finance folders for you

21

and your staffs' review, there's Budget and Finance

22

Item No. 73, had to do with appropriating additional

23

funds in the amount of $1.2 million for the fire

24

rescue operations program by increasing carryover

25

savings General Fund by $1.2 million, and that the
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1

supplemental appropriation was necessary to provide

2

additional funds to purchase the following

3

equipment:

4

Kahului Fire Station in the amount of 500,000; two,

5

a 1,500-gallon per minute pumper for the Lahaina

6

Fire Station in the amount of 550,000; and a fire

7

rescue boat for the Lahaina Fire Station in the

8

amount of 150,000.

First, a heavy rescue truck for the

This item was not taken up during the

9

10

regular -- regular scheduled meetings because we

11

just didn't have the meeting space to provide the

12

request, which was received from the Administration

13

I believe on February 9th, and it was considered as

14

County Communication 06-65, which,

15

Members, I don't know what the date of the Council

16

meeting that took it in as a County Communication,

17

but, again, we did not have time and it's not

18

included in the Fiscal Year '07 Budget, so that is

19

for your information.

20

Good afternoon, Chief Kaupalolo, Deputy Chief

21

Bal.

22

opening remarks.

23

I'm sorry,

We'll provide you with the opportunity for

Members, for your information, 6-1 in your

24

Details and 8-1 in your Program are your reference

25

points to begin our this afternoon discussion.
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Chief Kaupalolo.

1

2

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Thank you.

Good afternoon, Chair and good

3

afternoon, Budget Committee Members.

4

be here with you again to share with you our request

5

for this year's Fiscal Budget,

6

'06,

We're glad to

'07.

With me this afternoon I have Deputy Chief

7

Neal Bal, Special Operations Officer Greg Jenkins.

8

I would like to just, again, reiterate as what the

9

Budget Director had also mentioned, we'll be open to

10

questions for that, if that's necessary.

11

Mr. Chair, I would turn this back over to you.

12

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you.

If not,

Members, to, again, try to

13

be consistent with our methodology, why don't we go

14

through the programs.

15

Maintenance Program, starts on 6-3, where you have A

16

account, from 6-4 is your B account, and I believe

17

you have your C account on 6-6.

18

6-6 we have our Admin Maintenance Program.

19

questions in this area to open up this afternoon's

20

meeting?

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

We'll start with Admin

So between 6-3 and
Any

Chairman.

Yes, Mr. Hokama.
Since this is one Department that

24

grows from 490,000 to 816,000, maybe we can have

25

comment regarding the 110,000 for rental,
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1

Mr. Chairman, as well as the 290,000 for water on

2

6-4, please.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

4

MR. GINOZA:

May I start with the 290,000 for water.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

6

Chief or Deputy or Director.

Members, 6-4 of your Details, under

utilities, 6178, water.

7

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

8

CHAIR KANE:

290,000.

9

MR. GINOZA:

And I'd like to first say that, you know, the

10

classification is not really correct.

11

an inter -- interfund transfer.

12

represents is -- well, in the past the Water

13

Department has been charging the County like 250,000

14

a year, approximately, for maintaining the fire

15

hydrants.

16

been recorded in the budget.

17

is there's an estimated revenues for the Water

18

Department which included this income of 250,000,

19

and what their offset was was against the overhead

20

that was charged to the Water Department.

And what this

And for whatever reason, it has never

So in the County

21

It should be

So what had happened

in the County's records

22

really the charge for that fire hydrant maintenance

23

charge was not recorded as an appropriation in the

24

budget.

25

know, we did record the estimated overhead as a

So what the effect would be is that, you
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1

reduction of expenses in the County budget, but

2

there's no contracts -- contra item for the

3

expenditure back to the Water Department.

4

don't know if that's clear to everybody.

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I

Mr. Hokama.
We just need to know, this is an

7

expense for Water Department, right, and this should

8

be revenue for the Fire Department?

9

MR. GINOZA:

No, this is revenue for the Water Department

10

who maintains the fire hydrant and they do the water

11

pressure testing of the fire hydrant.

12
13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

On Lanai the Fire Department takes

care of the hydrants.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Would you like comment from the

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

MR. BAL:

I've seen it with my own eyes.

The Fire Department doesn't do maintenance of

17

any hydrants on any of the islands.

18

that's private water on Lanai.

19
20

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

It's a public utility.

If -- I believe

Your man was

flushing the hydrant.
MR. BAL:

They may have been directed to do that from the

22

Water Department.

I don't know.

But at times they

23

would have to see what is -- if they're using that

24

for training or something like that, they would have

25

to see what is in the hydrant.

But as a means of
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maintenance, Fire does not do that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Public Works maintains the hydrants?

4

MR. GINOZA:

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

So we are being told this afternoon

I beg your pardon?
Water Department maintains the

hydrants?

7

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

MR. GINOZA:

So what is this 290,000, then?

The current - - the charge for this year,

10

2007 -- I mean, I'm sorry, not this year but the

11

charge for the 2007 Budget in the Water Department's

12

budget is 250,000.

13

additional 40,000 in the Fire budget is because

14

there's 40,000 of so-called uncollected charges from

15

prior years.

16

I wouldn't -- I guess you can call it erroneous --

17

you know, missing item from the budget.

18

what the Water Department is doing is offsetting

19

whatever overhead charges that's been charged to

20

them from the County and offsetting against their

21

charges of the water.

22

for the fire hydrant maintenance was more than the

23

overhead charges, so it created actually a

24

receivable on the Water Department's books.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And the reason for the

So this would catch up the -- I guess

Because

However, the -- their charges

But we closed those earlier years'
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1

books, so the charge is still outstanding, even

2

after we closed the books all this

3

MR. GINOZA:

Yes, there's -- well, close the books meaning

4

the Water Department has still 40,000 due its books

5

from the County of Maui.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Which is interesting, since we don't

7

get comments from our auditor regarding this

8

discrepancy.

9
10
11

12

MR. GINOZA:

I cannot answer that.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Well, something is not right,

Chairman.
MR. GINOZA:

If I may, Mr. Hokama, the accounting records

13

on the actual, because they don't adjust the

14

overhead amount in the actual books for the County

15

of Maui, they don't record the expense.

16

County of Maui in the actual books, you know, the

17

after the fiscal year end, there's no entries for

18

the recovery of overhead from the Water Supply, nor

19

is there an expenditure to the Water Supply for this

20

item.

21

extent that, you know,

22

overhead that it's supposed to collect from the

23

County of Maui -- I mean Department of Water is

24

offset by the hydrant repair charges.

25

final bookkeeping, it just doesn't appear.

So the

So in the County's books it balances to the
it zeros out.

The amount of
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1

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

audit.

3

quite a big difference besides the water?

4

we renting for $110,000?

5

I guess we have another program for

So what is this -- this other amount that is

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Thank you.

What are

Good afternoon, Mr. Hokama.

6

The warehouse office space we're looking at actually

7

is to -- used to lease a larger warehouse office and

8

yard space, yeah, that we used to house the support

9

services personnel, along with the equipment that we

10

have right now that's currently being housed, also

11

to provide for our storage of our inventory

12

equipment for training, education equipment, so

13

pretty much the everyday stuff that we don't have

14

space for it too can also be utilized there.

15

This is a request in addition to the monies

16

we currently have for the leased space.

17

space really would help us be able to cover more

18

equipment, protect the equipment that we have right

19

now out there.

20

providing more training and services, these

21

equipments out there also need to be protected from

22

the elements in there -- so that's kind of the core

23

of what the request is for.

24
25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
renting -

The larger

As we start to grow more with

So, Chief, you currently are

or leasing some space?

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
(808) 524-2090

INC.

BF 4/17/06

111

1

MR. KAUPALOLO:

That's correct.

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Are you -- is it being tracked in a

3

different area?

4

where would those expenditures be assigned to

5

Mr. Ginoza, since for the last two years we show no

6

rentals?

7

MR. GINOZA:

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Let me ask the Budget Director.

I believe it's in the 6221, the 151,100.
Okay.

Is there a reason why we're

getting -- is there no discipline in the assignment

10

of sub accounts, what goes where?

11

curious.

12

and now we flagging out rental for the upcoming

13

year?

14

So

MR. KAUPALOLO:

I'm just kind of

Why are we hiding rental in miscellaneous

I'll try and answer that, Mr. Hokama.

We

15

are actually -- will be I guess doing a more

16

complete analysis on how things are done, and we'll

17

be making these kinds of what we call corrected

18

journal entries to reflect the appropriate use of

19

the funds in that category.

20

that's where it is, but we will be making those

21

adjustments before the fiscal year is completed to

22

reflect that amount.

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Currently I believe

So we understand -- see, the

24

interesting thing, though, you still asking for

25

another 151,000 in miscellaneous for the upcoming
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year besides the 110.

2

110, what is your Department's intention for the

3

151,000, if that is where the current rental is

4

being taken out of?

5

MR. KAUPALOLO:

So besides the rental, the

Yeah, this request is in addition to the

6

monies that we currently have for the lease space.

7

And I guess the biggest factor would be the cost

8

savings coming out on this equipment just sitting

9

outside in the yard being impacted by the weather.

10

That maintenance itself of the equipment is very

11

costly, and we all understand and know that the

12

equipment that we request from the Council, the

13

monies that these things cost is tremendous.

14

There's over a half a million involved.

15

like to keep that maintenance cost down by providing

16

a cover for this equipment.

So we'd

A good example would be our mobile burn

17
18

trailer that we just got for the fire prevention

19

program.

20

without protection, within the year, probably look

21

terrible and we would incur costs on maintenance for

22

it.

23

That particular equipment, you know,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Last question, Chief.

This year you

24

asked for 111,000 County matching funds for your

25

Department's needs, and then the upcoming year
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you're asking for no County support.

2

give us some comments, please.

3

the bottom of the page.

4

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Okay.

Can you just

That's on 6-4, on

County matching funds, we actually

5

looked at this year, that we would not be requesting

6

matching funds.

7

projects that are on the books at this time that

8

we'd like to do a good job at and complete and not

9

try to tack on any new project that would require us

10

to have additional funding or County matching funds.

11

We are pretty much -- have a lot of

What we'd like to do is continue and do a

12

good job on the present matching funds that we have

13

on the projects, and the 111,000 actually is an

14

accumulation of the I believe two projects that we

15

have currently.

16

communication system and the other is the voice

17

operations communication system that's out there.

18

We may still have I believe one that might be our

19

wellness fitness program that we're trying to bring

20

to completion.

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

One is the interoperability

Is the Police Department taking care

22

of your Department's needs too with some of the

23

adjustments in the 800 megahertz program?

24

you be doing your own departmental adjustments,

25

since you brought up communications?
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MR. KAUPALOLO:

I'm going to maybe have Deputy Chief kind

2

of give you a better insight on it.

3

working on this project.

4

MR. BAL:

He's been

Well, actually the one assigned for that is

5

Chief Cordeiro, and he'll give you an explanation on

6

that communications.

7
8

9

CHAIR KANE:

Chief Cordeiro, if you can identify yourself

for the record, please.
MR. CORDEIRO:

Hi.

How's that microphone?

Thank you, Budget Chair.

My name is

10

Assistant Chief Alan Cordeiro from the Maui Fire

11

Department.

Good afternoon, Budget Council.

The question for Mr. Hokama, the answer is

l2

13

this is a supplement to it.

14

radios, portables.

15

for the main backbone of the radio system that we

16

piggyback on with them.

17

that we got was for every fire fighter that comes to

18

work would have a portable radio, versus just a

19

captain and a driver.

20

grant.

21

you have to (inaudible), like the special forces

22

or special attack teams that they have, it just

23

complements what we were piggybacking with the

24

Police.

25

We've added additional

I guess the previous request is

This gives us

the grant

So for safety we got this

And the voice ops is additional stuff that

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you for that, Chief.
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Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

1

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thanks.

Members, the Chair notes in several

3

areas on that one page, on the top, under Repairs

4

and Maintenance, 6031, there's a ten grand add,

5

farther down the page in the services, Printing and

6

Binding, under 6130 -- excuse me, other -- yeah.

7

Excuse me.

8

$15,000 add.

9

Contracts, there's an 11.6 add.

Professional Services, 6132, there's a
Right under that for R&M, Services and
Mr. Hokama has

10

pointed out the 290,000 add, as well as the $110,000

11

add.

12

Before I recognize anybody else, just to get

13

those, as the obvious ones for where changes have

14

occurred, Chief, if you can provide us with

15

additional comment to -- under Materials, Repairs

16

and Maintenance, Supplies, 10,000, when your two

17

previous years were zero, and then in services you

18

have for Professional Services as well as for R&M

19

Services and Contracts you have 15,000 and 11 point

20

6,000 respectively in increases.

21

6-4 of the Details.

22

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Thank you, Chair.

And we're on page

This is under

23

Communication Safety Supplies, and this actual

24

request is for us to be able to sustain and provide

25

the replacement safety equipment for the voice ops
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communications program that we want to put together.

2

This, again, is in conjunction with earlier question

3

by Mr. Hokama.

4

CHAIR KANE:

That's the $10,000?

5

MR. KAUPALOLO:

That's correct.

Again, that would be to

6

sustain ongoing replacement and repair maintenance.

7

On the other one, on the 15,000 requested, and this

8

one is on the strategic plan program.

9

revisit the strategic plan.

This is to

The funds, again, would

10

be used to -- by the Department to reevaluate its

11

strategic plan to ensure the Department is moving in

12

the right direction, both on interim an long-term

13

goals.

14

Department to revisit its strategic plan.

15

CHAIR KANE:

So the use of this funds would be for the

And then the 11 point 6,000 under

16

professional

17

that.

18

MR. KAUPALOLO:

R&M Services Contracts, right under

Under that, R&M, Repair and Maintenance.

19

Hold on a second.

Okay.

On this one here, this is

20

the interoperability equipment and maintenance

21

program.

22

that's pretty much developed and ongoing at this

23

time.

24

replace or repair or maintain any of these radio

25

equipments or contract for the system.

This is to sustain, again, a program

And this, again, will allow us to be able to
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CHAIR KANE:

Okay,

just to reiterate, to the Budget

2

Director, when we're talking about replacement

3

versus repair and maintenance, is there a

4

distinction that you folks draw as far as where

5

monies are going to come from to accommodate

6

replacement versus repair and maintenance?

7

MR. GINOZA:

It depends on the item of replacement.

If

8

the item of replacement is a capital asset -- this

9

is to distinguish it from capital improvement

10

projects, but a capital asset would be equipment or

11

a longer term asset.

12

those type of assets, then those would be under

13

equipment.

14

type of items, then that would be under Repairs and

15

Maintenance.

16

CHAIR KANE:

So if it's a replacement of

Whereas if it's replacement of operating

Okay.

And then, Chief, just to finalize that

17

line of questioning.

18

talked about under Materials and Supplies, as well

19

as Services, you're talking about replacement as

20

part of your sustainable program, what kind of

21

generally speaking, what kind of equipment are you

22

looking at replacement on?

23

MR. KAUPALOLO:

In this case where you've

Thank you, Chair.

You're looking at

24

probably a radio would probably get incapacitated

25

during a working fire or batteries, on that nature.
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CHAIR KANE:

Okay, Members, any questions in the program

2

area as a whole?

3

Mr. Molina.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yes, Ms. Anderson, followed by

Thank you, Chair.

I'm just going

5

to start where you just left off, for simplicity

6

reasons.

7

grand every year if it's just maintenance or

8

possible replacement?

9

was enough, why now does 40,000 have to be needed?

10
11

Why does this program have to grow 10

I mean, if last year 30,000

I mean, I don't know that your program -MR. KAUPALOLO:

I'm going to try and answer that briefly

12

and then I'm going to have our special operations be

13

a little bit more specific.

14

that was for our grant funding to allow us to

15

purchase and begin due to implement this program.

16

This 10,000 we're asking for this year is to sustain

17

the program now, to sustain the equipment, and that

18

will include like contracts, replacing equipment, or

19

batteries or radios that get damage for that.

20

this is what that monies would be used for.

21

10,000 for this year for us to maintain that and

22

make sure that that equipment's operating and

23

continues to operate.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
at 6138, Chief.

But I believe last year

And
It's

Maybe you aren't following -- I'm
So it's -- you know, based on what
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1

you're saying, you spent 30 grand last year to buy

2

the equipment, but you want 41 grand this year to

3

maintain it.

4

thing?

5

So were we speaking about the same

It's 6138 on page 6-4.

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Thank you, Councilperson Anderson.

I'm

6

going to try and -- I'm going to have Mr. Jenkins go

7

ahead and try and be a little more specific than I

8

was in general.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Jenkins, if you can, please, identify

10

yourself for the record.

11

Ms. Anderson, to just follow up on your point, the

12

'05 expended amount of 20,000, and here we are two

13

years later with a doubling of that.

14

explain where we were in '05,

15

year, you're saying that we needed 10 grand to buy

16

things and now you're asking for an additional 10

17

grand to maintain the things that you bought, which

18

doubles the program or doubles this account, is I

19

think where Ms. Anderson is going.

20

MR. JENKINS:

And before you do that,

So if you can

'06, this current

Mr. Jenkins.

Thank you, Chair, Councilmember Anderson.

21

My name is Greg Jenkins with the Maui County Fire

22

Department.

23

this grant, the total grant application was -- with

24

FEMA, was an assistance to fire fighters grant in

25

the amount of $220,000, and at that time there was a

To answer your question, specific to
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1

70/30 cost share.

2

share.

3

believe you were referring to 6138.

30 percent was the County's

In this particular sub-object code, which I

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right.

5

MR. JENKINS:

that sub-object code is -- for

That is

6

R&M is services and contracts for that entire

7

Department program, not just for the request you see

8

before you.

9

the grant and the continuation of that program.

The $11,000 increase was specific to

10

other monies in that account are for other items,

11

with the exception of that grant.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

The

And so can you just give us a

13

brief understanding of what the grant -- the grant

14

purchased radio equipment?

15

MR. JENKINS:

Member Anderson, the grant purchased

16

interoperability radio equipment that serves the

17

entire County.

18

portable radios so that each fire fighter on duty

19

has a portable radio, whereas now there's only two

20

portable radios assigned per company.

21

a -- an interoperability box which converts other

22

radio signals into ones that we can hear, understand

23

on the fire ground, and it's a deployable type of

24

equipment.

25

portable radios for on-scene communication in

It also purchased additional

It also has

And in addition it purchased other
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1

addition to those that we -- our normal portable

2

radios.

3

utilize, same as the Police.

4

of radios for additional on-scene communication.

currently we have 800 megahertz radios we
These are another set

But the maintenance of this equipment,

5

6

replacing additional radios, adding to the radios

7

when we requested this grant, we had a very humble

8

request, very minimum operational threshold in the

9

amount of equipment we requested, but there's much

10

more that we need to do to really get our

11

interoperability program up to speed Countywide,

12

additional boxes, additional radio equipment

13

potentially, and those things that also break down

14

that we need to replace.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay, if I understand your

16

explanation, the increase in '07 from '06 is to

17

provide for additional repair and maintenance of

18

these new radios that you've purchased through the

19

grant; is that correct?

20
21

22

MR. JENKINS:

That would be correct, the $11,000 you're

referring to, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right.

So is there any reason

23

for us to believe that this would be increasing next

24

year?

25

where we're going here, because big incremental

Or -- I'm just trying to get a feeling for
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1

jumps like this add up.

2

to increase it again by 10 grand next year?

3

MR. JENKINS;

So do you anticipate having

I'm going to defer that overall question to

4

the Fire Chief, but, however, in our teams that we

5

work with, Chief Cordeiro is, again, with radio

6

systems, we would come with some type of a project

7

justification for any increase costs or even

8

maintaining the costs that you see now and then we

9

would -- through channels we would give those items

10

to the Fire Chief for his final approval.

11

would really leave that up to the Chief to make the

12

final decision on the funding request.

13

this has been determine to be an adequate amount to

14

sustain the program.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON;

Okay.

So I

Right now

That's good enough.

I

16

think we need some repair and maintenance on our

17

mikes.

18
19

20

Maybe we put 10 grand aside for that,
Mr. Chair?
I would just like some further clarification

21

on this 290 grand for the water.

Are you saying

22

that -- well,

23

specifically the -- the Water Department goes out

24

and tests the hydrants for their pressure on a

25

regular basis.

I guess I need to know more

And then if there's -- I heard you
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1

say something about charges for repairs and what

2

not.

3

that is spent in just testing to see that the

4

hydrants are all working properly and have been

5

flushed properly?

6

is, but is that fairly standard?

7

figure reflect the cost of personnel going out and

8

doing the job?

9

MR. GINOZA:

Is this pretty much a standard annual figure

I don't know what the maintenance
And does this

If I may, Councilmember Anderson, the service

10

includes, as I understand it, they go out -- Water

11

Department goes out and paints the hydrants if

12

necessary and maintains the area around the

13

hydrants, in addition to doing the pressure testing

14

of the hydrants.

15

this service is within the rates and fees.

16

on page 37 of the 2006 Budget.

17

amount per hydrant, and it's -- I believe it's an

18

annual fee.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

And I believe it's -- the rate for
And it's

And it's a flat

And so that's the fee we charge

who?

21

MR. GINOZA:

That's the fee --

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

MR. GINOZA:

Sorry.

The Fire Department.

That's the fee that's charged to

24

everybody who has a hydrant, whether it's on

25

privately-owned property or government property.
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1

the privately-owned property are charged the same

2

rate.

3

performs the service for.

4

So the Water Department charges whoever it

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And -- but, I mean, is there a

5

set schedule that you do?

6

up and say my hydrant needs weed eating, do they?

7

MR. GINOZA:

Someone doesn't call you

I don't know the specifics as to the

8

regularity of the inspection, but I think -- well, I

9

would have to defer to the Water Department.

10
11

12
13

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Would you know if this is a

pretty standard annual fee or figure?
MR. GINOZA:

It's a fixed fee that's within our rate

structure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I'm talking about the total

15

amount.

16

buried in the past.

17

this reflect the fee that would be generated from an

18

annual maintenance of all the hydrants in the

19

County?

20

MR. GINOZA:

The $290,000, you said it's kind of been
So is this

you know, does

Can I correct you on the first statement.

21

It's not buried anyplace, because it wasn't recorded

22

at all as an expenditure.

23

fee based on the number of hydrants that are in

24

service for the County at present.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I see.

But it is an estimated

Thank you very much.
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CHAIR KANE:

Before I recognize Mr. Molina, just to follow

2

up on that.

3

made you folks bring it out and show it as a revenue

4

and an expenditure?

5

versus the complete historical practice, it seems

6

like, of this particular item?

7

MR. GINOZA:

So if it wasn't buried, why -- what

What's different this year

If I may, Mr. Chairman, actually it started

8

where in my previous function as the auditor I was

9

trying to balance the interfund transfers and I

10

noticed that there wasn't a corresponding overhead

11

amount between the amount that was charged to the

l2

Water Department and the amount that was recorded in

13

the Water Department.

14

at the interfund charge for overhead, I could see

15

the amount being recorded in the Water Supply, but

16

there was no corresponding recording of the

17

expenditure in the County of Maui's books.

18

reason for that is because in the County of Maui's

19

books they didn't record the reimbursement of the

20

overhead; thereby, it just came to zero.

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

CHAIR KANE:

In other words, when I looked

Okay, thank you.

Mr. Molina.

Chair.

Oh, I'm sorry.

Mr. Molina.

I just have one more.

So she can do her follow up.

Thank you.
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Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

So in your

3

discussion or explanation to Member Hokama regarding

4

the 110,000 for the rentals, just to clarify that I

5

understand you, the 151,000 is the current rental

6

that you're paying to store equipment or warehouse

7

equipment, and the 110 is the increase for

8

additional storage; is that correct?

9

MR. GINOZA:

Just a correction, on the 151,000, I

10

believe -- and I don't know the exact amount of

11

rental, but I believe the rental charges are

12

included in that 151,000.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Oh.

So could we find out what

14

that is, what's your current rental figure for

15

whatever you're adding the 110 to?

16

CHAIR KANE:

If we could get a response in writing,

17

Ms. Anderson, for them to break it down, is that

18

fine with you?

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That's fine.

Because I think

20

that should be reflected under rentals and not

21

miscellaneous.

22

MR. GINOZA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

And I agree.
Thank you.

We can separate it out and -- well, we'll get

that question sent out.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And where is this rental

2

property?

Is this one property that you're

3

expanding or is it two properties?

4

CHAIR KANE:

Deputy.

5

MR. BAL:

6

it

they didn't have the size that we needed.

7

it

the management was explaining to us that the

8

properties are very hot on these warehouses and the

9

market is moving, so we

At the time that we went to get the property,
And

we found this one, which

10

hadn't even been advertised.

11

away, even though it was less than what we needed,

12

just so we could get our

13

and until -- and we've been negotiating with this

14

other property that would fit our size requirements.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

everything under roof,

So you would vacate the one

you're currently in and go into just one --

17

MR. BAL:

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That's correct.

19

much.

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

We picked it up right

I see.

Okay, thank you very

Ms. Anderson, is that an adequate response?

Because they didn't answer you where.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

MR. BAL:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

MR. BAL:

I know.

Oh, I'm sorry.
Chief, Deputy, are you prepared to respond?

Yes, I am.
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CHAIR KANE:

2

MR. BAL:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

5

Please do.

It's 780 Ulua, Wailuku industrial.
Thank you.

Thank you for your patience.

Mr. Molina, followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

My questions

6

were along the lines of the rentals.

I don't know

7

if I have more clarity or more confusion.

8

110,000, this is an add into what you already are

9

paying?

So the

Because as I look at this -- the two prior

10

fiscal years there's zero, yeah, so this 110,000 is

11

an addition to what you're already paying for your

12

rental costs for the storage of your equipment?

13

MR. BAL:

Because we just got it this last year, it

14

wouldn't show anything in the past, but going after

15

what we want for the correct size, yes.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Has the Department

17

considered any improvements to any of their existing

18

fire stations to sort of I guess cut down on rental

19

expense to maybe store some of this -- whatever

20

equipment you have on site at some of the fire

21

stations that you have, I guess some of your bigger

22

area fire stations?

23

MR. BAL:

We would -- we would be glad to do that.

The

24

Kahului Station, as you can see right now, is a

25

two-acre parcel.

We're now land locked.
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1

can't -- we cannot expand any which way we want to,

2

or what we would like to do, and as such, when we do

3

look for further property, we will make sure we have

4

enough for expansion.

5

build for 50 years at least.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

We'd like to think that we'll

With the proposed Haiku land

7

purchase, is that one area the Department is sort of

8

looking ahead as a possible site to -- storage site

9

for equipment in the future?

10

MR. BAL:

That is a possibility, only because the sites

11

for any storage for anybody is, as you can tell,

12

very expensive.

13

consideration.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So we'd like to take that into

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

15

16

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you, Chair.

The question

18

that -- I have two questions.

19

Director and the other one for the Department.

20
21
22

One is for the Budget

For the Department, regarding the portable
radios, what is the normal life of your radio?
MR. CORDEIRO:

If I may answer.

Assistant Chief Cordeiro.

23

It all depends on the activity.

24

fires,

25

has been around five years, and they're starting to

Sometimes we go to

radios fall down, but the radios we have now
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1

really fall apart.

The modifications and the

2

upgrades and the changes of the industry, we're

3

always behind the curve.

4

it's outdated, but with just getting on board with

5

it and cut the thing short is it all depends on how

6

much abuse it goes through.

7

through a lot.

8

that we can get.

Everything we buy today,

In our job, it goes

We try to get the best and safest

And we're a little different from especially

9

10

the police, because we have to get intrinsically

11

safe radios, where we have to be spark free so if we

12

go into an atmosphere, they won't explode or start

13

an explosion.

14

problem of fixing and replacing.

15
16
17

So those kind of things add to the

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So to get five years it's

pretty hard.
MR. CORDEIRO:

Five years, sometimes two years.

And then

18

battery life, if we last a year on a battery it's

19

good.

20

and it's like 150, 170 dollars for one battery.

21

Usually you have to (inaudible) the battery

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

One battery.

Okay, fine.

22

Okay, thank you.

23

Director, you mentioned about capital assets.

24

do we determine an asset as capital?

25

MR. GINOZA:

The other question for the Budget

Capital meaning -- capital versus -- I'm
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1

sorry.

Capital asset versus capital improvement

2

projects?

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

MR. GINOZA:

Yeah.

Capital asset would be equipment, and

5

basically there's a long-term life -- assets for the

6

longer term estimated life.

7

capping of -- I think they use like two or 3,000 or

8

5,000 as a minimum amount so that it doesn't

9

encumber our depreciation schedule.

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

MR. GINOZA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

So there is some definitions in

regarding to capital assets?

12

14

And I think there's a

With respect to capitalizing the asset, yes.
I was wondering if we can have

copies of that, Chair.
MR. GINOZA:

Excuse me, Mr. Pontanilla.

I don't know if

16

it's in writing or it's just, you know, verbal, but

17

I will look for it.

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20
21

Okay fine.

Thank you.

Further questions, Members?

Ms. Tavares,

followed by -- I'm sorry, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, one more.

You say about

22

the depreciation of the equipment itself, as far as

23

the usage, once it's I guess met its maximum life,

24

the equipment is depreciated and taken away from the

25

books?
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MR. GINOZA:

The accounting for equipment is quite

2

different from commercial.

And if you -- if you

3

look at the CAFR, the annual financial statement,

4

basically there's two types of financial statement,

5

the first one being the government fund type which

6

accounts for -- which does the accounting based on

7

the budgetary system.

8

provides for basically a cash expense and cash

9

receipt kind of accounting.

And the budgetary system

Therefore, if the

10

equipment is purchased in anyone year, it's deemed

11

expensed.

12

And if you look at the CAFR at the beginning

13

part of the year report, there's what they call a

14

government wide or some -- a different terminology

15

in terms of the statement, and that's in conjunction

16

with GASB-34, which then requires the County to

17

record all assets and to depreciate the assets based

18

like a regular commercial entity.

19

to that purpose, yes, that is being depreciated

20

based on the estimated life, and then of course when

21

it -- it doesn't necessarily get written off the

22

books once it's fully depreciated, just maintained

23

on the books until it's actually disposed of.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
much.

Okay, good.

So with respect

Thank you very

Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

2

Mr. Mateo.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares, followed by

Yeah, thank you.

Getting back to

4

the Haiku property.

5

editor the other day that claimed that there was

6

State property in the Haiku area that would be --

7

that might be more suited to property for the fire

8

station and other things?

9

either of you?

10

MR. KAUPALOLO:

You saw the letter in the

Did you see that letter,

Okay, I'll try and answer that.

I didn't

11

see a letter personally, but I was kind of informed

12

of it, but I think my staff people did and maybe

13

they can share comment here.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

MR. BAL:

If the Chair would allow.

Yes.
Thank you.

Deputy.

Yes, I did see that letter, and I had a chance

19

to talk with the Administration about it.

20

formulated a response.

21

as far as -- or the Department, I'm sorry.

22

what -- what their claims are, I'm sure they're

23

doing some -- some of their own engineering, but the

24

fact is where the hub or the

25

area is going to be affected is where we put it.

As far as personally myself,
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1

do have some information on where this person lives,

2

and I'm not going to comment about that, but the

3

fact is if you drove the distance between the two

4

stations or the proposed and Paia, it's not as the

5

crow flies but as you drive it, and where the most

6

dense area is going to be affected by the placement

7

of this station, that's a problem.
Because at the moment we'll even have to make

8
9

some water improvements to take that property on,

10

and because that's where we feel it should be, the

11

State property is not in the best area where we'd

12

like to see it.

13

talked with A & B, Maui Land & Pine.

14

with West Kuiaha, people who live in that area, and

15

that's where our efforts have been concentrated, in

16

that particular area.

17

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

We've looked that over.

We've

We've talked

So you were aware of the State

property in the area?

19

MR. BAL:

Yes, yes.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And the response that's being

21

prepared by Administration is in response to the

22

letter -

23

MR. BAL:

Yes.

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

MR. BAL:

-- that was in The Maui News?

Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

Then we'll await that.

2

Usually they send us a copy of whatever is going to

3

go to The Maui News, so we can add that to our

4

records.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

For your information, Members, Council Chair

6

Hokama did send a document transmittal of that

7

article written by Laf Young and an attached map,

8

and so I think all of you should have this available

9

in your files.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR KANE:

What's the date?

The date was April 10th, received April 11th,

12

and then Council Chair Hokama had that transmitted

13

to the Committee.

14
15

So this is part of your file.

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
CHAIR KANE:

Following Ms. Tavares, Ms. Anderson, I

16

believe you had other questions.

17

thought I saw you raise your hand.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I'm sorry, I

I didn't, but since you called on

19

me, I'll take advantage of it.

20

on this question that Ms. Tavares brought up, is

21

there a way you could give us like a map that shows

22

the radius, you know?

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

Because, you know,

There's one attached to that.
Is it a fire safety radius on the

map?
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CHAIR KANE:

No .

I'm sorry, Members, and I'm sorry you

2

don't have that in front of you.

3

give you that as information.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

CHAIR KANE:

I just wanted to

Haven't gotten that far yet.

It kind of depicts the comments of the Deputy

6

when he said the crows fly.

7

go over the straight line, it's different from when

8

you actually drive the road.

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

In other words, if you

You know, I would like something

10

from the Department, because I'm sure you guys did

11

some due diligence in making your determination as

12

to -- you know, I know that there's various fire

13

safety ratings that you get depending on the

14

response time from your home

15

Department to your home.

16

something to us that shows a radius, in other words,

17

we've got the Paia Station, we've got the Makawao

18

Station, and then we've got the Hana Station.

19

That's it out there, right?

20

radius from each of those stations, and then how

21

this new station fits into that.

22

helpful, if you could provide that.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

MR. BAL:

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

or from the Fire

So if you could give

So where's the safety

That would be very

Deputy.

Yes, we could provide that.
Thank you.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you very much.

Chief, good afternoon.

3

Yes, Mr. Mateo.

I just -- 6-5, under

4

fire maintenance garage, the total listing you have

5

there, that is a total of cost for all the stations

6

through the County?

7

8
9

MR. KAUPALOLO:

I'm not sure if I'm following you on that.

Could you repeat that again for me?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

You're looking at the same section,

10

yeah, 6-5, under fire maintenance garage.

11

there, Chief?

12

MR. KAUPALOLO:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

14

MR. KAUPALOLO:

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

You're

Okay, 6005.
Page 6 - 5.

Okay 6-5, and you're under.
You're on the right -- you're on the

16

right place, fire maintenance garage.

17

the bottom, is that what you're indicating as a

18

total cost for the maintenance of all of the

19

stations throughout the County?

20

represent?

21

MR. KAUPALOLO:

What does that

Yeah, that is what it reflects.

22

sorry.

23

maintenance for the fire equipment.

24
25

That 895 on

I'm

The 89,200 reflects for all of the

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

So from '06 to '05, we're

saying that you're only requesting $300 more for
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1

this fiscal year to continue on your maintenance and

2

repair programs for all of the County's apparatuses

3

throughout the County?

4

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Mateo, while they prepare to answer the

5

question, the thousand to 1,300 under gasoline,

6

diesel, et cetera, Mr. Ginoza, is the 30 percent

7

increase that you folks talked about?

8

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you.

10

Just -- thank you,

Mr. Mateo.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

14

writing.

15

at this point, looking at a $300 increase for a

16

whole fiscal year, is that existing equipment for

17

stations throughout the County is apparently in

18

really good condition if they're only requiring $300

19

more in a whole fiscal year, considering the types

20

of degrees of equipment that we have throughout the

21

County.

22

respond, Chairman.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

MR. BAL:

25

Thank you.

Chief, you prepared to respond?
Chair, perhaps if we can get it in

The question was -- well, the assumption

Okay, Chairman, Mr. Deputy is ready to

Deputy.

If I may answer this.

This actually is just for

the shop itself, and that's the increase we're
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asking for.

It's just for the mechanic shop.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, the mechanic shop services -

on Maui services Lanai, Molokai as well?
MR. BAL:

No.

The mechanics do.

They go off island to

service, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, so your actual cost, then, for

7

current fiscal year, and it's still running, because

8

it's not over, it is within this ballpark that

9

you're requesting?

10

MR. BAL:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

12

That is correct.

Chairman.

Okay, thank you.

Thank you,

I'm done.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Further questions?
Chair.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Page 6-6, regarding the

17

two-vehicle expansion.

18

for Operation Assistant Chief and the other one

19

Admin Assistant Chief, does both Assistant Chief

20

have any vehicles today?

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

MR. BAL:

For the two vehicles, one

Deputy.

They have some very old hand me downs.

One of

23

them just came out of the shop for the rear end that

24

fell apart on the way to work.

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, the question is it
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expansion or should be replacement?
MR. BAL:

These are expansion.

When -- we didn't get it

3

last year and that's what we're looking for this

4

year.

5

is we send them out to the other outer stations.

6

lot of them need the four-wheel drives to go in

7

medicals in the mountains and for various reasons.

8

That saves the truck from going off road and as far

9

as they can go.

10
11

12

13

What we do with the older four-wheel drives
A

So we retrain the four-wheel

drives, which is what they have now.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So we give the fire fighters

the old vehicles to do their work?
MR. BAL:

Well, if I may, this is the -- this is the two

14

expansion positions that we didn't get any from the

15

beginning, no vehicles last year.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.

Any additional

18

questions, Members, before we move forward?

19

Mr. Hokama.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Did we get any response, Chairman,

21

from Mr. Ginoza or Department of Management

22

regarding this vehicle replacement?

23

made you aware of any responses from

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Have your staff

Can you repeat the question, Mr. -- I'm

sorry, Mr. Hokama.

I was conferring with my Staff.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm just wondering, Chairman, if we

2

received information back from either Mr. Ginoza or

3

Department of Management regarding this vehicle

4

replacement policy.

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

MR. TAGUCHI:

Mr. Taguchi.
Chair Kane, no, we have not, not at this

7

time.

8

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza.

10

MR. GINOZA:

I don't believe the request went out yet.

11

CHAIR KANE:

From us to you?

12

MR. GINOZA:

Yes, I think there was a meeting of --

13

Thursday.

14

MR. TAGUCHI:

We'll check on that.

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

We'll follow up, Mr. Hokama.
All right.

Thank you.

My main reason

17

for asking that, Chairman, is since whatever reason

18

we cannot get a grip on our vehicle inventory, and

19

two years ago, then Department of Management said

20

we'll get an assessment done, and for two years

21

we're still waiting for this assessment.

22

before we start granting new equipment requests, we

23

need to find out what is the Administration policy.

24

If this hand me down, hand me down, hand me down is

25

going to keep going all the way down the front line

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

I think

BF 4/17/06

142

1

into the trenches, who are we not providing a

2

vehicle for?
So I think it's -- would be timely for us to

3
4

get an Administrative response back to our question,

5

Mr. Chairman, because I don't believe every employee

6

needs a vehicle.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Further questions, Members, in this area

8

before we move out on to the next item under

9

training?

Before we move forward, Members, without

10

objections, the Chair's going to ask for a detailed

11

request in writing from the Department on those two

12

items that we talked about, the 151,000 for the

13

miscellaneous other costs on 6-4, sub-object code

14

6221, as well as on 6235, the rentals.

15

know through verbal response that there's rental

16

charges within the 151,100, and in addition the

17

110,000 is intended to be additional rental, keep in

18

mind we went from '05 actuals of $2,710 to now

19

having a request of over $261,000 in this area.

20

Okay, so we need to get a detailed response from the

21

Department bringing the Committee along to

22

understand how this thing is evolving.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Since we

Ms. Johnson.

Could you also include in that

24

request, because I know there are some of these

25

buildings that can be put up that are -- they're
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1

fairly attractive.

2

use them for storage equipment.

3

if there's any cost analysis?

4

paying for rent, we might be able to get something

5

that's more permanent and would pay for itself over

6

a period of years, to see if there's any cost

7

analysis that has been done.

8
9

CHAIR KANE:

I've seen some of the companies
Could you also see
Because of what we're

Okay, we'll incorporate that question, the

cost analysis question.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

11

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Right.

Thank you very much.

Members, we're going to move

12

forward out of this area into the training program,

l3

Members.

14

current fiscal year into the proposal.

15

no request for expansions and an increase basically

16

in salary wages.

17

I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson, followed by I think

18

Mr. Hokama.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

The account is flat, Members, from this
A account,

Questions in this area, Members?

Thank you, Chair.

Even though

20

it's flat, still a substantial increase from 'OS,

21

and basically for my own understanding, is there

22

something you folks are doing now that you didn't do

23

back in 'OS, or maybe you've reallocated this.

24

see -- my concern is that we've increased

25

allocations for medical and safety supplies under
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1

all categories, hazardous materials division from

2

2,500 in '05 to 17,500, so there's 15,000 there.

3

Then under training and hazardous materials there's

4

a $32,000 increase.

5

if, you know, you're increasing your program in this

6

area or why the increase?

7

something that we'll be looking at from here on out,

8

these level of supplies.

9

CHAIR KANE:

10

area?

11

And I'm just wondering if -

And this will be

Comments from the Chief or the Deputy in this

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

I'm going to

12

have Mr. Jenkins go ahead and comment on that for

l3

us.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

In all fairness,

I do

15

see under 6035, right underneath medical and safety

16

supplies, you have miscellaneous supplies it was

17

32,000 in '05 and now it's 1,500.

18

wondering if this is a matter of moving things

19

around or if you're -- you know, you had to expand

20

your program and this is -- this is the funding

21

level we're going to be looking at from now on.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. JENKINS:

So I'm just

Fire Fighter Jenkins.
Thank you, Ms. Anderson, for your comment.

24

One thing that's important to note to gain a little

25

perspective to these two areas of the budget, the
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1

Hazardous Materials Division, 911255 and 911420, is

2

that they're really a combination division.

3

medical officer in the HazMat Division, we've had a

4

lot of changes in the area of the medical side of

5

it, so there's really to main areas here, the

6

medical side of it and the safety side of it.

As a

The medical side of it, we're currently going

7
8

back and we're revamping our first responder

9

program, which is the EMS or emergency medical

10

service portion of our -- of our Department, both

11

in -

12

national standards in performing training.

l3

a lot of equipment that needs to be purchased to

14

meet these national standards, a lot of training

15

costs, things that we relied upon other entities to

16

provide us before or that we were lacking.

well, predominantly in the way we're meeting
There's

On the area of safety supplies, it's a

17
18

really

19

many different supplies that become either an annual

20

initiative that are ongoing or that are specific to

21

that year, maybe a piece of equipment that's

22

malfunctioned that supports the HazMat Division or

23

pieces of equipment that support the training

24

division.

25

it's a very detailed question.

There's so

But to add to that, I'd like to let assistant
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Chief Pascua, who's in charge of our Division,

2

answer that regarding budget, because he is the

3

Assistant Chief in charge of our entire Division and

4

training.

5
6

7

CHAIR KANE:

Assistant Chief, if you can identify yourself

for the record, please.
MR. PASCUA:

8

Chair.

9

Greg?

Assistant Chief Alan Pascua, thank you,
If I may, could I get a repeat on that,
I was listening to you on medical and safety

10

supplies.

11

is a Division where we have a lot of technical

12

equipment that identify not only hazardous

13

materials, be it chemical, bio agents, which we have

14

a spectrometer for.

15

equipment that we've put on line so that in any WMD

16

incident, we can go in and send our teams in the hot

17

zone, pick up some samples, and actually bring them

18

out to identify those materials and then act

19

accordingly.

20

Absolutely.

Hazardous Materials Division

We have chemical identification

As far as safety supplies and medical

21

supplies, we've just put on board a whole contingent

22

of AEDs, automatic electrical defibrillators, that

23

can handle pediatric cases.

24

could handle adults and teenage children.

25

couldn't go down below 80 pounds, I believe.

Previously we only
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1

have that training.

2

lots of other hazardous materials equipment from

3

level A suits to gloves that will protect us from

4

organophosphates, which we have a lot on the island

5

with our agricultural businesses, a lot of

6

identification material, even to identify explosive

7

atmospheres that we've put on board, and we'd like

8

to upgrade that contingency.

9
10

CHAIR KANE;

We have that equipment and a

Ms. Anderson.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

That's fine.

I'm just --

11

I was just trying to get a feel if there was some

12

reason we went from, you know, 9,000 a year to

l3

$47,000 a year to provide these supplies, and I can

14

see it being a one-time thing to buy these suits and

15

what not, but it appears to be an annual thing now,

16

so that's why I was asking, Chair, to see if there

17

was some expansion or some Federal requirements or

18

State requirements that you guys were bringing

19

yourselves up to speed on.

20

answers I got, we're going to be looking at $47,000

21

a year to keep renewing these medical and hazardous

22

supplies; is that correct?

23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

And I guess from the

Assistant Chief, can you provide additional

comment, please.
MR. PASCUA:

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

Just to elaborate
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1

on that, on our hazardous materials initial entry

2

suits, fully encapsulating, each suit is upward to

3

$10,000 a piece.

4

environment and they become permeated with that

5

chemical, we have to throw them away.

6

one area.

If we use it once in a hazardous

That's just

And yes, our increase in alarms also after

7
8

9/11, we're responding to a lot of, a lot of calls.

9

People -- the general public have become a lot

10

smarter and a lot more aware of what the hazards are

11

out there, and so they become a lot more careful

12

when they're dealing with all different kinds of

13

chemicals.

14

to every single white powder call, and we put our

15

guys in fully encapsulating suits just because we do

16

not know what that is.

17

White powder, for instance, we respond

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

much.

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Right.

Okay, thank you very

Mr. Hokama.

Thank you, Chairman.

This is one area

21

that I can support expansion, and yet you show a

22

flat budget, Chief Pascua.

23

recent incident that your front line people

24

responded at the airport, or close to the airport,

25

is there a reason why this is not being expanded,

You know, with the
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this program area?
CHAIR KANE:

Chief, Deputy Chief, or Assistant Chief,

who's going to be responding, please?
MR. PASCUA:

Mr. Hokama, again, would you help me out in

5

identifying exactly which line item you're

6

identifying?

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm looking at your training program,

8

$189,000 total.

I mentioned I can support

9

additional resources and expansion, so my question

10

is why isn't this area being expanded?

11

feel everything is hunky-dory?

12

MR. PASCUA:

Actually, no.

You folks

What's happened in the past,

13

we've already upgraded a lot of operational things,

14

and we are looking at polishing up, per se, this

15

Division.

16

got a lot of good stuff.

17

more on that equipment, as I said before.

18

want to provide for our men to actually be able to

19

use them with a lot of expertise, and for our

20

managers, our Chief staff, to actually go out there

21

and command any situation with authority.

22

are looking at redirecting a lot of the energies and

23

a lot of the funding toward polishing up our act.

We've gotten a lot of equipment.

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

MR. PASCUA:

We've

We're looking to expand
Now we

And so we

So

To answer it more, as rather than getting new
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1

stuff on board, we want to just make sure we utilize

2

these adequately now.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

My understanding, though,

I'm seeing

4

this program grow, is that you want a special

5

dedicated group of men and women that can deal with

6

specific type of hazardous material in any

7

condition, any situation.

8

understanding on our part, Chief?

9

MR. PASCUA:

Is that a good

Chair, may I move in that direction, please?

10

Yes, Mr. Hokama, as a former rescue captain, the

11

rescue squad has been responsible for responding to

12

all hazardous materials calls.

13

disciplines that the rescue squad has had to deal

14

with over the past decade has increased.

15

The amount of

I'm sure you all are well aware of our

16

increase in amount of rescue calls.

17

include rope rescue, along -- on top of hazardous

18

materials, rope rescue, mountain, ocean, extraction

19

calls, everything under the sun, other than fire

20

suppression.

21

squad will do evacuation or rescue of any victims

22

within a fire.

23

Our disciplines

Even in fire suppression, the rescue

We did want to identify the one discipline

24

that we were most uncomfortable with, and that was

25

the hazardous materials area, because it is so wide
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1

spread and it is so intricately technical that we

2

have had a hard time to really, you know, polish up

3

that area of our disciplines of the rescue squad.

4

Having five men, one rescue squad to cover the

5

entire Maui County was becoming very, very

6

burdensome, along with the air rescues that we've

7

done with our air operations on the helicopter.

8

Many times we found ourselves out on a rescue and

9

then we have another call, a hazardous materials

10

call, that we know we're the only trained people in

11

the Fire Department that can respond to.

12

had to do is call back people.

13

is actually have our Administration sit down and

14

call back other hazardous materials technicians that

15

come in and augment what we used to call the fire

16

rescue operations, which included hazardous

17

materials.

18

What we've

What we've had to do

And so after identifying that hazardous

19

materials overburdening of our rescue squad, we

20

decided that that was the one discipline where we

21

should expand and provide more expertise in to

22

provide the public with more coverage and more

23

expert response.

24

would be responding to incidents that are very

25

closely related, which are confined space incidents.

That hazardous materials team also
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1

The confined space program right now is just

2

starting to take off within our Department, and I

3

would say 90 percent of confined spaces would

4

involve a hazardous materials type environment.

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for sharing those comments,

6

Chief Pascua.

Let me just ask you this.

Is there a

7

change in the protocol or the understanding between

8

the Fire Department and the ambulance or medical

9

responders?

Has that changed anything whereby

10

irregardless, the ambulance and the Fire Department

11

is going to attend every single medical call?

12

MR. PASCUA:

13

MR. CORDEIRO:

Chief, would you.
At this time, due to some lawsuits and

14

liability issues, we do respond out with the medics,

15

just in case of a system failure in any of the

16

vehicles, since life is a priority and we have been

17

assisting and being cancelled en route if they get

18

there before us.

19

before them, we can provide the first aid or

20

required treatment for that victims that the call

21

came in for.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

But if we happen to get there

Chief Cordeiro, when you say equipment

23

failure, that is on the part of the ambulance

24

provider

25

Department's equipment?

service provider or is that on the Fire
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MR. CORDEIRO:

It could be either one, because everything

2

is mechanical.

3

assignment, they're at a longer distance to respond

4

out from district, because they might be in Kahului

5

and the next ambulance might be coming from Makawao.

6

So Lahaina Station or Napili Station would fill in

7

for them.

8

a mechanical failure on either vehicle.

9

safety (inaudible).

10

So their equipment or their

And it depends, sometimes you might have

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So as a

Quick, what is the -- what is a

11

prop-burning vehicle and why would the mobile

12

fire -- or burn trailer not be adequate that we

13

currently have, versus the request?

14

MR. CORDEIRO:

Well, this is in addition to the burn

15

trailer.

16

type of -- it has stoves and chairs and furniture,

17

metal appropriates in there.

18

which is part of a certification program that we're

19

going to be trying to get to, is a vehicle that can

20

be

21

we can do a controlled burn on it and be safe, in

22

addition to the burn trailer.

23
24
25

The burn trailer is more of a structural

The propane auto,

or a prop designed to look like a vehicle so

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

It augments it.

We currently have extraction

equipment or we don't have?
MR. CORDEIRO:

All of our units have extraction equipment
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on board.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thermal imager, what is the

purpose of that equipment, please?
MR. CORDEIRO:

Thermal imagers that we use is to

5

predominantly was -- primarily purpose was for life

6

safety to search in a smoky, dark environment for a

7

victim and it will give you an infrared reading

8

within the structure, or even we can use it in a

9

HazMat situation to look at the container.

We can

10

look at a spill in a water way.

11

difference.

12

readings in infrared, and it's primarily for safety

13

reasons and extension of fire.

14

wall, look at a wall, and it will show if there's a

15

heat extension or fire extension in that particular

16

area.

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

It can see the

It gives a difference of temperature

Okay.

We can shine it at a

Thank you for that.

If I was

18

of a mind to consider an expansion, what would that

19

expansion be for this Division, one Captain and

20

three Fire Fighter Ill's?

21
22

MR. PASCUA:

Councilman Hokama, are you referring to a

hazardous materials team?

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

MR. PASCUA:

25

Yes.

Our optimum would be five men in a squad.

And that would be one Fire Fighter -- excuse me, one
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1

Captain, one Fire Fighter III, and three Fight

2

Fighters.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay, you have two Captains right now,

4

and you got one, two, three -- five Fire Fighter

5

Ills, one Technician, one Clerk Typist, right?

6
7

8
9

MR. PASCUA:

This would be the expansion positions that

you're referring to?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

No, I'm telling you this is what we

believe you have currently, right?

Two Captains,

10

five Fire Fighter Ills, one Technician, and one

11

Clerk Typist.

12
13

MR. PASCUA:

And this is in reference to the Hazardous

Materials Division?

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

MR. PASCUA:

Yes.

Yes, and that is an existing Hazardous

16

Materials Division and not an actual hazardous

17

materials team, response team that would actually

18

man one apparatus and be fully equipped to respond

19

to all hazardous material calls.

20
21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

two if we gave you the additional manpower?

22

MR. PASCUA:

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

24
25

So this current team would be split in

Actually, no.
HazMat would be just a specific

hazardous material attack group or response team?
MR. PASCUA:

That is correct, sir.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Okay.

And one quick one,

2

please, Chief.

3

6-7, I can understand the HFFA collective bargaining

4

agreement.

5

Fire Fighter III have to do with an HGEA collective

6

bargaining agreement regarding step movement and

7

corrected title?

8
9

CHAIR KANE:

Why for Fire Fighter IlIon page

That's the fire fighters.

Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond to

this question?

10

MR. GINOZA:

No, I'm not.

11

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Hokama.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

What does a

I can respond in writing.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

You'd like that in writing, Mr. Hokama?
I'd like to understand.

We'll get a clarification on the footnote,

yeah, Mr. Hokama.

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Yeah.
Okay, thank you, Chairman.

I just

20

wanted to have a better understanding, and this is

21

something that I can be supportive of.

22

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you.

In light of that question,

23

before I recognize Mr. Pontanilla, perhaps the

24

Department would consider providing a breakdown of a

25

proposal for a HazMat team and what that would
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1

entail, so at least the body has information in

2

front of it to make or have options in front of it.
Mr. Pontanilla, before we take a recess, I'll

3
4

5

recognize you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Yeah, this

6

question is almost similar to what you asked in the

7

Department, but just for clarification from

8

assistant Chief Pascua, the five-man squad that you

9

mentioned, one captain and how many fire fighters,

10

three?

11

MR. PASCUA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

13

14
15

(Inaudible) .

five-man squad?
MR. PASCUA:

That would be three Fire Fighter II's we

would call them.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

MR. PASCUA:

18

Four Fire Fighter Ills on this

Okay, thank you.

That would be the optimum, an ideal hazardous

materials squad.

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Members, any final questions in the

21

training program area?

22

come back and go right into the Fire Rescue

23

Operations program, without objection.

24

okay with that?

25

We'll take the recess and

Members,

Okay, so prior to going into the recess,
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1

under Fire Operations, Members, if you don't mind,

2

just to get clarity on the things that we already

3

pretty much know, under the B account in Fire Rescue

4

Operations, you'll note that for the most part it's

5

flat except for the adjustments in gasoline and

6

electricity, although in certain stations, noted in

7

the Kahului Station, you have some numbers that show

8

2 1/2 time increases, or almost double increases,

9

under electricity and gasoline, Kula Station you

10

show almost a tripling of gasoline.

11

Department during the recess can just look at those

12

spikes and just provide us some general comments on

13

the changes over and above the 30 percent and 15

14

percent general information that the Budget Director

15

has given us when we look at these areas.

16

But if the

And then finally there's a few things within

17

the B account as well that have some increases,

18

notably under the uniform allowance under Kahului,

19

so if that's, you know,

20

where you're just buying new suits, if you can take

21

note of that, that's on 6-27.

just a replacement thing

And Members, this will take care of just the

22
23

things that stand out, and then if there's other

24

questions that you have, we can get into those as

25

well.

And then finally, under the helicopter
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1

services, there's a hundred thousand increase in the

2

contract, if you can just make some comment when we

3

come back from the break on that.

4

open it up for questions from the members for other

5

issues.
Okay, Members, time now is five after 3:00.

6

7
8
9

And then we'll

We'll reconvene at 3:20.

We stand in recess.

(Gavel) .
RECESS:

3:03 p.m.

10

RECONVENE:

11

CHAIR KANE:

3 : 23 p. m.

(Gavel).

Okay, Members, we are reconvened.

12

It's a little after 3:20.

Before we move on into

13

operations and provide the opportunity for the

14

Department to respond to the general questions of

15

the program, I know Member Pontanilla had a question

16

right before we went into the recess, and we did get

17

a response; however, Assistant Chief Pascua would

18

like to provide some revised comments,

19

there's clarity to the response to the question.

just so that

And, Assistant Chief, if you can just state

20
21

the question, as you understand it, and then provide

22

us with a response.

23

MR. PASCUA:

Thank you, Chair.

Councilman Pontanilla, I

24

understood the question as being what would be the

25

best case scenario for hazardous materials team.
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hope I'm correct on that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

No.

Actually, it was your

3

five-man -- five-man squad, I guess, to create the

4

new team, what would be the total organization for a

5

new squad?

6

MR. PASCUA:

And I believe my answer was to have five-man

7

hazardous materials team, optimum being one Captain,

8

one Fire Fighter III, and three Fire Fighter II's.

9

Now, I just wanted to clarify with, Chair, that I

10

mean that for that one contingency of a five-man

11

team for each -- for one watch, so A, B, and C

12

watch.

13

14
15

That would mean a total of 15.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15.

Thank you.

Thank you,

Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Members, and that would take care

16

of your A account.

17

consideration, we would also need to maybe get in

18

writing from the Department the Band C account

19

expenditure for the fiscal year, and that being an

20

annual request as well.

21

writing to the

22

follow up on Member Hokama and Member Pontanilla's

23

question on the HazMat team and then getting the

24

response for A, B, and C account requirements.

25

Okay?

So if we're looking at that

So we will get that in

to the Department, Members, to

Thank you very much.
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Members, we'll move into the Fire Rescue

1

2

Operations Program.
Chief, if you can assign somebody to respond

3
4

to the general questions, or maybe we can have our

5

Budget Director respond to some of the areas which

6

show a greater than 30 percent and 15 percent for

7

gas and electricity respectively at the various

8

station locations, please.

9

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Ginoza.

Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair.

If you look --

10

just to give you an example -- well, let me state

11

what procedures that we did.

12

actual expenditures to the 2006 appropriation, and

13

to the extent that the 2005 expenditures exceeded

14

the 2006 appropriation, you know, we went in and

15

added an amount to make the 2006 appropriation a

16

more reasonable amount to base the 30 percent from.

17

Otherwise, if the 2006 appropriation is too low

18

compared to the actual expenditures, by applying the

19

30 percent doesn't really help with any increases in

20

the fuel charge or electricity.

21

We compared the 2005

So, for example, one of the bigger increase

22

was in Wailuku Fire Station, and if you look at

23

6-22, under Wailuku Fire Station, under 6120, the

24

increase was $11,075, and if you look at the 2005

25

actual, it's 20,375, but the appropriation for 2006
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1

is only 12,500, so, you know, we increase the

2

difference between 2005 to 2006 first,

3

apply the 30 percent or 15 percent or whatever

4

percentage that was allocated was used for the

5

different utilities.

6

CHAIR KANE:

and then

Mr. Ginoza, is it fair to place that

7

assessment in a vacuum, if you will, since you have

8

adjustments up and down in other areas within the

9

station budget request?

10

MR. GINOZA:

I would say yes, because if I look at the

11

overall after I made the adjustments, I came up with

12

a negative of $500.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

No, I appreciate that response.

The

14

only other area, Members, and, again, I'm just

15

trying to cover the general thing so we can dispense

16

with going through and everybody asking the

17

individual questions that we know are going to be

18

asked, there's one area I believe

19

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair, can I

20

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza.

21

MR. GINOZA:

Can I just clarify one point about the

22

increases.

Some of the increases really were more

23

than the 2000 -

24

was because, you know, when some of the

25

differences -- I kind of looked at the actual of

between the 2005 and 2006, and it
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1

2006 to see whether it's still within the range.

2

So, you know, we did kind of try to do an educated

3

guess in terms of the increases.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, any clarity for that general

5

response to all the areas?

6

Members, on page 6-25 of your Details.

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, moving on,

Chairman.

Yes, Mr. Mateo.

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I'm sorry.

Please, go ahead.
If we can go back to page 6-22.

Yes, go ahead.
My question would be for the Chief.

14

This would be in terms to -- regarding travel out of

15

district, Molokai, Lanai, Hana, 6201, airfare

16

transportation, there's a $20,000 amount in FY '06

17

and the same 20,000 being requested again in '07.

18

know this has been an ongoing fund.

19

it indicates zero expenses.

20

explain this particular fund to us in terms of out

21

of district travel for the three communities,

22

Molokai, Lanai, and Hana?

23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

However, in '05

Could Chief kind of

Can you give us a reference point, again,

Mr. Mateo?

I'm sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I

Page 6-22.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

Yes, on the top of the page, yeah.

Thank you, okay.

Mr. Mateo, that's correct?

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

7

CHAIR KANE:

9

Members, 6-22, at the top,

the $20,000 appropriation.

5

8

Top of the page.

Yes.

Okay, thank you.

Deputy, are you in a -- are

you prepared to respond to that question?
MR. BAL:

We've - - we have - - we have not taken the - - we

10

have not been charging this specific account

11

correctly throughout the year, and we're doing some

12

audit right now on this, and for this year we plan

13

to take those charges and apply it to that amount

14

until we get that done correctly.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So in the interim, when individuals

16

from these three districts travel, the expense for

17

that air cost is coming out of --

18
19
20

MR. BAL:

Either the station or training or whatever

specific area it goes into.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

And your current evaluation

21

of the account, then, is something that is currently

22

being audited?

23

MR. BAL:

We are looking through the journal entries, and

24

all of that will be placed this year in this

25

corrected form.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/17/06

1
2

165

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

will be able to see an actual?

3

MR. BAL:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

5

6

So for Fiscal Year '06, then, we

Yes, we will.
Okay, thank you.

Thank you,

Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you very much.

The area,

7

Members, that I just wanted to take note of has to

8

do with a number -- or item number on page 6-25.

9

Besides the gas and electricity component, under the

10

Wailea Station in the middle of 6-25, there is an

11

R&M under sub-object code 6138, R&M Service

12

Contracts.

13

Everything else is more or less, with the exception

14

to hundreds of dollars here and there.

15

doubling or more than doubling there.

16

6,000 to 13,500 R&M service contracts, number 6138,

17

is there a particular project or occurrence

18

that's --

19

MR. BAL:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

MR. BAL:

It goes from 6,000 to 13,500.

There's a
Deputy, the

Yes, Chair.
we would like to know about.

Thank you.

After they were completed

22

the elevator cost, the maintenance, annual.

23

warranty period expired and we put in for the

24

maintenance of from here out.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, elevator maintenance contract?
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1

MR. BAL:

Yes.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you for that.

Also in the Operations

3

Administrations, at the bottom of the page, 6-25.

4

know that this gets into the overall cell phone,

5

meal allowance, physical exams, uniform allowance,

6

et cetera.

7

maybe either Mr. Ginoza or the Department on the

8

zero -

9

Year '05, then the zero out in '06, and then the

10
11
12

That $8,000, just help us understand,

well, there's an expenditure from the Fiscal

reappropriation for proposal in '07.
MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Ginoza.

Excuse me, are you referring to the 6152 in

911076?

13

CHAIR KANE:

That is correct.

14

MR. GINOZA:

I believe these are the expenses related to

15

the expansion positions.

16

CHAIR KANE:

The three battalion chiefs?

17

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Noted.

Finally, Members, and thank

19

you for your patience, Members, I believe that

20

answers all the general, except for the additional

21

100,000 on the helicopter service contract on page

22

6-28 of your Details.

23

Deputy, on the bottom of the page from 720 to

24

820,000.

25

MR. BAL:

I

Additional comment there,

That expansion, we're looking at additional
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1

costs coming up.

2

at this summer, is going to be tremendous.

3

month we've seen quite a few brush fires already,

4

and it was already wet.

5

more costs this summer.

6

CHAIR KANE:

The fuel loads, what we're looking
The last

So we're just anticipating

There are restrictions in the contract

7

current, as well as anticipate future contract, that

8

this body should know about that would compromise

9

your folks ability to respond with the helicopter

10

service?

11

restrictions that we should know about that are

12

going to cost additional monies if we choose to have

13

those types of service?

14

MR. BAL:

15

CHAIR KANE:

Again,

just general comments, any

I'm not sure what you're referring to, Chair.
I'm asking if on the helicopter service

16

contract are there any type of restrictions, if any,

17

that we should be aware of that would prevent you

18

folks from being able to respond to any type of

19

emergency that would require the helicopter service,

20

whether it's pilot availability or additional

21

equipment needs or anything like that, again, stuff

22

that you have restrictions on this $820,000?

23

MR. BAL:

There is.

Night flying comes to -- it comes to

24

whether or not the pilot in command wishes to deal

25

with that, and just how extensive the emergency is.
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1

We have looked at night flying goggles and we'd like

2

to think that we -- we can deal with this, but it's

3

not only the initial cost of these goggles, but also

4

the annual -- or the required training throughout

5

the year with these goggles.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

As far as making the call, is it a

7

discretionary call for the night flying issue?

8

that something, Chief, that you're responsible for

9

as the Chief of the Department to make or is it a

10
11

12
13

Is

pilot call for the contractual service?
MR. BAL:

It is -- it is for the pilot in command.

He--

he says whether or not the ship goes.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

And if there is a decision to go, does

14

the Department have the adequate equipment to

15

respond to a night call, night emergency.

16

MR. BAL:

We do not at this time.

17

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, so it would be a non-issue in this case

18

until there's equipment that's available.

19

correct?

20

MR. BAL:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Is that

That's correct.
Members, questions in this area?

And then

22

we'll just open it up to the whole operation area.

23

I just want to, again, cover the general stuff

24

before we go into any other areas that you might

25

have within operations.

Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, if you don't mind, regarding

helicopter service.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I'm trying to figure out when we

5

started this I believe we were at $400,000,

6

Chairman.

7

we had -- did we not have a long-term agreement an

8

the chopper and the pilot supposed to be based at

9

our station?

Now we're at over 800,000.

So I thought

Now they're not based at our station

10

and we're paying more money for less service; is

11

that an accurate understanding on this Committee's

12

part.

l3

CHAIR KANE:

14

MR. BAL:

15
16

Deputy.

I'm sorry.

Okay.

Could you restate your

questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

When we started this we were at about

17

$400,000.

18

chopper and a pilot was supposed to be available 24

19

hours, and didn't we station the chopper at the

20

Kahului Station?

21

MR. BAL:

If I remember the old Administration, the

That is correct.

Since that time,

22

recommendations have been made between the

23

committees and also the helicopter pilots of where

24

this is and the problems.

25

the Assistant Chief who dealt with this, please.

If I may refer this to
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1

CHAIR KANE:

2

MR. CORDEIRO:

Assistant Chief Cordeiro.
Chair, Mr. Hokama.

Yes, initially we did

3

have the helicopter stationed out of Kahului.

4

this past year, due to safety concerns for our

5

personnel and the community, because of the growth

6

in that area, it was determined it was safe -- by

7

the company, they sent us a letter that they needed

8

to move operations to the airport.

9

transmitted through letters and requests for safety

10

reasons.

11

any more than we need to.

12

In

This was

We don't want to put our people in danger

The amount of time has dropped from the 24 to

13

from sunrise to sunset with availability to respond

14

out, and that was a contractual thing that we set up

15

each year -- for a year, now,

16

that we just entered into with adjustments for each

17

year due to cost of insurance and fuel.

18

the years, the cost of insurance and fuel has risen

19

due to the crashes that we've had and other people

20

have had.

21

operating has gone up.

22

cost has gone up.

23

added another 100,000 expecting due to the amount of

24

fire load that we're going to be having --

25

experiencing, especially all in the south side areas

I believe, contract

So through

So insurance has gone up and the cost of
So that's the reason why the

And as the Chief stated, he's
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1

that we need helicopters, from Kaupo to Kapalua.

2

And the load is just so great, everything has grown

3

back that has burnt two, three years ago.

4

expecting a big load, and we're probably going to

5

have to bring in more choppers than what we are

6

currently running.

So we're

Our basic helicopter does -- contract is

7

8

basically for rescue, primarily for rescue, I should

9

say, and we use it for fires when there's no rescue,

10

but our rescue operations is hinged and that's what

11

this contract is for.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for that comment.

Chief

13

Cordeiro, when the chopper company informed the

14

Department of the safety and the need to I guess go

15

to another staging area, restaging site, was there a

16

cost to the Department for a new restaging area?

17

MR. CORDEIRO:

Not at this time.

They staged it if we had

18

to put it and house it at another location, it would

19

have, but they took it to their hanger at the -- at

20

the airport, so that's where they have it staged and

21

protected at night.

22

the past due to the green harvest operations, people

23

are making comments about there's a nice (inaudible)

24

in there that possible sabotage might happen because

25

we don't have 24-hour security an containment of the

Our concerns also came up in
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So concerns of that were raised as well

1

helicopter.

2

as the landing site itself.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I'm kind of curious about this

4

insurance issue.

5

Committee this afternoon, what is the insurance

6

issue, please?

7

have?

8

is required to provide the County?

9

tell us which --

10

When you shared that with this

Is it the County's policy that we

Is this a policy that the helicopter company

MR. CORDEIRO:

Can you just

Yeah, the helicopter company -

I believe

11

it's a million plus coverage that they have general

12

liability insurance that all contractors must

13

provide, and this type of environment, with the

14

helicopter, it's very high now due to the -- as you

15

notice all these air crashes have been happening,

16

impacts them as well as fuel costs, so cost of doing

17

business and goods rises and that's reflected in the

18

contract.

19

for raises per year.

20

And it's -- it's written in the contract

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So what other adjustments were there

21

in the contract from what we understood and what we

22

entered in four years ago and what the agreement

23

calls for now?

24
25

MR. CORDEIRO:

The biggest change was moving from the

24-hour having a pilot standing by for 24 hours at
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1

Kahului Station reduced to the sunrise to sunset

2

operation as well as relocating to the Kahului

3

Airport operation base.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So with the Department giving

5

up certain things, the contract is still asking us

6

to pay a lot more.

7

MR. CORDEIRO:

I believe the addition is our projection of

8

hiring not only this helicopter but other -- other

9

helicopter companies to help us fight, as well as if

10

you remember we brought in the National Guard, that

11

is at $7,500 an hour for them to fly from Honolulu

12

to Maui.

13

they had to fuel and get on board and do it again,

14

we're paying 15 grand just for them to fly to Maui

15

to fight one fire,

16

So their flying time, if it's an hour and

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

just to start.

Okay.

So, Chief, help us understand,

17

out of this $820,000 request, how much of that

18

amount would be for additional chopper company

19

service, 100,000, 200,000?

20

MR. CORDEIRO:

I believe it's 200

21

exact figure.

22

contract, I don't have that -- I don't have the

23

details with me.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Greg?

I don't have the

Increase the hours -- the

Deputy, are you able to assist the Assistant

Chief on that response to the question?
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1

MR. BAL:

2

MR. CORDEIRO:

I have to get through my notes.
But the basic contract was in the 500,000,

3

I believe, range just for the helicopters to park

4

there,

5

us a rate of 275, I believe an hour to fly.

6

additional helicopter is in the 550, that's for the

7

smaller choppers, and you go up to 800 for the

8

Rangers, 1,500 for a Huey, and then, again, 7,500

9

for National Guard's Big Bird to come in.

10

just for it to sit there, and then they give

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Chairman, if you would just

11

maybe ask for them to be able to give us the

12

breakdown.

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15
16

Thank you.

In this area?

On

Just this one, the helicopter

consideration.
CHAIR KANE:

An

Thank you.

Okay, Staff, you folks have that?

And if you

17

need clarity, please let us know.

18

I know there's other members in this area of the

19

helicopters.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Ms. Johnson, and

Mine is in the area of the

21

helicopter too, because I know that we've talked

22

before about emergency rescues, we've talked about

23

people starting brush fires, controlled burns that

24

all of a sudden get out of control.

25

able to collect any monies at all, either from

Have you been
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1

insurance from these individuals that are covered by

2

presenting them with a bill that would help to

3

offset any costs incurred for the provision of the

4

service?

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

MR. BAL:

Deputy.

If I may.

Maui County does not charge for the

7

service.

It has never been proposed to my

8

knowledge.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay, I know we had this before.

10

If we could explore what that would take in order

11

for us to actually present bills and particularly

12

where individuals do have usually liability

13

coverage, I notice somebody up in Launiupoko started

14

a big brush fire with a cigar, but most people

15

damage the property of others or when they incur any

16

kind of expense, their homeowners policy or some

17

other type of liability coverage often kicks in, so

18

I think that -- particularly when it is something

19

that's their fault, we should be able to at least

20

turn in a bill.

21

CHAIR KANE:

So

Corporation Counsel, is that something that

22

we get assistance as far as drafting legislation

23

that would allow us to go after insurance monies for

24

property owners who are responsible for, you know,

25

something that requires public expenditure of funds
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1

to -- for health and safety issues?

2

something that we can look at, first,

3

anything, and second, if not, if that's something we

4

can ask for assistance.

5

of budget, Ms. Johnson, but this is not

6

isn't the first time that this question has been

7

asked, yeah, any comments, please?

8
9

10

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

Is that
if we do have

And this would be outside
this

This is for like for what type of

situation are you looking at, like an example?
CHAIR KANE:

Whether it's a fire rescue operation or

11

it's -- we responding to an emergency where there's

12

a fire that has been determined that it's been

13

caused by a private party and that we have some

14

legal mechanism to get reimbursement for the cost of

15

the public expenditure to protect health and safety

16

of the citizenry.

17
18

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

Yeah, I believe that is something

that we could look at drafting legislation for.

19

CHAI R KANE:

Thank you.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you.

I really appreciate

21

that, because I thought before that we did have the

22

capability to submit some kind of a billing, but I

23

could be not remembering correctly, but every time

24

it always comes up around budget because when we

25

look at the expenses, that's when we can get

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/17/06

177

1

concerned about, as Mr. Bal and Mr. Cordeiro said,

2

the fuel this year, and particularly because people

3

refuse to trim brush around their homes, they don't

4

do any mitigation in terms of clearing their land,

5

that all falls back on us.

6

maintaining their property in a state that would

7

really cut away all this fuel,

8

where we have the capability to fine, when they fail

9

to maintain their property in some kind of a state

10

that would at least be manageable in the case of a

11

brush fire.

12

CHAIR KANE:

So if they also are not

I think maybe that's

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Yeah, and we'll follow up with Staff too,

13

probably do a PAF, Members, just to get that

14

information.

15

record established yet to determine or project a

16

revenue source, if you will, but, you know, over

17

time we can -- that will be something in the longer

18

term.

19

Unfortunately we won't have a track

Additional questions for the ambulance --

20

excuse me, the ambulance, the fire rescue helicopter

21

contract of 820,0007

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares.

Yeah, Mr. Chair, I was wondering,

23

because the Department had said that the amount is

24

in anticipation of other companies being called in

25

or other organizations being called in to assist,
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1

wouldn't something like that, if we had these major

2

brush fires or whatever, qualify as an emergency

3

and, therefore, could use the emergency fund that

4

the County has now established?

5

CHAIR KANE:

Ms.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

CHAIR KANE:

Maybe that's for Corp. Counsel.

Yeah, Ms. Fujita Villarosa, we're finally

8

engaging you into our process are you prepared to

9

respond?

10

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

batteries.

13

CHAIR KANE:

I think -We've been going too long.

Staff, if you can check batteries on those
In the meantime, thank you,

14

cordless mikes.

15

Ms. Fujita Villarosa.

16

Need

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

Mr. Chair, use of the emergency

17

fund is basically a policy decision that the Council

18

would have to determine, so the Charter doesn't

19

or the Code doesn't explicitly define what an

20

emergency is.

21

Council at that time would have to decide whether or

22

not the use of the money was proper and whether or

23

not the event constituted an emergency.

24
25

So basically the

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

the sitting

Okay, thank you.

Because, Mr. Chair, we can talk about this in

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 4/17/06

179

1

COW or something later on, because I can see we

2

would have to establish a procedure that would be

3

relatively quick in order to get authorization,

4

should we act as a body on this or give our

5

authority to maybe the Chair or something like that.

6

Thank you.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah, thank you.

Any additional questions in

8

this area?

If not, Members, again, the Chair's

9

completed just the general overview of questions

10

that stick out.

11

Fire Ops, please, the floor is open at this time for

12

additional questions.

13

you'd like to have additional answers on?

14

Ms. Johnson.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But if there's anything else within

Members, anything there that

Just I guess it would be on the

16

uniforms, and I think that they had mentioned

17

because I talked during the break about what it was,

18

why some of the areas were increased.

19

they do have a really good explanation.

20

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

So I think

And just as the reference, that

21

would be on, Members, page 6-27, about three

22

quarters of the way down the page on 6255, $64,500.

23

Deputy or Fire Fighter Jenkins, any comments in this

24

area, please?

25

MR. JENKINS:

Thank you, Chair, for the question,
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1

Ms. Johnson.

The cost that is represented here is

2

for new Nomex uniforms that were purchased for our

3

members, and for the sustainability of that through

4

our uniform allowance annually.

5

in the past were of a polyester cotton blend and

6

they were basically plastic.

7

our skin when used in different situations.

8

national standards require not only the uniforms

9

which I'm wearing now are the new Nomex ones, the

The uniforms we had

So they would melt to
Certain

10

certain portions of this uniform worn in conjunction

11

as an overall ensemble with other protective gear

12

that were purchased.

13

So, for example, in this case the pants are

14

part of an ensemble for brush fire fighting, so it

15

is actually a part of our personal protective

16

equipment as well as just a pair of uniform pants

17

and the shirt has a different part to that standard,

18

but these also cost more money, so when the initial

19

uniforms were purchased, that was done with a

20

certain direction from the Chief, but to maintain

21

that on an annual basis, the Chief is working with

22

labor on this issue, as well as the management

23

directives from him to have a very progressive way

24

of paying for these over the long haul, which is

25

really responsible, but it did increase at minimum
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the annual allowance.
So in this case it was put all into Kahului's

2
3

budget to reflect the increase, and even though we

4

do have breakdowns for each station, I'm sure in the

5

future it will be put in there, or wherever's best

6

to account for it.

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

Ms. Johnson.
And that was my main thing,

because the question that I had asked them during

10

the break was about some of the stations that have

11

similar staffing seemed to have amounts that were

12

much smaller for the Kahului station and then also

13

the other thing too, I guess is that you're looking

14

at central purchasing, is that one of the things

15

that I understood correctly?

16

MR. JENKINS:

There is central purchasing, however, the

17

uniform allowance we have is through a collective

18

bargaining agreement.

19

through Administration, the union, and usually DPS

20

assists with that.

21

indicated in the budget are an average.

22

example, not everybody, even though they have the

23

right to purchase two shirts, three shirts per year

24

would actually do so.

25

what the personnel are buying on their reimbursement

Any adjustments to that are

However, the costs that are

So it takes an average of
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1

portion, not necessarily funding 100 percent of it

2

every year so is that money -- if we were to say

3

every fire fighter is allowed three shirts, multiply

4

that times all of our members, we would have a very

5

high amount to our allowance.

6

chiefs have taken an average of that.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So we've taken -

the

Right, and, for example, I think

8

in Wailea Station, because that's a relatively new

9

one, I think it was 20,000 last year was the

10

allowance and then 20,000 this year, but Lahaina,

11

which has a similar number I guess of personnel,

12

you'd be looking at maybe 5,500, so if I understand

l3

what you're saying, it's basically calculated into

14

the budget when let's say Wailea, being a new

15

station, they're going to incur a greater expense

16

than, say, Lahaina that's already established but

17

maybe is not buying all brand new equipment; is that

18

correct?

19

MR. JENKINS:

That would be correct.

Any time we have

20

expansion positions would -- we would have uniform

21

increases of those costs, and

22

based upon, again, the amount of uniforms that

23

station might buy.

24

newer station, more personnel, it could be very,

25

very normal that Wailuku, a single company station,

but they also are

Even though Wailea, for example,
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1

might have higher uniform allowance because of the

2

amount of uniforms they purchased for that

3

particular year.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you very much.

Thank you.

Mr. Mol ina.
Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

7

ask the question on Fire Prevention Bureau

8

Operations.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Can I

We're not there yet.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Let's finish up with Operations and then

12

we'll go right in there and I'll recognize you

13

first, Mr. Molina.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

15

CHAIR KANE:

Any additional questions in operations,

16

Members?

17

floor.

18

I'll go ahead and wait.

Seeing none, Mr. Molina, you have the

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

Chief, just questions

19

on the $20,000 increase under miscellaneous, page

20

6-36, Members.

21

MR. KAUPALOLO:

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I'm sorry, 6-32, excuse me.

6221.

If you can give me about a second.
'05 there's $82;

23

then 20,000 for '07.

24

on that?

25

MR. KAUPALOLO:

'06, zero; and

Can you give us more specifics

Okay, let me see if I can try and explain
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1

this while they're looking for their notes here.

2

Basically what this was was actually for our request

3

for the safety trailer expansion.

4

us to take that new educational trailer to the other

5

islands of Molokai and Lanai to share with the

6

children there the fire education program we have,

7

and inclusive also, that would allow us I guess, to

8

be able to take care of any types of things that we

9

need to upkeep and maintain that particular safety

10
11
12

13

This would allow

trailer.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So prior to that you've never taken

the safety trailer to -MR. KAUPALOLO:

Yeah, we just purchased it and got it, you

14

know, acquired, so now we're at the point where we

15

need to sustain it and actually implement the

16

program of getting the trailer over to Lanai and

17

Molokai also.

18
19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So this will be like an annual

request, then, I guess at this point from here on?
MR. KAUPALOLO:

At this point it would appear that that's

the direction it would head.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Okay, thank you.
Any questions, Fire Prevention?

24

And the Chair does note that there is a small area

25

on grant revenue.

We can touch that at the very
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1

end, but any other questions in fire prevention?

2

Mr. Hokama.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

Yes, sir.
Chief, can you just tell us the

general use of fire abatement funding, please.

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

down.

9

One in Fire Abatement, Chairman.

Members, 6-32, Details, three-quarter way

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Is that 6221?

10

CHAIR KANE:

6-32 of --

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

6221, yeah, that's the one.

-- Details, and it's three quarters of the

13

way down under your fire brush abatement program,

14

6221, miscellaneous other costs, $5,000.

15

description of the use of the funds.

16

you prepared to respond?

17

MR. BAL:

A general

Deputy, are

I'm -- I'm thinking this is what's left over on

18

the revolving fund on the brush abatement when we

19

originally had a lot more money than what is in

20

there, and over the years from trying to collect and

21

not having enough teeth in the bill to do the

22

collection, this is where the final

23

recall the total amount that was in there in the

24

beginning, but this is what's left -- left over.

25

And since -- since then we have not, to my
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1

knowledge, gone forward to try to push this program

2

any further, other than the letters that we normally

3

send out every year advising the people who have

4

overgrown lots.

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Would this fund be utilized by the

6

Department for let's say you had an opportunity to

7

use a Workline and you wanted to do one prevention

8

fire break cut in areas you know that traditionally

9

always a problem for brush fire, would this be the

10

11

account you would utilize, Chief?
MR. BAL:

Generally this -- before we were advised by

12

Corp. Counsel to cease this practice.

13

believe Corp. Counsel would have to get into that,

14

due to the legality of this.

15

stopped using that revolving fund and there was some

16

other legal questions that is just outstanding at

17

this time.

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I'm not - - I

I -- you know, we

If not in this -- well, forget

19

the fund, Chief.

20

that we would look at if we wanted to beef up

21

prevention regarding fire breaks, maintenance of

22

certain dry areas that you know is a traditional

23

annual brush fire region or something like that?

24
25

MR. BAL:

Would this be the area, though,

With Corp. Counsel's concurrence, I would say

that would be one area that we could use this
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funding, sure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Has the Department utilized or done

3

that type of advanced prevention type of work in the

4

past?

5

MR. BAL:

We have, yes.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Was it used with Workline programs?

7

Or can you tell us how the Department approached the

8

resources part, please.

9

MR. BAL:

Basically it was -- it was homeowners and

10

corporations, whoever owned the land that was

11

overgrown, and that was the original intent.

12

they did not do it, then it would go out for bid and

13

the contractors would come in and clean up the lots

14

and then the bill would be sent to the owner and

15

that -- in the beginning it worked very well, and

16

toward the end it -- we just couldn't collect on it.

17

And we tried several different ways of trying to

18

deal with this and even the financial system was

19

having a rough time keeping everything.

20

one major one in Kula,

21

bit of this fund and then we got tied up in some

22

legal battles after that, and that's kind of when it

23

went down hill and then we were advised not to deal

24

with this type of operation any further.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I recall.

If

There was

It took quite a

Thank you for your comments.
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Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay, thank you.

Members?

Any additional questions,

Ms. Anderson.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, I'd like to follow up on

5

that.

6

with this type of operation any more?

7

that mean exactly, Chief?

8
9

MR. BAL:

You were advised by Corp. Counsel not to deal
What does

This was the revolving fund program where we

would go out and have these things cleaned.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

MR. BAL:

Yeah, I understand that.

Because we couldn't collect -- we didn't have a

12

leg to stand on apparently, just using that term, to

13

be able to collect money from them.

14

no other way to go back and say, hey, we're going to

15

attach -- we're going to put a lien on your property

16

or, you know, we're going to send you to jailor

17

whatever.

18

it.

19

We just

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I mean, we had

- it didn't have any teeth in

So does that mean we have no

20

mechanism now to force people to keep their property

21

from being a fire hazard?

22

MR. BAL:

Since then we have.

23

Chief --

24

MR. KAUPALOLO:

25

There has

- I'll have the

I'll try and elaborate a little bit more

what Chief Bal was explaining, is that recently we
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1

worked with the -- our Corporation Counsel and also

2

with Prosecutor's Office to come up in the last I

3

would say year or so to come up with what would be a

4

subpoena to appear in court for non-compliance with

5

the Fire Code or non-compliance of orders by the

6

Fire Chief, and that is in its infancy, but we're

7

hoping that that's going to add some teeth to the

8

Fire Code and will no longer be a paper tiger.

9

And so we were thinking that this would be

10

probably the initial move for us to try and address

11

and abate some of these problems that we've been

12

having in the past.

13

had in the past, it really didn't -- it was a good

14

idea, but I think we just didn't look at the big

15

picture on what do we do when they don't pay and we

16

utilize the fund and so that became a challenge not

17

only for the Department but for Corporation Counsel

18

and the County I guess, Finance Department, to try

19

and see how we could recover some of these fundings

20

that we had gone out.

21

idea, I think, in the beginning.

22

With the abatement program we

So it wasn't really a good

So now we're looking at more putting some

23

teeth in the back of the Fire Code, now we can go

24

back and really subpoena these guys to court and say

25

why haven't you cut your brush, why haven't you put
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1

up your exit signs, these kinds of things.

2

able to address it now with a little more authority

3

in the back of us.

4

traffic ticket.

5

in court.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We'll be

It's almost like having a

If you get it, you have to appear

Well, I'm just wondering why we

7

can't as a Council, you know, make an amendment to

8

the ordinance in the Code that would allow unpaid

9

bills to be assessed against somebody's property.
Corp. Counsel, could you

10

- are you familiar

11

with this and could you maybe

12

you know, when you're dealing with safety -- fire

13

safety, that only takes one mistake for a tragedy to

14

occur, and so I don't know why we would have to, you

15

know, coddle somebody into court and use our

16

attorneys and County time to coerce somebody into

17

doing what's the right thing.

18

we just do the right thing and bill them for it if

19

they don't want to do it?

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

I mean, I think --

You know, why don't

Corporation Counsel, comments?
Mr. Chair, the Code actually does

22

state that the County may file a lien on real

23

property to collect, you know, costs for removal of

24

brush from private property.

25

involved in the discussion that the Fire Chief and

I personally wasn't
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1

Deputy Chief were talking about, but just in

2

general, when the County wants to collect fines,

3

penalties, or costs, and we would send -- normally

4

the process is that we send a demand letter to the

5

property owner and then give the property owner some

6

time to respond.

7

We may offer a payment plan if they can't,

8

you know, pay the total lump sum up front.

9

fail to even respond to us, then we basically go to

If they

10

a collection agency.

11

get a lien, you need to get a judgment basically in

12

court, a judgment against the person for -- you

13

know, to collect a certain sum of money, which

14

probably would be handled in district court,

15

depending on the amount that you were looking for,

16

and our office doesn't handle it, but it normally

17

goes through the collection agency process, but the

18

Code already does mention the lien, but, like I

19

said, I don't know.

20

discussion.

21

is assigned to the Fire Department, and we could

22

respond in writing if you wanted more information on

23

that discussion.

24
25

Because even if you wanted to

I wasn't involved in the

Another Deputy in my office, you know,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, I would appreciate that,

Ms. Villarosa, because what is it -- you know, what
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1

does it cost the County in time an effort to get a

2

judgment in order to place a lien?

3

whole chain of command on this, because, frankly,

4

think it's a serious issue and I -- you know, I

5

don't think the Fire Department should, you know,

6

have to do double back flips to make this program

7

happen.

10

what happens when people dump their greenwaste off
the back of their house into a -- you know, a --

11

CHAI R KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

A gul ch .
-- a gulch or

Somebody else's property.
- you know, ranch lands,

15

somebody else's property, what recourse is there

16

there?

17

fire hazard.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Because that's also a fire hazard, a big

Deputy Chief, are you folks prepared to

19

provide a brief response to that?

20

of -- we'll allow the question to get asked and

21

answered, but I don't want to stray too far away.

22

I

The other question I had in this same vain is

8

9

Let's see the

MR. BAL:

I know we're kind

That also is covered by our code.

And usually

23

when we get that kind of complaint, we'll send a

24

the fire inspectors, the prevention people, over to

25

investigate and issue appropriate summons or a
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2

letter.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And then if the property owner

3

does nothing about it, what recourse is there?

4

the same program?

5

MR. BAL:

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

It's

It is the same program, yes.
So basic

doesn't sound like

7

anything is being done if -- I mean, I'm just going

8

to tell you up front.

9

twice in the last two years that her neighbor dumps

I know somebody who's told me

10

everything over the back of her house into the

11

gully, including Christmas trees.

12

years of dead Christmas trees and dead greenwaste

13

abutting her property and she can get no one to help

14

her.

15

MR. BAL:

There's five

That complaint can come directly to my office if

16

you'd like.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

MR. BAL:

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But then

So I can look into it.
But what I'm trying to get at is

20

if the complaint comes to your office and you sent a

21

letter to the homeowner and they do nothing about

22

it, then what happens?

23

person doesn't care to do anything about it because

24

it's been five years of complaints, so then what's

25

the next step?

Because obviously this
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MR. BAL:

Then we're going to come back to you for

legislation.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

MR. BAL:

And what legislation do you need?

I would talk with Corp. Counsel to see what we

5

can do.

6

would think that would be a little more of a

7

deterrent than anything else that we've had in the

8

past.

9

Other than the summons that we have now, I

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So what you're saying is this

10

same situation -- this situation is the same as the

11

abatement program problem that we're trying to

12

MR. BAL:

Well, I believe when you go to court there will

13

be a fine included.

14

summons and to go in front of the court.

15

fine.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

much.

18

CHAIR KANE:

That's the reason for the

I see.

Okay.

There is a

Thank you very

Thank you, Chair.
Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

I believe the Chair

19

would ask the body to consider allowing this

20

Committee to create the item to be forwarded to the

21

Council main agenda to have it referred to the

22

appropriate committee for further discussion in the

23

matter of, dot, dot, dot, in this case this item,

24

and I'll believe that's Mr. Molina's Committee of

25

the Whole.

Ms. -- Deputy, comments.
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MR. BAL:

If I may make one comment.

If you do

2

legislation on this and with the cooperation of

3

Corporation Counsel, I would -- I would like you

4

guys to look at the rates and fees and so forth and

5

have a minimum not for the judge's own discretion.

6

Because if you do a minimum fine, now we have some

7

teeth in this -- in this legislation.

8
9

10

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, and we'll get into that type of detail

when we get that matter into the committee, the
appropriate committee for discussion.
Okay, Members, any additional questions under

11

12

Fire Prevention Program, Members?

13

questions in the -- excuse me -- the Fire and public

14

safety grant revenue area on your Details 6-34 and

15

35 into 36, Members?

16

with the exception of Interior Rural Fire Assistance

17

Program, National Fire Academy Training Program,

18

Fire Extinguisher Training Program, there's some

19

highlights there.

20

Are there any

There seems to be no changes

Deputy, maybe you can touch base briefly,

21

expound on a couple of those programs that have

22

adjustments to the '06 Budget to '07 Budget on page

23

6-34, please.

24
25

MR. BAL:

The fire Extinguisher Training Equipment Grant,

the equipment there is -- this equipment -- of
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1

course what we've been going out with is the

2

55-gallon drum that's been cut in half, or a third,

3

or whatever it is, and we have diesel and gasoline

4

mixture that we've gone around the whole community

5

to give these fire extinguishers training, from

6

hospital to schools to private industry and so

7

forth, that, you know, the equipment itself is more

8

controlled for what we wanted to purchase here, to

9

where it does not really blow back on the operator

10

if somebody got too close or -

11

conditions compared to what -- what we've been

12

dealing with in the past, and it has liquid propane

13

and that kind of thing too.

14

than what we -- our people have done before,

15

carrying the different fuels in cans, and then after

16

they burn you have that residue to haul back with

17

you, but this training equipment, it benefits the

18

whole community.

19

you, whichever island you go to.

20
21

CHAIR KANE:

it's controlled

It's a safer operation

This is a lot easier to take with

That concludes your remarks, Deputy?
Any questions, Members, on any of the grant

22

revenue issues?

Any overall questions from the

23

Department in Operations?

24

point that the Chair would like to bring to your

25

attention.

Members, there's one

As I stated earlier, there is a Budget
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1

Item No. 73 regarding the request from the

2

Department, which Mr. Ginoza notified us that is not

3

included in the Fiscal Year '07 Budget, the

4

Committee is in a position to increase the Mayor's

5

proposed budget by $1.2 million in the carryover

6

savings area.

7

support the request for the expenditure that they're

8

proposing in that Item No. 73, which I listed as a

9

heavy rescue truck at Kahului Fire Station for half

The question becomes if we will

10

a million; 1,500-gallon per minute pumper for

11

Lahaina Fire Station in the amount of 550,000; and a

12

rescue boat for the Lahaina Fire Station in the

13

amount of 150,000.

14

What we can do, Members, is we can request a

15

response in writing from the Department to update

16

this request, because the primary reason at that

17

point in time, which was back in February when that

18

letter was first transmitted, had to do with an

19

opportunity for cost savings in the purchase of the

20

rescue truck, the pumper, as the cost of these

21

equipment is subject to a 6 percent surcharge per

22

quarter, and so there seems to be a 6 percent

23

savings, which there's only a quarter -- by the time

24

it got past through our process into fourth quarter,

25

versus the new budget going into the first quarter
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1

of the next year, there will be a savings in one

2

quarter.

3

request and whether or not we're going to be

4

incorporating it into the '07 Budget or not.

So we need to find out the status of the

So, Members, without objections, can we

5
6

request for a written response to that request,

7

given that we will not be taking up a special

8

meeting to take this up in Committee as a separate

9

and distinct item?

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Any objections, Members?

No obj ect ions.

Okay, thank you very much.

Mr. Hokama.

Chairman, can the Department respond

13

in relation to the '07 request also?

14

putting in a very late '06 request, but I think it

15

would be better for us to get a full picture

16

understanding if they correlate it and tie it into

17

the '07.

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, okay.

Thank you.

They're

I missed you on that.

Yeah, thank you.

No problem.

So, Chief, you folks can prepare

21

some response -- timely response, yeah, because

22

we're going into decision making first part of next

23

week already.

24

afternoon, signed off, and we'll get it out to

25

Budget Director and to the Department hopefully in

So we'll get that question out this
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1

the next day or so.

So if you can anticipate that

2

coming and start working on a response for the

3

Committee to consider.

Thank you, Members, on that.

This ends our review of the Fire Department,

4

5

Members.

6

Assistant Chiefs for your presence here this

7

afternoon.
Members, the Chair is going to ask for two

8
9

Thank you, Chief, Deputy Chief, and

things.

First I'm going to ask for a brief recess

10

to assess the situation regarding the recess,

11

because we will reconvene at -- the Chair's intent

12

is 6:30 for the executive session.

13

been

14

with Staff the status of the Akaku role as far as

15

stand by.

16

right back, and then the intent is to recess until

17

6:30, where we go right into executive session.

18

I'll ask for a vote before we go into recess for

19

that executive session request.

20

executive session at 6:30, and once we conclude

21

that, it looks like we're going to come back in the

22

general session only to adjourn the meeting.

23

Members, so we're just going to do some procedure

24

stuff during this very brief recess.

25

reconvene at, say, 4:28, right before 4:30.

However, we've

anyway we need to go -- I'm going to discuss

So we'll figure out that.

We'll come

So

We'll go into

Okay,

So we will
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Okay, Members, so if you're going to step out

1

2

of the chamber, please stay close by and come right

3

back.

4

stands in recess.

We'd appreciate that.

Okay, the Committee

(Gavel) .

4:21 p.m.

5

RECESS:

6

RECONVENE:

7

CHAIR KANE:

4:29 p.m.

(Gavel).

Okay, Members, we are reconvened.

8

Thank you for that brief recess.

9

determined, Members, with your -- and with your

It's been

10

approval, that we will recess this meeting until

11

6:30,

12

would entertain a motion to enter into executive

13

session to specifically discuss with reference to

14

Section 92-5 (a) (4)

15

Section (3) to deliberate concerning the authority

16

of persons designated by the County, the Council, or

17

the Committee to conduct labor negotiations or to

18

negotiate the acquisition of public property, or

19

during the conduct of such negotiations, as well as

20

to consult with legal counsel on questions and

21

issues pertaining to the powers, duties, privileges,

22

immunities, and liabilities of the County, the

23

Council, and the Committee.

24
25

and before we call for that recess, the Chair

-- excuse me,

(3), and (4),

Members, that executive committee meeting we
would be convening at approximately 6:30 this
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evening.

Entertaining the motion.

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So moved, Mr. Chairman.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

CHAIR KANE:

Second.

Okay, it's been moved and seconded by Members

5

Hokama and Tavares.

We are in discussion.

Any

6

discussion?

7

record, it's specific to discuss the acquisition

8

proposal of the water intakes and the $7 million

9

proposed request for that acquisition.

And this is, Members, so we're on the

Okay, so

10

that's specifically what we're going to talk about.

11

Any further discussion, Members?

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Chair.

Yes, Mr. Mol ina.
Yes, Mr. Chairman, just, again, for

15

specifics, so no discussion on operations, anything

16

else, just specifically on --

17

CHAIR KANE:

That is correct.

We're going to specifically

18

discuss with the Administration -- in fact more

19

specifically we're going to be having the Mayor and

20

the Water Director here with us in executive session

21

to discuss the proposal of the acquisition with the

22

$7 million that's proposed in the '07 Fiscal Year

23

Budget.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Ms. Anderson, questions and

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

BF 4/17/06

202

1

discussion?

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

4

Yes, Chair.

Will we have Deputy

Corp. Counsel Jane Lovell in attendance?
CHAIR KANE:

My understanding is that there will be three

5

Corporation Counsels, available.

6

going to be Mr. Kushi from -- who advises Water;

7

Ms. Jane Lovell, who has been specifically active in

8

that discussion; as well as Mr. Brian Moto.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Great.

I believe it's

Thank you.

And then from our Department, Members,

11

we will have probably Mr. Raatz, Ms. Sakamoto in

12

attendance, and including us as members.

13

it's going to be very restricted as to who is

14

because it's going to be very specific, the

15

discussion, and so we only have people who need to

16

be here, not want to be here.

17

discussion, Members?

18

say "aye."

19

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

VOTE: AYES:

24
25

Hearing none.

Any further
All in favor,

Opposed?

22
23

Okay?

And so

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC. :

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Mateo,
Molina, Pontanilla, Tavares, Vice-Chair
Hokama, and Chair Kane.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

BF 4/17/06

1

203

ACTION:

RECESS Open Session to convene Executive
Session.

2
3

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, let the record show it's unanimous with

4

Member Carroll excused from this afternoon's vote on

5

the executive session.
Members, we're going to recess this meeting,

6
7

and we will reconvene at the conclusion of the

8

executive session meeting that will commence at 6:30

9

this evening.

10

And for the public's information, our intent

11

is once we adjourn the executive session

12

committee

13

back into the open session, the intent is to simply

14

adjourn this meeting for today.

15

intend to continue discussions in operations of any

16

of the departments.

17

Members, we are in recess.

18

RECESS:

19

RECONVENE:

20

CHAIR KANE:

- executive session meeting, when we come

The Chair does not

Okay, Members?

Hearing none,

(Gavel) .

4: 33 p.m.
10:10 p.m.

(Gavel).

Okay, Members, I'd like to

21

reconvene in open session for the meeting of April

22

17th, 2006.

23

session on the specific item as described.

24

closing questions?

25

We've just completed our executive

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Ms. Anderson.
Thank you, Chair.
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1

to ask Corp. Counsel, this agreement that was signed

2

concerning withdrawal from the lao Waikapu ditch was

3

entered into on June 9th,

4

Agribusiness and the County of Maui.

5

understanding, Mr. Moto, that any changes -- the

6

Water Use and Development Plan is the State's

7

mandate for the County to layout the growth and

8

development of their water system in a managed and

9

directed pattern within the Water Use and

'04 by Wailuku

It's my

10

Development Plan, and that any changes to that plan

11

require an amendment to the plan by the County

12

Council in the form of an ordinance.

13

manner, it allows the Council to set policy.

14

And in that

And because this agreement was never brought

15

to the Council, I mean, this was a policy decision

16

to start using surface water, and it's my

17

understanding this surface water is being mixed with

18

groundwater.

19

And I think those decisions should have been made by

20

the Council, given the Charter amendment, and done

21

through an amendment to the Water Use and

22

Development Plan.

23

before and I've never gotten an answer, and I think

24

it's a very important question as far as the

25

direction the Council goes in the future with our

So that's another policy decision.

And I've asked this question
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water planning and development.
So I would hope that I could get some answer

2
3

from you in writing on that.

4

if we need to send a letter, but I think the

5

question's pretty simple.

6

CHAIR KANE:

I don't know, Chair,

Okay, the appropriate thing is to send a

7

letter from the Committee to Corporation Counsel.

8

In the meantime, if he is prepared to give some

9

level of response now, Ms. Anderson, I'll provide

10

him that opportunity.

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

Mr. Moto, if you can, then, you know, please

proceed.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

MR. MOTO:

17

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.
Okay, we'll get that question in writing.
Mr. Raatz, you're okay with the question as

asked?

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22
23

I don't really expect it.

In writing?

18
19

If he wants.

Thank you.

Any closing questions, Members, before we

close up this meeting of April 17th?
Hearing none.

As I've told you, Members, in

24

the past, tomorrow morning we meet in this chamber

25

at 9 O'clock in the morning.

I believe we're going
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1

to be meeting with the Department of Water Supply,

2

okay, so we'll be meeting with the Department of

3

Water.

4

session tomorrow, and we will do a status at

5

lunchtime to see where we're at and then what other

6

departments that we can take on, if any, after that.

And we anticipate being here for most of the

Members, the Chair does intend to ask for

7

8

your consideration of a dinner break and then a

9

shorter session than this evening, but nevertheless,

10

having one session tomorrow evening, but we'll,

11

again, assess that as we get closer to that point.

12

With that, Members, thank you.

13

Corporation Counsel, thank you all for your

14
15

diligence.
ADJOURN:

This meeting is adjourned.

10:14 p.m.

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24
25
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7
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8
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9
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10
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11
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12
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13
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14
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